Strategy and Resources Committee
29 October 2018
7.30 pm at the

efg

Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Strategy and Resources Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Jayne McCoy
Manuel Abellan, Jean Crossby, Sunita Gordon, Amy Haldane,
Marlene Heron, Marian James, Steve Penneck, Tim Crowley,
David Hicks, Holly Ramsey, Jed Dwight, Tom Drummond and
Tim Foster

Substitutes:

Councillors David Bartolucci, Jenny Batt, Chris Williams,
Jane Pascoe, Elliot Colburn, Param Nandha and Nick Mattey

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation of the Chair
of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to submit representations on a
proposal contained within the reports to this agenda please submit a request via Committee
Services three working days before the meeting date.
The council allows and welcomes any recording, photographing or filming of the proceedings of a
council meeting or use of social media by any member of the public, media or councillor subject to
it focusing on, and not disrupting, the meeting. Mobile devices can interfere with the wireless
microphones and induction loop, and if that is the case the Chair may require that such devices are
turned off. In order to facilitate the recording of meetings, members of the public or media are
encouraged to contact committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk in advance of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until 10am on the
third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council may notify the Chief
Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the appropriate committee at its next
meeting. Please contact the Committee Services representative shown on the front page for
further information.

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
19 October 2018

Enquiries to: Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support Tel: 020 8770
4990 | Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Any Items the Chair deems urgent

4.

Minutes

1-6

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July
2018.
5.

Performance and Finance Report (Q2)

7 - 44

This report provides an overview of council performance and finance during
April - September 2018 as reported through the new corporate plan and
financial monitoring arrangements.
6.

Revision to CIL Regulation 123 List and Guidance

45 - 86

Seek approval for a new Regulation 123 list and provide guidance on the
spending of CIL receipts
7.

Annual Audit Letter

87 - 104

The Annual Audit Letter for 2017/18 formally reports the outcome of the
external audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year and the
auditor’s opinion on the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money.
8.

Constitutional Update Report

105 - 112

This report reviews the terms of reference of the Sutton Shareholdings Board
for the efficient and effective oversight of the council interests in companies
and decision-making in relation to matters reserved to the Council as
shareholder.
9.

Portage Spin Out

113 - 126

This paper explores the potential opportunities for Portage to spin out of the
local authority. This content includes the business plan, financial plan and
options for new service delivery
10.

Annual Report Investment Property Portfolio

127 - 158

Annual Report on the Investment Property Portfolio (IPP) which includes a
revised strategy for IPP that takes into consideration the new statutory
guidance published by the government on investments.
11.

Letting of the Charles Cryer Centre

159 - 184

This will report on the bids received for the future use of the Charles Cryer
Theatre
12.

Exclusion of the public and press
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1-3 Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.”

This page is intentionally left blank

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
16 July 2018

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
16 July 2018 at 7.30 pm

MEMBERS:

Councillor Ruth Dombey (Chair), Councillor Jayne McCoy (ViceChair) and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Jean Crossby,
Sunita Gordon, Amy Haldane, Marlene Heron, Marian James,
Tim Crowley, Holly Ramsey, Jed Dwight, Tom Drummond and
Tim Foster

ABSENT

Councillor(s) Steve Penneck and David Hicks

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Hicks and Steve
Penneck. Councillor Jane Pascoe attended as a substitute for Councillor David
Hicks and Councillor Chris Williams attended as a substitute for Councillor Steve
Penneck.
The chair advised that Item 8, Portage Spin out, would be taken at the end of the
agenda due to the exempt information expected to be discussed.
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Crowley declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in relation to item 12
Alexander Gardens, as he was involved in a property company who had an interest
in the adjoining property.
6. ANY ITEMS THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
There were no urgent items.
7. MINUTES
The minutes of the meetings held on 5 February 2018 and 21 May 2018 were
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.
8. END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT 2017/18
The Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and Governance and Assistant
Director - Shared Finance Service introduced the report. The Chair thanked officers
for delivering the priorities of the Council and delivering the budget on track.
Resolved
1. That the outturn performance against Corporate Plan indicators and 2017
residents’ survey results be noted.
2. That the performance against 2017/18 Strategic Commissioning plan and the
key achievements for the current corporate plan be noted.
1

Agenda Item 4

Page 2

Strategy and Resources Committee
16 July 2018

3. That the corporate risk register be noted.
4. That the General Fund revenue financial outturn position of a net underspend
of £0.160m (0.1%) against an approved net budget of £140.785m be noted.
5. That the non-grant carry forward £0.388m of unspent revenue budgets
including promoting independence, troubled families and public realm to be
funded from reserves (paragraph 8.4 of the report) be agreed.
6. That the proposed reserve transfers as set out in Appendix G of the report be
approved.
7. That the proposed net increase of £5.457m to the Capital Programme
2018/19 summarised in Appendix F of the report be approved, mainly due to
expenditure being re-phased from 2017/18.
9. QUARTER ONE - PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT
The Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and Governance and Assistant
Director - Shared Finance Service introduced the report.
Members requested the full list of potential indicators be circulated to the committee
and that the final list reflects the results of the residents’ survey and the revised
focus on Outcomes Based Commissioning.
Resolved
1. That the proposed set of performance indicators be approved (by email
following the circulation of a wider list of potential indicators) to be reported to
the committee during 2018/19 and to receive reports by exception on
performance issues in these area.
2. That the capital programme adjustments shown under Appendix A of the
report be approved.
10. COMMISSIONING AND FINANCIAL PLANNING 19/20 TO 21/22
The Strategic Director - Resources gave a presentation on the Council’s financial
position in relation to commissioning and financial planning for 2019-2022.
Members discussed the impact of the delayed Green Paper on social care funding,
the impact of business rates being retained locally, the impact of an increased
council tax base in terms of increased population and demand for services.
Members discussed how rigid proposals were in relation to increasing levels of
council tax and whether there were opportunities for a zero based accountancy
approach.
Members noted the significant amount of savings delivered over the previous years
and the impact that has had on residents, whilst still facing the need to deliver further
savings.
Members were advised that the Council had a statutory obligation to present a
balanced budget but members had discretion on how that was achieved whether
through increased levels of council tax or savings alone.
Members highlighted that carers also included young carers and that the role of
carers had a significant impact on supporting vulnerable people in the borough.
Resolved

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
16 July 2018

1. That the Medium Term Financial Forecast to 2022/23 summarised in
Appendix A of the report, showing a cumulative budget gap of £24.5m by
2022/23, be noted
2. That the Outcomes Based Commissioning approach be agreed.
3. That the new outline Corporate Plan be adopted, attached as Appendix B,
and the final full version referred to council for debate
Councillor Crowley indicated that members of the Conservative group were
abstaining from the vote in relation to recommendation 3, but endorsed the referral
of the Corporate Plan to Council. Councillor Tim Foster also abstained from the vote
in relation to recommendation 3.
11. VCSE INFRASTRUCTURE CONTRACT
The Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and Governance introduced the
report.
Members discussed the governance arrangements of the contract award and
whether a delegation to officers to award the final contract was appropriate. The
recommendations were agreed subject to members being given further opportunities
to receive briefings on the governance arrangements and give feedback on these.
The Chief Executive reassured members that all decisions delegated to officers by a
committee were subject to openness and transparency regulations and would be
published online.
Resolved
1. That the draft specification attached at appendix A to the report be approved
2. That the reduction in budget provision for this contract as part of the decision
taken in February 2017 - this will mean an upper limit of £300k p.a. in line with
our council savings plans, be noted
3. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the
Lead Member for the Voluntary Sector, to award a 5 year contract (with an
option to extend for a further 2 years) to the successful bidder according to
the outcomes of the procurement process.
12. FUTURE INTEGRATION OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES
The Director of Public Health introduced the report. Members discussed where the
services would be located and what options of delivery had been considered.
Officers advised that the decision to bring the service in house was to enable a full
review of services offered which an immediate re-procurement exercise would not
enable, in the context of the wider children’s transformation project.
Resolved
1. That it be approved in principle, to bring back in house the health visiting and
school nursing service once the current contract with the Royal Marsden
Hospital comes to an end (currently scheduled to end March 2019).
2. That the commencement of work with health partners on a wider root and
branch review of children’s community services in Sutton with the aim to
reduce fragmentation and duplication in the system and provide families with
more accessible, tailored and timely information and support, be approved.
This review of children’s community services would become an integral part
of the Council’s own outcome-based commissioning review framework.

3

Agenda Item 4

Page 4

Strategy and Resources Committee
16 July 2018

3. That it be noted that officers will need further time to agree the operational
issues of this proposal with wider Sutton Health and Care partners and the
Royal Marsden. A further paper will update the Committee on proposed
timelines and the programme management approach including key risks and
mitigations.
13. PROCUREMENT PROCESS FOR INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICE
The Director of Public Health introduced the report.
Resolved
1. That the commencement of a formal procurement process for a new
integrated sexual health service be agreed,
2. That authority be delegated to the Director of Public Health, in consultation
with the Leader of the Council, to award the contract at the end of the tender
process.
14. ALEXANDRA GARDENS
Councillor Crowley left the meeting for the duration of the item.
The Head of Asset Management introduced the report.
Members discussed why the approach to deliver new build housing in this location
was via Sutton Living rather than the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). Members
questioned the assumption that planning permission would be awarded and it was
suggested that the grant of the lease was awarded subject to planning permission
being granted.
The Chief Executive clarified that the decision before the committee had no relation
to planning decisions. Any decision taken by the Planning Committee was
independent of the strategic decision making of the Council.
Resolved
1. The grant of a 125 year lease to Sutton Living Limited of the land edged red
on the plan at Section 8 of the report, on terms set out in the accompanying
Exempt appendix A and otherwise as negotiated by the Assistant Director
(Asset Planning, Management and Capital Delivery), be agreed subject to
planning permission being awarded.
2. Agree in principle to make a Compulsory Purchase Order if needed to acquire
all or part of the land shown edged red in the plan at Section 8 of the report;
3. That a programme of works to improve the existing dwellings adjacent to the
site be carried out.
15. REVIEW OF APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018
The Head of Committee and Management Support updated that it was
recommended Councillor Muhammed Sadiq be appointed to the Town Twinning
Association. Members requested information on the difference in appointing to the
Limes College and STARS, Officers advised that advice would be circulated outside
of the meeting.
Resolved
1. That it be agreed to appoint to the list of outside bodies as set out in Appendix
A of the report.
4

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Strategy and Resources Committee
16 July 2018

2. That the names of those appointed as set out in Appendix A of the report be
agreed.
3. That authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to authorise the
appointments of named representatives which are still to be confirmed, as set
out in Appendix A to the report.
16. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
Resolved
That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
17. PORTAGE SPIN OUT
The Head of Strategic Business and Portage Coordinator introduced the report.
Members discussed the detail of the business case. Members were positive about
the overall proposal but were concerned that the business case did not outline in
enough depth the commercial viability of the proposal. Members requested that the
recommendations be amended, with a further report coming to the committee in
October.
Resolved
1. Note the transition of the internal Portage Service into Community Interest
Company (CIC) in order to expand its services (as set out in the exempt
business plan), including the proposed financial and contractual
arrangements needed or expected to be needed (see appendix A) and
receive a further report on the final business plan, to come back to the
committee to seek approval in October 2018
2. Should the delay in securing formal approval put at risk the opportunities for
private investment, approve the use of urgency procedures, subject to full
consultation with all political groups on the detailed business plan.

The meeting ended at 9.54 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Performance and Finance Report - Quarter 2 2018/19

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources
Jessica Crowe, Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning and
Governance

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair
Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for Finance

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Mandeep Bharaj, Commissioning and Business Insight Officer, 020
8770 6863
Tom Webb, Commissioning and Business Insight Officer, 020 8770
4796
Toby Joseph, Financial Reporting Manager, 020 8770 4448

Corporate Plan
Priorities:

Open/Exempt:

●
●
●
●
●

Date:

29 October 2018

Being Active
Making Informed Choices
Living Well Independently
Keeping People Safe
Smarter Ways of Working

Open

Signed:
Jessica Crowe
Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning
and Governance

17 October 2018

18 October 2018
Gerald Almeroth
Strategic Director of Resources
1.

Summary

1.1 This report provides an overview of council performance and finance during April - September 2018
as reported through the new corporate plan and financial monitoring arrangements.
2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

Agenda Item 5

Page 8

2.1

Note that the new Corporate Balanced Scorecard is currently being designed and built and will be
ready for the end of year Strategy & Resources Committee.

2.2

Agree recommended measures of success in the Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 18/19
(Appendix A).

2.3

Note the projected revenue outturn position.

2.4

Note the projected capital position.

2.5

Agree one off use of reserves to fund £400k of support of the Outcome Based Comissioning Review
Programme as per paragraph 3.6.

2.6

Agree for 2018/19 only use of reserves to fund part-time business support to Opposition Group
Leadership, which has been costed at £25k in a full year.

2.7

Agree the capital programme adjustments shown under Appendix B.

3.
3.1.

3.2.

4.

Background
The new Corporate Plan (Ambitious for Sutton) sets out the priorities for the Council over the period
2018 - 2023. These priorities will be delivered under the following themes: Being Active, Making
Informed Choices, Living Well Independently, Keeping People Safe and Smarter Ways of Working in
accordance with the direction of travel and future shape of the Council.
The 2018/19 Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan sets out the activities that will contribute to the
delivery of Corporate Plan priorities. This report summarises the proposed measures of success,
which will be used to show progress against the Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19.
Key Programmes Update
Adults and Childrens Transformation Programmes
The Children’s Transformation Programme has delivered a new operating model which went live on
1st May 2018. The Adults Transformation Programme is on track to go live with the new operating
model on 1st October 2018. The focus of both programmes has been:
●
●
●
●

4.1.

Delivering transformation programmes including re-profiling of savings.
Redesigning new operating models - locality based.
Developing the capacity and capability of the workforce.
Refocusing on Early Intervention and Help.

Developments of Children’s Transformation Programme
●

The implementation of a new operating model, following a successful pilot, followed by
consultation with the workforce.

Page 9

●
●

●
●

●
●

4.2.

Agenda Item 5

A review of the benefits of the Children’s Transformation Programme is currently being
undertaken. Integral to this is evaluation of the delivery of costs reduction and savings.
Partnership lead of a family therapeutic, early intervention service contract
commissioned by multiple London boroughs solely on a payment-by-results basis and
supported by a social investment financing model (Social Impact Bond). This licenced
and evidence-based service strives to prevent at risk young people entering care, thus
improving their life chances and avoiding the high costs of future placements. The
London Borough of Sutton are forecast to refer 26 young people per annum over 3
years. For the two year period following an intervention, the London Borough of Sutton
will pay £175 (which includes a Big Lottery Fund grant contribution) for every 7-day
period that a young person remains out of care, thereby avoiding the significantly higher
cost of placement (weighted average of different placement costs captured over a
previous 4 year period for Sutton: £1,313 per week).
Working with Local Authorities in South London on residential placements, including the
successful bid of £1M from the DfE Innovation Programme.
Strengthened Early Help through the implementation of: Family Group Conferencing,
Early Help Assessment Tool, Early Help Prevention Panel, embedding Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) in localities, aligning Early Help and
Troubled Families and strengthened Early Help presence in Multi Agency Safeguarding
Hub including Single Point of Access.
Implementation of Restorative Conferences Practice and the development of a
Restorative Practice Programme.
Implementation of a new Fostering Framework and new fee structure for in-house
carers.

Developments of Adults Transformation programme
●
●

●

●
●

●

●
●

On track for the implementation of a new operating model after consultation with the
workforce.
A review of the projected benefits of the Adult’s Transformation Programme is currently
being undertaken. Integral to this is evaluation of the delivery of costs reduction and
savings.
Strengths-based, positive risk taking and motivational interviewing training to be rolled
out to senior managers in September with the full workforce being trained from October
to January.
There has been a targeted review of high cost placements - Supported Living, Home
Care and Domiciliary Care.
A review of all customer contact points for Adult Social Care e.g. First Contact, Initial
Contact, including our commissioned service Advice Link Partnership Service with CAB,
Sutton Carers and Age UK Sutton .
Children and Young People with Disabilities 0-25 years service has been established
bringing together the Children with Disabilities Team (including Portage) and Adults
Transition Unit under a single Head of Service in the adults service.
Improved the use of Continuing Health Care funds to ensure the NHS funds medical
health care needs rather than the local authority.
Improved the effectiveness of financial processes and Direct Payments.

Agenda Item 5

●
●
4.3.

Page 10

Commissioning of new Home Care providers.
Implementation of Supported Living Strategy.

Health and Social Care Integration Programme
The Health and Social Care Integration programme, which is largely being developed in
partnership with Sutton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), has made great progress this year.
In the last few months a consortium agreement has been finalised between the Council and NHS
partners, and a joint approach to commissioning services is being developed alongside the Sutton
Health and Care provider alliance. This will ensure greater integration between health and social
care systems, one of the key objectives of the Sutton Plan. Starting with Reactive care in April
2018, the focus has been to provide responsive integrated care at home wherever possible and to
ensure that the necessary hospital care lasts no longer than clinically appropriate.
Our aim is to simplify access to integrated, multi-disciplinary care through a single point of
communication and referral. The operating model has been designed with staff, service users and
stakeholders to ensure it meets the needs of Sutton residents. Residents will continue to be
involved as implementation and mobilisation gets underway.
Those accessing care will see teams work together to provide a personalised, joined-up response,
using the same information, care records and processes. This should mean people don’t have to
repeat themselves and receive the right care, quickly, in the best setting. The day to day leadership
and management of staff working in the alliance will be provided by an Integrated Management
Team, with representation from each provider organisation.

4.4.

Development of the Sutton Plan
The Sutton Plan has continued to progress over the past year. Partners1 across the borough have
been working on four key areas to improve outcomes for residents as follows:
●

●

Providing early help to young families at risk of disadvantage (Perinatal Infant Mental
Health Network): With support from the Sutton Plan this has moved from a network of
professionals with a shared interest, but no formal remit/funding - to an established, funded
network providing training and information. A conference taking place on 21st November 2018
has been planned to share learning and expertise more widely with professionals.
Domestic Abuse Transformation Board: The Sutton Plan partners represented on the
Transformation Board have adopted a multi-agency DA strategy. The Board has also been
working to create thematic subgroups with clear remits and terms of reference - for example, a
1

There were 23 partners in the original cohort: Amicus Horizon, Arts Council, Carshalton College,
Clarion Housing Group, Crown Agents, Environment Agency, Epsom & St. Helier University NHS
Trust, Institute of Cancer Research, Jobcentre Plus, London Borough of Sutton, London Councils,
London Fire & Rescue, Metropolitan Police, Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust, South London
Partnership, South West London & St. George’s Mental Health NHS Trust, Successful Sutton
Business Improvement District, Sutton Centre for the Voluntary Sector, Sutton Clinical
Commissioning Group, Sutton College, Sutton Housing Partnership, Sutton Primary Heads Group,
Sutton Secondary Heads Group, Volunteer Centre Sutton and Wandle Housing.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

cross-sector DA housing group has recently launched with support from the nationally
recognised Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance.
●
●

Age Friendly Borough: Age UK Sutton has been confirmed as lead partner and work is
being scoped and progress is expected in quarters 3 and 4.
Working together to make the borough a more attractive place to live, work and play
for all age groups, maximising our potential for economic growth and forestalling the
potential ‘missing generation.’

Central to the principles underpinning this work2 and the workstreams above, is ensuring that
residents have been engaged with throughout this process - this includes those that regularly
engage with public services or take part in formal consultations, and those that do not. This
work has continued as part of the Sutton’s Future consultation.
In addition to this, work has been conducted to look at how the Sutton Plan partners can best
work together in the future. This has involved:
●
●
●
●

4.5.

Shifting the vision to implementation: considering how LBS and partners should translate
ambition to collaborative practice?
Considering what current capacity and capability do the Sutton partners have to support
new ways of working and where are the gaps?
Thinking through what system infrastructure needs to be built? For example governance,
data sharing agreements and new methods of shared service delivery.
A review and validation event was held with partners in the summer and further events
are planned to share progress with a wider group of members and partners over the next
three months.

Digital Programme
The Digital team were the lead for a recent successful South London Partnership bid to the
Business Rates Retention Strategic Investment Pot. Our ‘Internet of Things’ bid was awarded
£4m. The project will pilot the best way of delivering a sustainable multipurpose ‘Internet of
Things’ network of physical devices, vehicles, other items embedded with electronics, software,
sensors and connectivity. This initiative will enable these objects to connect and exchange data
across Council boundaries to assist with the improvement of existing, and development of
innovative new services.
The team have also led the implementation of the new ‘MyAccount’ service which went live on
the 22nd of August. This is a new account for all council tax and benefits customers (around
20,000 active users) as well as Landlords (around 700 users). The new system replaces the
previous system (Gandlake) entirely and will ensure a more streamlined integration with the
councils back office systems and website.

2

Five Sutton plan principles as agreed by partners are: Think Sutton first, Work across sectors, Get
involved early, Build stronger, self sufficient communities, Provide seamless, coordinated services

Agenda Item 5

Page 12

Our Digital Infrastructure work has been progressing, with a key focus on delivering full fibre
broadband to social housing estates in the borough. This is an exciting opportunity to enable
fibre broadband providers to connect our social housing tenants to gigabit speed connectivity,
supporting digital inclusivity.
Sutton’s Smart Place project focuses on finding innovative solutions, including the use of digital
technology, to improve the lives of people in the borough. We have launched an app in
partnership with BetterPoints Ltd to encourage residents to travel more sustainably through
earning rewards for active travel which can be swapped for High Street vouchers or donated to
charity. We ran a virtual Treasure Hunt for families in 5 of the borough parks over the summer to
encourage outdoor activity and use of the parks. The use of the app, including its upcoming
developments around air quality alerts will raise people’s awareness of air quality.
Following our successful procurement process the Smart Place project is also working with an
SME called MySense to plan a pilot for the use of innovative assistive technonology to support
older people to live independently. This will be an opportunity to understand how home-based
sensors, and wellbeing wearables can be used to monitor someone’s health and identify any
signs of decline or causes for concern so that information, advice and support can proactively
be offered when it is needed.
We are also working with an organisation called Ogenblik to explore a solution to support young
adults with learning disabilities to travel independently. This has been facilitated through the
Digital Catapult’s ‘Things Connected’ programme which connects SMEs to local government to
solve real challenges.
4.6.

Domestic Abuse Transformation Programme
As part of the Sutton Plan, public service partners in Sutton have identified the ambition of
“refocusing our energies on the victims and perpetrators of domestic abuse”. A multi-agency
Domestic Abuse Transformation Programme (DATP) was launched in 2017, with the aim of
improving the response to domestic abuse (DA) at all levels and significantly reducing DA in
Sutton in the long term. The programme is overseen by a strategic ‘Transformation Board’ with
representation from a broad range of organisations and sectors including the council, police,
voluntary sector, fire service, NHS, housing and schools. The vision for the programme is that:
“By 2020, Sutton will be known as a place where domestic abuse is not acceptable. This
means that:
●
●
●

People affected by DA will feel empowered to come forward early, knowing there is safe
and effective support in place.
Perpetrators will be held to account, managed effectively and supported to make lasting
change.
All public services will be working together with the community to prevent domestic
abuse from happening.”

The first year of the programme (April 2017- March 2018) was the Analyse phase, the aim of
which was to gather a strong evidence base for the programme, establishing the strengths and

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

weaknesses of the current approach in order to identify opportunities for improvement. The
majority of this evidence has been drawn from two key activities, namely:
●

●

A ‘mapping and gap analysis’ exercise, undertaken by Standing Together Against
Domestic Violence (a national charity commissioned to support the programme in a
consultancy role).
A research project lead by the council’s communications team (with support from
Standing Together). This included both qualitative and quantitative research activities,
and resulted in a research report summarising respondents’ views and understanding
about domestic abuse in Sutton.

The findings from this research have informed a multi-agency strategy and corresponding
delivery plan, which were adopted by the Safer Sutton Partnership Board on 20th June 2018,
and aim to address the response to DA at all levels - from awareness raising, to targeted early
intervention, to specialist and crisis services. The delivery plan has been endorsed by Standing
Together and will form the basis of DATP work over the next two years.
The council has committed £1.25m to the programme over three years (2017-20), with the aim
of achieving an effective, sustainable and resilient coordinated community response (CCR).
This financial investment will allow the Sutton Plan partners to invest in tackling domestic abuse
in a transformative way, and is an important enabler of the work we will do over the next two
years. However, the foundation of an effective CCR cannot be resources alone, and strong
relationships and new ways of working will also be fundamental to transformation.
4.7.

Outcome Based Commissioning Review Programme
In December 2017, CMT agreed to a programme of 4 outcome-based commissioning reviews,
to look at the overall vision and outcomes for the Council, and to recommend how best to
commission services to achieve those four main outcomes. This programme commenced in
May 2018 and will run for 18 months, with each review run as a project as part of the overall
programme.
An outline resource was also agreed to deliver each review. This will cover additional staffing,
backfilling of posts and service support where needed. This totalled £400K and is expected at
this time to be incurred over 3 years as follows: £100K 2018/19, £200K 2019/20 and £100K
2020/21. £60K of costs have been incurred so far which is for external consultancy support on
an interim basis to cover the initial 2 Lead Commissioner roles for the Being Active and Making
Informed Choices reviews while the Commissioning Unit is being set up, and to design an
overall programme plan.
It is recommended that this £400K is funded from the earmarked strategic investment reserve.

5.
5.1.

Council Performance April to September 2018 - Corporate Balanced Scorecard
The Corporate Balanced Scorecard is a selection of indicators which feed into, and represent
the council’s priorities. The scorecard also includes summary information on the workforce,
risks, finance and customer care.

Page 14

Agenda Item 5

5.2.

Now that the Council has adopted a new Corporate Plan, a new Corporate Balanced Scorecard
is also required. Work is currently underway to align performance indicators with the new
council priorities and construct the scorecard within Pentana. The Performance and Finance Q4
report (18/19) will introduce the new scorecard and will report on progress against the newly
selected indicators. Monthly service level performance reporting to Directorate Management
Teams continues as usual, monitored at end of month performance ‘challenge’ sessions.
Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan

5.3.

The 2018/19 Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan sets out the activities that are intended to
contribute to the delivery of Corporate Plan priorities.
Key Achievements (April - September)
Being Active
●

●

Progress on the delivery of London Cancer Hub (LCH) has continued. The Vision is to create
the world’s leading life-science district specialising in cancer research, drug, discovery,
treatment, education and enterprise. The Council has completed the acquisition of a further 2.2
hectares of land from Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust, and is in the process of purchasing a
further 0.4 hectares from the Trust before the end of this calendar year. All Wave 0 projects
(Harris Federation Secondary School, Institute of Cancer Research’s Centre for Cancer Drug
Discovery and the Royal Marsden’s ‘Maggies Centre’) have commenced construction.
The Council has agreed its preferred delivery model and procurement strategy to appoint a
deeloper partner who will work with the Council to deliver the LCH vision. The School Expansion
Programme (SEP) was initiated to ensure that the Authority fulfilled its statutory duty to provide
sufficient school places for Sutton children. The SEP has successfully delivered sufficient
additional school places for each admission year since 2009. Overall the programme has
provided:
○
○

4,445 permanent additional primary school places
1,926 permanent additional secondary school places at existing schools

●

Sutton Central Library - the official opening of the newly reburbished library took place on 17th
May 2018. This houses new facilities including the cafe available to both the public and staff.
The library is being used by students who have a dedicated area allowing them to study for
exams. Additional upgrades to the space include a family history centre, a children’s library on
the ground floor and new study spaces and quiet zones.

●

Whitehall Museum- Whitehall Historic House (formerly known as Whitehall Museum) is a £1.1
million Heritage Lottery funded project in the London Borough of Sutton and has undergone
substantial reconfiguration and restoration. Following on from this. it re-opened its doors to the
public in June 2018 and is accessible to more people as 70 per cent of the museum’s interior
and its landscaped garden are now accessible to wheelchair users. Working with the client and
the volunteers who run the building, a series of gallery, café and exhibition spaces were
designed, supplemented by two extensions which house a museum shop, lift and accessible
bathrooms. While the historic fabric did not lend itself to environmental improvements a few

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

sensitive alterations have been made where they could demonstrate a significant benefit. For
example, switching to LED lighting enables a reduced yearly carbon emissions with a goal of
reducing this even further in the future.
●

Beddington Park Project - As part of the requirements for the Heeritage Lottery Fund (HLF)
funding at the completion of the physical works stage of the Beddington Park Project, a Green
Flag Award must be applied for and achieved. In order to get an idea of any issues that might
affect this achievement, officers applied for the award a year early. Following independent
judging on 25th June 2018 the Park was awarded its Green Flag Award on 5 July 2018 with
some helpful and positive feedback for next years application. The flag itself is now flying
proudly over the newly refurbished children's playground.
Living Well Independently
●

Sutton Council and Sutton Housing Partnership (SHP) launched their new shared
communications service as part of their commitment to working closely together to deliver the
best possible services for council tenants and leaseholders in the borough. SHP is the
council’s arms-length management organisation (ALMO), created in 2006 to manage its
housing stock. The organisation provides landlord services to Sutton Council’s 6,000 social
housing tenants and 1,500 leaseholders.

●

As explained earlier the On-line Revenue and Benefits Portal implemented by the Evolve
team whose purpose is to engage and empower residents through technology and to make
improvements in the way we work. Following implementation it’s now easier for residents to
engage with the Council without having to call in or visit our offices, and the project will
generate £12K of savings over three years through the change in system, and also
anticipates a reduction in contact to the Revenues and Benefits Contact Centre.
Keeping People Safe

●

Domestic Abuse Transformation Programme - As noted earlier in this report, the Sutton Plan
partners represented on the DA Transformation Board have endorsed a multi-agency
strategy and corresponding delivery plan which defines the key programme priorities over the
next two years. The delivery plan was strongly endorsed by Standing Together Against
Domestic Violence (supporting the programme in a specialist consultancy role) and work is
now underway to implement it. A particular focus of work over the last three months has been
the launch of a DA ‘Housing Operational Group’ in Sutton; in line with best practice and with
support from the nationally recognised Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance (DAHA) the group
will support public and private sector housing organisations to improve their practice in
relation to domestic abuse, to share learning and ideally to undertake the full DAHA
accreditation process. SHP have already committed to undertake DAHA accreditation in the
near future and are encouraging others in the local sector to follow.
Smarter Ways of Working

●

Introduction of the Commissioning Unit (Phase 1) - This was concluded to time with go live
from 1 September 2018 and remaining internal appointments to management posts

Agenda Item 5

Page 16

completed in the first two weeks of September. The creation of the Unit will deliver agreed
savings within People’s Directorate through bringing together commissioning and quality
assurance teams from People’s, CEX and Public Health and create the capacity and
resource to support the delivery of Outcomes Based Commissioning. Staff were involved in
developing the vision and design of the Unit and a number of staff have gained opportunities
for career progression during implementation.
Customer Care
There have been 109 formal complaints received in quarter 2 with 98% of these being
resolved at stage 1 and 2% escalated to stage 2. The complaints figures by directorate were
as follows:
Directorate

Number of Complaints

Responses within time

Chief Executive’s

1

1 (100%)

Resources

11

10 (91%)

EH&R

65

25 (38%)

Peoples - Children’s

24

8 (33%)

Peoples - Adults

9

8 (89%)

In relation to People’s Directorate complaints, this quarter has seen a significant improvement in
Adults performance following a detailed review and analysis. A similar piece of work is
underway in Children’s and it is anticipated that a similar improvement will be seen next quarter
in that area. Similarly in EH&R the issues underlying performance this quarter are being tackled
and improvements are anticipated next quarter.
There were 953 Member enquiries, 89% were for EH&R. The table below breaks these down
by directorate:
Directorate

Number of Member Enquiries

Responses within time

Chief Executive’s

21

17 (81%)

Resources

47

38 (81%)

EH&R

847

675 (80%)

Peoples - Children’s

32

20 (63%)

Peoples - Adults

27

23(85%)

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

In addition to the above, there were 450 FOI requests received in quarter 2 (an increase on the
372 received in quarter 3) compared with 403 in the same quarter the previous financial year.
Of these 450 requests 81% were responded to within time.
Workforce (excluding schools & colleges)
The Council’s workforce size has continued its long term decrease in the light of continued
reductions in funding and also staff moving to different delivery models through re-organisation the most recent addition being the introduction of the Commissioning Unit (Phase 1), which
went live in September 2018.
The Workforce Equalities Report together with our Gender Pay Gap Report which identified a
gap of 5.4% in favour of men has led to work being carried out with the involvement of the
Women’s Network to identify any barriers to women’s progression into more senior roles, as
well as the development of a pilot mentoring scheme for the Women’s network. We have
recently commissioned Diversity by Design to work with us, who are a consultancy that
support organisations to use diversity as a catalyst for positive change.
6.

Financial Performance - second quarter 2018/19
Revenue Budget

6.1. The latest available projected General Fund revenue budget outturn position, including
commentary on key variations, to the end of month 5 (August 2018) is set out below.
6.2. The projected revenue budget outturn is for an overspend of £1.539m (1.1%). This is broken
down as follows:

Directorate

2018/19 Latest
Budget

2018/19
Projected
Outturn

£’000

£’000

2018/19 Projected Outturn
Variation
£’000

%

Chief Executive’s

20,975

20,585

-390

-1.9%

Environment, Housing and
Regeneration

32,653

33,285

632

1.9%

People Services

92,601

94,795

2,194

2.4%

Resources

20,991

20,544

-447

-2.1%

-18,755

-19,205

-450

-2.4%

Non-Service Budgets

Agenda Item 5

Core grants
Total

Page 18

-7,115

-7,115

0

0.0%

141,350

142,889

1,539

1.1%

Chief Executive’s
6.3.

Chief Executive’s is currently projecting an underspend of £390K. The majority of the underspend
(£286K) is in the Wellbeing area and relates to new Health funding secured for Inclusion Centre
clients. There are also underspends in Customer, Commissioning & Governance (£71K) and
Public Health (£32K) mainly due to staff vacancies.
Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate

6.4.

EH&R is projecting an overspend of £632K at month 5. There are a number of ongoing actions in
place to curtail this overspend, which will materialise by the end of the current financial year.

6.5.

There are various pressures within the Directorate which are impacting on the projected outturn
position, including reduced Highways income arising from increased compliance by Statutory
Authorities and reduced income arising from a reduced number of crossover applications.
Proactive and reactive highway maintenance budgets are therefore under review to bring revenue
overspends in to budget alignment.

6.6.

The Directorate overspend also includes £80k costs, mainly associated with clear up and legal
costs in relation to unlawful encampments. This also includes a one-off cost of £28k to remove a
large flytip (not associated with the encampments).

6.7.

In addition, the Directorate is reporting lower than expected off-street parking income, mainly
related to reduced income from the Times Square Car Park, due to reduced activities and footfall
in that part of the Town Centre. The introduction and planned opening of more units within the
Times Square Shopping Centre site is being monitored, as this will improve income generated
through the attached car park
People Directorate

6.8.

The People Directorate is currently reporting a £2.194m overspend. This is detailed in
paragraphs 5.9 to 5.14.
Children’s Safeguarding
In 2018/19, this service is currently projecting a £1.9m overspend, the reasons for this are set out
in paragraphs 5.9 to 5.11.

6.9.

Leaving Care (LC), including Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) - £1.7m
overspend
Forecast spend for 2018/19 is based on existing numbers of clients in LC but with increasing
numbers of UASC under 18 referrals, now at 32 (12 new clients since 1 April), but not likely to

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

increase any further in the short term due to reaching current maximum number of Home Office
rota referrals. The average number of UASC clients supported over the last 3 years has been
around 20, this 60% increase in numbers therefore could not have been predicted. Approximately
50% of direct client costs for UASC clients can be claimed through the Home Office UASC grant.
Projections also include an estimate to allow for new responsibilities in supporting Care Leavers
aged 21-25.
6.10.

Placements - no projected variance
A budget saving of £1m is planned to be delivered through reduced use of high cost placements
and seeking alternative more cost effective accommodation. To achieve the saving the Council
must reduce the average number of placements across the year so there will be a focus on
monitoring the actual numbers and trends of high cost residential placements, the number of
clients in high cost residential placements has reduced from 20 to 15 in the last quarter and there
are no projected variances expected for this budget currently. Projectons therefore expect the
£1m budget saving target to be achieved in full.

6.11.

Adoption Allowances, Special Guardianship and Residence Orders - £0.2m overspend
The current level of spend indicates that a similar variance in these areas of spend is expected to
that recorded in 2017/18 (£0.2m). This will be tracked across the remainder of the year. Increased
spending in this area is more desirable than on placements due to providing a lower cost option
with improved outcomes. Spending on placements will decrease as the amount spent on Special
Guardianship continues to increase.

6.12.

Education
The service is currently reporting a £430K overspend for the General Fund based on reprofiled
savings estimates provided by the SEN transport service. The service is reporting a revised
forecast saving of £342K against £772K target in 2018/19 with the remaining savings moving into
the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years over a three year programme.
This is in part because of growing demand. The SEN target transport savings were based on
Education Health and Care plans (EHCPs) remaining in the region of 1,550 (2017/18) where in
fact they have increased to 1,658 as of August 2018. Whilst the underlying assumption on
demand has proved ambitious, the service has demonstrated cost avoidance. The proportion of
young people with an EHC plan that LBS/Cognus provided travel assistance to has dropped from
an average of 42.3% in 2017/18 to the current rate of 39.3% in 2018/19 (as of July 2018).
Assuming this rate is maintained, this will avoid the equivalent of 40 additional pupil journeys this
year through a more robust application of the Council’s transport policies. Although an estimate
only, based on the current average costs of SEN transport (£9.9K per pupil), circa £400K of costs
will have been avoided this year as a result.
As well as increasing demand, there have been a number of other issues the service have
encountered including:

Agenda Item 5

●

●
●

6.13.

Page 20

Fewer savings from the revised post 19 Transport policy than originally estimated - for
example, whilst the service has worked with parents and YP to phase out SEND
transport for post 19 pupils, support through the use of Independent Travel Training has
been deployed to enable that change - this has delayed potential savings.
Independent Travel Training (ITT) is working but on occasions the service has needed to
negotiate a longer lead in time to introduce ITT which has has reduced forecast savings.
Some headway has been made in improving the usage of vehicles, but there were a
larger number of late applications this year than usual (resulting from LBS requiring
reapplication) which has led to less efficient routes. Transport service will undertake
another exercise during the autumn term to rationalise routes further. Officers are
considering options that may be available to increase savings in 2018/19 to cover the
pressure identified above. To a certain extent the ability for the service to accelerate
savings will be limited by any underlying growth of EHC plans for the remainder of the
year.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)
The DSG had an overall in-year underspend in 2017/18 with a small deficit carry forward to
2018/19 of £40k. In 2018/19, the service is currently reporting a net underspend of £218K though
there are a number of reasons to be cautious at this stage. High needs budgets are under pressure
both for Sutton and more widely across London. To mitigate the financial risk this presents, Cognus
Ltd are undertaking a review of individual education, health and care (EHC) plans to identify
existing demand and options for meeting this demand. The Council has a statutory responsibility to
provide services as specified in EHC plans and as a result there is risk that costs will exceed
budget available if significant demand for additional support is identified through the review.
Cognus Ltd will need to explore how we can meet identified needs in a cost effective manner to
ensure the financial risk is mitigated as far as it can be. This is being monitored throughout the
year.

6.14.

Adult Social Care
Adult Social Care is currently reporting a net underspend of £83k. Early indication shows that the
overall client numbers are in line with outturn 2017/18 (1,830 clients) versus (1,828 clients) in
month 5 and versus 2018/19 budgeted number of (1,831 clients). The client numbers do fluctuate
between long term placements and domiciliary care but the total overall spend is expected to come
within the Adult Social Services budget for 2018/19 which was constructed around the 2018/19
client activities.
The Better Care Fund is currently forecasting a £486K joint overspend. Under the risk share
agreement with Sutton CCG, the Council is liable for 34% of any overspend, so that currently
amounts to £165K which has been included in the table in 5.2 above. This mainly relates to an
overspend currently being forecast by the Community Equipment Services of £240K. The Council
has asked the provider for a detailed explanation for this forecast. Based on information from
previous years, there could be a credit due to the Council later in the year for recycling some of the
equipment but this will not befactored in the projections until is confirmed. Also, the Start Service
(Reablement) is forecasting a £261K overspend due to increased demand in the service. These
overspends are partially offset by minor underspends in other areas.

Page 21

6.15.

Agenda Item 5

Resources Directorate
Resources is currently reporting a net underspend of £0.447m. The reported underspend is
predominantly within Finance and the Business Services teams. Finance has achieved savings of
£84K above the target built into the budget. In addition there are presently vacancies being held in
a number of finance teams and some of these will be released permanently to deliver budget
savings in the 2019/20 budget.
Business services accounts for £0.231m of the underspend the largest of this is within the
Revenue and Benefits service. The Authority is in receipt of an additional £106k New Burdens
Grant. The service is also estimating to and additional £0.185m in Housing Benefit Overpayments.
The Conservative majority opposition has requested an Opposition Group Leadership Business
Support Officer. This new post has been evaluated at Grade 7 in the People Plan. It is currently
estimated at 0.6 FTE or 21.6 hours which is a cost of £25K in a full year. The requested post is
being recommended to be funded from reserves in 2018/19. For future years, the post will be
funded through a growth bid to be approved as part of the 2019/20 budget setting process.

6.16.

Non-Service Budgets/ Core grants
There is currently a forecast underspend of £0.45m on the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
which is included within the Non Service Budget. This is as a result of a review into the Council’s
approach to providing for debt repayments which resulted in a reduction to the level of annual MRP
contribution. This reduced charge was identified as an underspend as part of the 2017/18 outturn
position, but was too late to be incorporated into the 2018/19 budget setting process.
Capital

6.17.

The projected capital outturn after the proposed adjustments is shown in the table below:

Directorate
Chief Executive’s

Latest Budget

Projected Outturn

Projected Variation

£’000

£’000

£’000

2,378

2,378

0

Environment, Housing
and Regeneration

60,471

52,567

-7,904

People

39,406

35,104

-4,302

Agenda Item 5

Resources
Total

Page 22

14,184

14,184

0

116,439

104,233

-12,206

6.18.

The variations shown above relate to under or over spends on individual schemes resulting in an
overall projected net underspend on the programme currently of £12.206m. The main variations
are firstly as a result of rephasing to future years. Variations consist of £1.019m on the Mandatory
Disabled Facilities Grant that is usually delayed as claims are committed but are unlikely to spend
by year end and £7.5m on the temporary accommodation programme as there is still a need to
await returns of tenders and receive further feasibilities on suitability of sites. There is also
rephasing of £1.293m on Town Centre Masterplan Delivery to fit the current development plan, and
£0.872m for the Parking Strategy because of delays due to decision not to consult during Belmont
by-election as part of purdah. Further rephasing of £0.750m for Education Capital Maintenance is
due to a number of larger schemes that will not commence until 2019/20, £0.362m on Schools
Devolved Formula Capital following school updates of profiled spend, and £1.119m on Primary
School Expansion mainly on the expenditure for the new primary school in Hackbridge.

6.19.

Further reductions in expenditure and resources comprising of £3m for Sutton Decentralised
Energy Network which was rephased to 2018/19 but is not required as the company will be
meeting future costs directly; a reduction of expenditure and grant from EFA on Secondary School
expansions of £2.111m mainly for the new Secondary School at Belmont after project costs have
been reviewed; and a reduction of £0.914m on the LA New Build projects to reflect a decision to
switch to affordable units resulting in a reduction in shared ownership sales.

6.20.

The reductions have been partially offset by additional requirement to fund the Property
Acquisitions in 2018/19 of £4.607m by switching from HRA to General Fund borrowing as reflected
in the HRA Business plan, and a further tranche of land acquisition for the London Cancer Hub of
£2.368m.

6.21.

It should also be noted that over the life of the four year budget period there is a potential
overspend of £1m on the project costs for the Estate Regeneration Programme. This forecast
overspend is on preliminary costs in the assessment (by external advisers and residents) of Estate
Regeneration proposals and delivery mechanisms. The existing MHCLG grant is not sufficient to
cover these additional costs. Further work is needed to review costs, assess if further grant is
available and analyse the proposed business cases to see if these costs can be absorbed within
individual projects.

6.22.

The Committee is asked to approve the proposed capital budget adjustments as set out in
Appendix B. These reflect rephasing of work between years and the utilisation of new capital
resources into the programme. The figures in the table above assume that these changes have
been approved.

Page 23

7.

Agenda Item 5

Corporate risk register

7.1.

An overview of the key corporate risks including any new risks or changes to existing risks will be
provided in the Q3 Performance and Finance report.

8.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

8.1.

These are covered in the report.
Legal

8.2.
9.

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report
Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 18/19

B

Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments 18/19

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 18 October 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Area improvement and renewal schemes, codesigned with residents and businesses delivered in
key priority areas across the borough:

1

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents A new area renewal scheme for Clockhouse

2

3

6

including shopfront and community space
improvements and explore opportunities relating to
development of Alexandra Gardens

Q4
Assessment made of possible
interventions (NB potentially housing
interventions also there is no funding in
place or identified for shop front or
public realm inprovement)

Do,Review
Continue the Beddington improvement programme
including major TfL scheme on Beddington Lane and
related local improvements

Completion of the TFL Major Scheme
at Beddington and related local
improvements

Q4

Investment in the Boroughs’ heritage and protect it
for future generations, working with local community
groups to:

Continue the Sutton HAZ projects
successfully in partnership with
Historic England, Successful Sutton
and CADHAS in accordance with the
Delivery Plan

Q4

Plan

Plan, Do

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Q4

Localised plan / programme of activity
compiled and agreed (NB should be
noted there is no funding in place or
identified for shopfront or public realm
improvement)

Deliver our town centre Heritage Action Zone (HAZ)
enhancing and protecting our listed buildings

Being Active Citizens

Quarter to be
completed

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant Director
Housing, Planning
and Regeneration

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Plan, Do

Sutton High Street Partnership
Q4
Scheme in Conservation Area (PSiCA)
historic buildings renovation
progressed.

Plan, Do

Numbers of visitors to Whitehall and
Honeywood museum

Restoration and protection of heritage properties in
Carshalton and Cheam, including a management
plan for each area
Protect and renovate our historic buildings, by
continuing to bid for Heritage Lottery funds to
maintain and improve our historic buildings

Page 25

4

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Plan

A new area renewal scheme for Rosehill in St Helier
including shopfront and public space improvements

Being Active Citizens

5

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

2019

Agenda Item 5

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Continue to regenerate council estates providing a
better environment for current and new residents,
including the 7 potential regeneration estates named
in the Sutton Local Plan 2016-31:

7

Being Active Citizens

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Plan, Do

Beech Tree Place
Benhill
Chaucer Gardens
Collingwood Estate
Elm Grove
Rosebery Gardens
Sutton Court

Quarter to be
completed

Assistant Director of
Housing, Planning
and Regeneration

Reduction of Litter and Fly-tipping

Q4
Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning

The effective contract management of the borough’s
The physical environment street cleaning contract

8
Being Active Citizens

is maintained and
improved for all residents

9

Delivering a programme of education and
enforcement to encourage people to look after their
local area

Do

Increase in FPN's for Littering and Fly- Q4
tipping

Invest in transport infrastructure across the borough:

Do

Number of new electric vehicle
charging points

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Q4
Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Delivering our electric policy promoting electric
vehicles and providing charging points

10
Assistant Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory Services

Being Active Citizens
11

Plan

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Options paper to E&N committee

Q3
Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Deliver an electric bike scheme to encourage
sustainable travel across the borough

Assistant Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory Services

Page 26

Do

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Q4

1. Residents' steering groups
established. 2. Appointment of
Independent Tenant and Homeowner
Adviser 3. Progress with establishing a
High Street Engagement Hub 4.
Appointment of options appraisal
consultant 5. Agreement on proposed
delivery model 6. Estate Charter
template agreed with Residents'
Steering Groups.

All options and proposals are subject to feasibility,
viability and resident support.
Continue to reduce litter and fly tipping across the
borough through:

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Being Active Citizens

Lead Outcome

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Sub Outcome

12

13

Being Active Citizens

Measure/s of Success
Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Continue to work collaboratively with Transport for
London and London Borough of Merton to develop
the Tramlink extension to Sutton including a
comprehensive public consultation of the different
options for the route of the tram

Plan, Do

Implementation of the Local Plan to deliver:

Do

New regeneration areas
New housing development
The physical environment Retail, office and industrial development and
employment opportunities
is maintained and
improved for all residents Infrastructure provision
The protection of green space
Reducing pollution and climate change and improving
transport

Quarter to be
completed

Consultation on Options scheduled for Q3
8 weeks from 15th October

Discussion and communication with
Q1-4
delivery partners / investors / Members
/ residents on various options for the
delivery of the Local Plan.

Being Active Citizens

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant Director of
Housing, Planning
and Regeneration

Morden - Sutton - Do,
Waddon -Worcester
Park - Plan,

Morden - Sutton - Obtain approval of
the detailed design;
Waddon-Worcester Park - Establish
proposed route (possibly in 19/20)

Morden - Sutton Q3/4, WaddonWorcester Park Q4
Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Deliver two new Quietways working with TfL and

14

Responsible
Assistant
Director

linking Morden underground station and
The physical environment Sustrans,
Sutton town centre and a second scheme from
is maintained and
Waddon to Worcester Park
improved for all residents

Plan

15

Complete options review and bid for
funding

Q4

Informal second round of consultation
on existing phase, then formal Traffic
Management Order consultation;

Existing phase Informal Q3, TMO
Q3 and 4,

Page 27

Implement selective road improvement schemes to
reduce congestion and benefit all road users across
the borough including specific schemes to:

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Assistant Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory Services

Better connect the Wandle Trail cycle route
A more cohesive, borough-wide approach to parking Existing phase - Do,
management to enable a more intelligent approach to
enforcement:
Extensive and ongoing consultation with residents
and business on parking issues and different options
The physical environment to address issues

16
Being Active Citizens

Next phase - Plan

New phase - informal first consultation New phase - Q3

is maintained and
improved for all residents
Informal second round of consultation
on existing phase, then formal Traffic
Management Order consultation;

Next phase - Plan

New phase - informal first consultation New phase - Q3

17
Schemes implemented to address parking issues
across the borough

Existing phase Informal Q3, TMO
Q3 and 4,

Assistant Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory Services

Agenda Item 5

Existing phase - Do,

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Increase the amount and range of activities in our
parks:

Analyse

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)
Progress Parks and Open Spaces
Strategy review

Quarter to be
completed

Being Active Citizens

20

The physical environment Work with partner organisations, Friends Groups and Do
Local Committees to increase external funding
is maintained and
improved for all residents contributions to deliver improvements to parks

Q1

Q4

Do

Retention of the Parks Police service

Q4

23

The physical environment Sponsorship of new trees
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Reduction of anti-social behaviour
incidents in Parks

Do

Number of new trees planted

Q4

22
Being Active Citizens

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning

Page 28

Action plan for delivery of Parkland
developed

Maintain parks policing and commitment to
supporting Friends Groups, organised activities and
keeping parks safe and free of anti-social behaviour
Support community tree-planting schemes with the
aim of achieving over 2,000 new trees across the
borough:

Number of bids submitted and amount Q4
of funding secured

Plan

Deliver one of the largest Parkland areas in London
through quality landfill restoration in Beddington

21

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning
Do

Amount of funding secured

Q4

Plan

Adoption of the new Environment
Sustainability Strategy

Q4

Seek funding for planting through planning and other
funding opportunities
Develop and embed our new Sustainability Strategy
to:

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning

Ensure that sustainability is considered in every

24
Being Active Citizens

25

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Review and develop a Parks and Open Spaces
Strategy

18

19

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

The physical environment aspect of the council’s work
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities
Promotion of the Solar Together
project

Continue to seek out opportunities to improve the
sustainability of the borough

Do

Q4

Assistant Director of
Transportation,
Highways and
Regulatory Services

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Aim to become the top UK borough for recycling:

Being Active Citizens
27

The physical environment
is maintained and
improved for all residents Keep Household Re-Use and Recycling Centre

Maintain the recycling performance of
50% of Household Recycling

Q4

Do

Sucessful Implementation of HRRC
Policy Review

Q4

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning

Reach the recycling target of 70% of
materials at the HRRC
Plastic Planet campaign implemented

Q4

Being Active Citizens

Commission and deliver a new Energy Recovery
Facility on behalf of the South London Waste
The physical environment Partnership and deliver sustainable renewable
energy via SDEN, our decentralised energy network.

Plan, Do

ERF to be operational

Q3

Deliver Phase 1 of the SDEN

Q4

Undertake modelling for potential
expansions

Q4

Commencement of the SUDS in
schools project

Q4

is maintained and
improved for all residents

Being Active Citizens

Deliver more affordable housing to support the
borough’s needs:

31

TBC

The physical environment action plans
is maintained and
improved for all residents

Produce, consult and publish the Air
Quality Action Plan

Plan

Number of homes (i) with planning
permission (ii) under construction (iii)
completed.

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning
Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Page 29

Do
Communication campaigns to encourage people to
reduce waste and increase the amount they recycle

Improve air and water quality within the borough
through the development and implementation of

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities
Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning

Q4

Use our council-owned company Sutton Living Ltd to

Being Active Citizens

The physical environment build more council homes across the borough
is maintained and
improved for all residents
Directly purchase property to use as temporary
accommodation Supporting Sutton Housing
Partnership to achieve excellence Ensure effective
Implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act

Successful outcome to bid to
GLA/MHCLG for grant/additional
borrowing headroom
Do

Number of additional homes
purchased. Negative impact of new
legislative requirements mitigated.

Assistant Director of
Housing, Planning
and Regeneration
Q4

Agenda Item 5

32

Quarter to be
completed

Do

(HRRC) free for residents and and ensure waste is
managed sustainably and the costs of waste disposal
reduced

28

30

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Management of waste collection, street cleaning and
parks contracts to ensure effective delivery of the
service

26

29

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

School places are provided for a rapidly increasing
population through the School Expansion
programme:

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Do, Review

Progress the delivery of a new secondary school at
Belmont , linking our new school in Belmont with the
Institute for Cancer Research for great career
opportunities

33

Review,Plan

34

Do, Review

Being Active Citizens

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

Q4

The use of the High Needs Block will
be reviewed.

Q3 2018

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND
(KH)

Encourage a university campus in the borough with
the support of the Institute of Cancer Research (a
constituent college of the University of London),
explore options for student accommodation and an
expanded academic offer on site

Plan

Improve partnership working with schools to provide
high quality education across the borough and to
tackle issues encountered by our young people:

Plan and deliver

Partnership working to reduce self-harming and
ensure young people have the skills and good mental
health to achieve at school

All placements have agreed reviews
completed in partnership with young
people and parents

Q4 2019

Annual reviews completed with case
officers and / or quality assured by
case officer or an EP

Q4 2019

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND

More children and young people
educated locally where appropriate,
Q3 2020
and increasing from the current 85.1%
to be in line with Outer London
Average of 90.8%

Ensure that the Local Offer for those with Special
Educational Needs and/ or Disabilities (SEND) is
improved so that needs are met locally, wherever
possible

36

There are sufficient school places
planned and commissioned so that all
young people resident in the Borough
that apply for a school place in
September 2019 are reasonably
offered one on national offer day

Responsible
Assistant
Director

The High Needs Block budget planning Q4 2018
will better reflet the needs in the Local
Area.

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

35

Quarter to be
completed

Commence procurement of developer
partner to support detailed
masterplanning of site

Q4

Hold regular multi agency meetings to
disucss young people at risk. Safety
plans captured and shared. Mental
health awareness sessions held with
schools. School nurses provide drop
ins in schools to provide safe place.
Pilot programme involving emotional
and mental health wellbeing
practitioners to be rolled out.

Q4 2019

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND

Page 30

Being Active Citizens

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Deliver more employment opportunities and
apprenticeships, particularly for Sutton’s young
people, by attracting new businesses into the
borough:

37

38

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Plan, Do

Being Active Citizens

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

Q4

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Do

Ensure a proportionate level of
referrals and starts on programme for
LBS residents

Q4

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Develop a Young Entrepreneurs Scheme

TBC

Scheme developed and approved with Q4
clear links to local business.

Plan, Do

No of YP applied for apprentiships
(breakdown across industry).
No of YP appointed in apprenticship
roles.
Increase in No of YP emplyed by the
council (baseline of 2 in 2018/19).

Q3

Develop Apprenticeship Schemes specifically linked
to local businesses
Improve opportunities for looked after children,
providing more apprenticeship places for care
leavers.

Being Active Citizens

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

Use our enhanced library service to grow the readers Do
of the future and narrow the digital divide

Numbers of vistors and feedback
gathered, including the Summer
Reading Challenge

Q4

Being Active Citizens

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

Take a whole family approach to addressing issues
for young people, and embed the Family Group
Conference service to empower families to find their
own solutions to emerging problems.

Number of FGC
Number of FGC that prevented
escalation to statutory services

Q4

Being Active Citizens

Invest in our young
people to ensure they
have opportunities to
make the best start in life

Work with the Institute of Cancer Research, The
Plan, do, review
Royal Marsden and Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust
to deliver world-class, research-led cancer treatment,
with significant benefits for the local and wider
London economy.

Launch procurement for developer
partner to help bring forward the
scheme

Q4

Being Active Citizens

Residents have access to
and take up good quality
employment opportunities
within the Borough

Do

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND
Assistant Director of
People &
Organisation
Development
Assistant Director of
People &
Organisation
Development

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Agenda Item 5

45

No of YP in Supported Internships and Q1 2019
progressing in to work or
apprenticeships

Page 31

Pilot scheme designed and approved
by stakeholders, plan for
implementation in development

Ensure that young people with SEND have supported Plan, Do
employment and apprenticeship opportunities that
prepare them for adulthood

44

Q4

Plan, Do

40

41

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Monitor the South London Partnership Health and
Work programme and ensure coordination with local
employment support programmes

43

Work with local businesses to identify
skill needs and and support their
apprenticeship aspirations

Quarter to be
completed

Work to ensure all our young people are in education,
work or training

39

42

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Ensure a vibrant town centre through a phased
strategy for delivery of Sutton Town Centre Master
Plan:

46
Being Active Citizens

50

51

52

53

Being Active Citizens

Being Active Citizens

Being Active Citizens

Q4

TBC

Promotion of cultural events and
number of opportunities for street and
pop-up arts events.

Q4

Provide support packages for small businesses and
entrepreneurs and ensuring a skilled local workforce
through our Skills Match programme.

N/A

COMPLETED.

N/A

Continue to deliver the local time banking scheme,
Sutton Giving, to actively encourage people to give
their time and skills.

Do

Time and skills given during the course Q4
of the progamme

Strengthen partnership relationships across the

Do

Recommissioning of VCSE
Q4
Infrastructure Support contract
Meet targets for volunteering within
that contract
Agreement with Sutton Plan partners
next steps for Sutton Plan partnerships
and projects

Being Active Citizens

Being Active Citizens

Being Active Citizens

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development
Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

The skills match programme finished in
2016

borough, including with community groups, the
Residents feel less
socially isolated and have voluntary sector and the wider public sector.
access to, and take up,
volunteering activities

Residents feel less
socially isolated and have
access to, and take up,
volunteering activities
Residents feel less
socially isolated and have
access to, and take up,
volunteering activities

Quarter to be
completed

Develop indicative scheme for the
Civic Centre site to provide focus for
the Sutton Town Centre masterplan
and enable procurement of developer
partner

Improve the marketing of current programme of
activities within the town centre

Residents have access to
and take up good quality
employment opportunities
within the Borough
Residents feel less
socially isolated and have
access to, and take up,
volunteering activities

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Ensure there is accessible and good quality support
for carers across the borough.

Do, Review

Recommissioning of carers contract

Q4

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Develop community resilience models which enable
the third sector, carers and local communities to
promote arrangements which meet local needs and
reduce the need for statutory services

Do, Review

Delivery of community cohesion
Q3
project as part of Rosehill area renewal

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Provide a high quality modern library service:

Do

Number of exhibitions and events.
Numbers attending events. Good
satisfaction ratings.

Residents feel less
socially isolated and have Deliver a cultural hub for Sutton and a new gallery
space in Sutton library
access to, and take up,
volunteering activities

Q4
Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

Page 32

49

Plan,

Residents have access to
and take up good quality Improve the Sutton High Street with new markets,
employment opportunities improved facilities and exciting temporary arts events
within the Borough

47

48

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

54

Making Informed
Choices

Sub Outcome

Wide range of accessible
sources of information
and advice available at
the right time

55

Further development of shared
Customer services, procurement and
implementation of new digital platform

Q4

Develop Information and Advice services that help
local people stay well and lead full lives, as their
circumstances change:

Pilot new approaches for the delivery
of Information and Advice services to
inform the Making Informed Choices
review

Q4

Making Informed
Choices

Wide range of accessible
sources of information
Integrate the information and advice we provide with Plan
and advice available at
other agencies so that information and advice is
joined-up
the right time

58

Integrate the information and advice we provide with
other agencies so that information and advice is
joined-up

Making Informed
Choices

Making Informed
Choices

Wide range of accessible
sources of information
and advice available at
the right time
Wide range of accessible
sources of information
and advice available at
the right time

Ensure that all families in the borough have equal
opportunities through access to good Information,
Advice and Support Services, with an improved and
co-produced Local Offer website for Children and
Young People with SEND.

Do

Create opportunities for meaningful resident
involvement in decision making across the council
through effective community engagement, reviewing
the role of Local Committees

Do

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Accessible Local Offer for young
people leaving care

Q1

Review of Local Committees.
Integration of Communications,
Engagement and Insight function
following the creation of the new
Commissioning Unit

Q4

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Residents can make wellDeliver healthy eating programmes
informed choices for
Tackle obesity and mental health issues
sustained change
Encourage more Sutton schools to adopt the Daily
Mile programme

Analyse

Agreed plan in place with partners for
developing school-wide approach to
promotion of healthy lifestyles

Q4 2019

Director of Public
Health

Agenda Item 5

Making Informed
Choices

Review of all services that contribute to Q3
residents making informed choices
with a view to ensuring that residents
can access the information and advice
they require

Assistant Director of
Environment
Commissioning
Work with schools to deliver and promote healthy
living habits in young people:

61

Do, review

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Simplify access to Information and Advice services
so that local people can easily access the information
they need, when they need it

Simplify access to Information and Advice services
so that local people can easily access the information
they need, when they need it

60

Quarter to be
completed

Improve council customer services, by reviewing how Plan, Do
local people contact the council and how their
requests for services are handled. Our approach will
encourage people to do more for themselves and
each other - making the most of resources available
in the community

57

59

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Page 33

56

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Maintain the Life Centre as a place promoting public
protection and fire safety:

62

Making Informed
Choices

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Plan

Residents can make well- Enhance the life skills tours provided to schools
Enable additional interactive workshops and schools
informed choices for
learning materials
sustained change

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)
Agreed plan in place for developing
and enhancing the life centre and
library offer

Quarter to be
completed

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Q4

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Enhance the Life Centre’s function as a community
facility and first class library

Leisure services meet the needs of Sutton residents,
enhance the services provided by other providers,
and increase health and wellbeing:

Analyse

Review of opportunities for supporting
older people within the Borough to be
physical activity and healthy

Q4
Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

63
Offer our older residents more opportunities to keep
active and healthy

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care
Review

Agree plan for leisure services to
ensure provision meets the needs of
all Sutton residents

Q4

Plan

Agreed plans for community wellbeing
projects developed in 2 areas of the
borough

Q4

Review our Leisure services
Build on the success of Sutton Hello and the
Wallington Community Wellbeing Group to work with
community groups to roll out similar schemes across
the borough

65

66

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can make well- Work with the CCG to embed social prescribing
within GP practices as part of the next phase of
informed choices for
Sutton Health and Care
sustained change

67

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can make well- Deliver the Better Contacts project in partnership with Do
London Fire Brigade
informed choices for
sustained change

68

Living Well
Independently

69
Living Well
Independently

Improve the resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live full and
independent lives

Improve the resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live full and
independent lives

Analyse

Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

An agreed pilot in place across at least Q2 2019
one GP locality
Deliver training to all LFB watches.

Q4

Continue to monitor referrals made
and provide support.

Become the first borough recognised as an AgeDo
Friendly Borough by Age UK and continue to develop
our status as a Dementia-friendly borough.

Resources and personnel agreed
Initial engagement and consultation
with stakeholders completed
Sutton specific aproach and plan
drafted

Continue to integrate Health and Social Care
services by:

Reactive model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Continuing the successful delivery of Sutton Health
and Care

Do

Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

Director of Public
Health
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Q4
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance
Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance
Director of Public
Health

Page 34

64

Making Informed
Choices

Residents can make wellinformed choices for
sustained change

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome
Living Well
Independently

Improve the resilience of
residents and
Sub Outcome
communities
so they can live full and
independent lives

70

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Living Well
Independently

Improve the resilience of
residents and
communities
so they can live full and
independent lives

% at home after 91 days, % requiring
no ongoing care, no of users through
the service

Q4

Plan, Do

Develop business case with SHC
partners for implmentation of satellite
store, equipment and telecare retail
outlet and assessment centre in high
street location.

Q3

Enable people to live longer, more fulfilled and
happier lives in the community through the use of
innovative assistive technology to support individuals
and their carers, to both increase people’s
independence and their ability to self-support

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care

Assistant Director of
Wellbeing

Do

Increase utitlisation of centre to 60%

Q4

Better allocated funding for Local
Q4
provision in Sutton, to ensure that
Children and Young People with SEND
are well supported in preparation for
adult life

Review use of the Sutton Inclusion Centre
Design support and provision to ensure that young
people with SEND are prepared for adult life and
become as independent as they can.

74

Residents are supported
to live safely and
Independently in their
community

Ensure that all eligible adults in need of social care
receive a personalised service, taking a partnership
approach to delivery.

Review

Living Well
Independently

75

Residents are supported
to live safely and
Independently in their
community

Implement a revised commissioning model for
housing support services in the borough to make the
best use of resources, maximising people’s
independence so that they do not need residential
care

Do

Living Well
Independently

Reassessment of the way in which statutory Adults
services tasks are currently organised. A particular
focus will be on:

Do, Review

Living Well
Independently

Residents are supported
to live safely and
Independently in their
community

Practice standards
NHS funded Continuing Healthcare
Developing workforce capacity

Ensure reviews target met or
exceeeded

Q4

Successful outcome to tendering
process in Q3. New contract in place
by April 2019.

Q3, Q4

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND
(SR)

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care

Adults services restructured into locaity Q3
teams and practising strengths based
approaches. support integration with
community health services in 3
localities

Assistant Director of
Housing, Planning
and Regeneration

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care

Agenda Item 5

73

Residents are supported
to live safely and
Independently in their
community

Review/Plan

Living Well
Independently

76

Quarter to be
completed

Page 35

72

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Review
Maintaining our excellent START rehabilitation
programme
Develop our support for people to remain
independent and in the community for as long as
possible, reducing the use of nursing care and
hospital admissions:

71

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Increase mental health support for young people:

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Review

Tackle self-harming and depression in secondary
school students

77
Keeping People Safe

Work with partners to
ensure that local
safeguarding needs are
identified and addressed

Review

78

Deliver Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy:

79

Delivery of Community Safety Strategy 2017-20

80

Maintain or reduce number of criminal offences per
1,000 population

81
82
83

Keeping People Safe

Work with partners to
ensure that local
safeguarding needs are
identified and addressed

Do, Review

Quarter to be
completed

Continue to manage performance of
Tier 2 CAMHS contract (including self
harm treatment pathway) Implement
resource and staffing structure
changes required as a result of
additional LBS & CCG funding.
Extend current contractual
arrangement and plan for
recommissioning.

Q1 & Q2

Implement resource and staffing
srructure changes required as a result
of additional LBS & CCG funding.
Extend current contractual
arrangement and plan for
recommissioning.

Q1 & Q2

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Delivery against the Community Safety Q4
Delivery Plan

Total Criminal Offences Per 1000
Population

Q4

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Do, Review

Resident perception of Crime &
Disorder as measured by SENSOR

Q4

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Review

Number of reported DA offences

Q4

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Review

Repeat victimisation DA incidents to
MARAC (%)

Q4

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Do, Review

% Police Repeat ASB Callers (Open
Code)

Q4

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Increase number of domestic abuse referrals and
increase reporting on domestic abuse outcomes
Reduction in number of repeat domestic abuse
incidents

Reduction in the number of repeat ASB victims

Assistant Director of
Safer & Stronger
Communities

Do, Review

Increase % of people whose perception of crime and
disorder has improved

84

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Page 36

Champion and support improved mental health
services

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Strengthen multi-agency working to improve
outcomes for children, young people and families
experiencing domestic abuse and violence.

85

Keeping People Safe

87

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Deliver the edge of care London social impact bond

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Maintain high quality residential and nursing care
establishment provision locally.

88

89

Keeping People Safe

Do

Positive Families Partnership - 75% of
young people remain out of care

Q4

TYS able to evidence their invest to
save model

Q4

As above

Q4

Access to high quality intensive interventions that
would not be viable to commission on a stand-alone
basis

Do

As above

Q4

Do

Maintain our position as one of the top London
boroughs for hospital discharges
Do

Ensure a strong role in local health care

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

80% of Care Homes are rated good or Q4
above by the Care Quality
Commission

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Reactice model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care

Reactice model moving to BAU,
Q4
development of Preventative and
Proactive models, successful transition
of Children's Community Services to
in-house.

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance
Director of Public
Health

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Agenda Item 5

Keeping People Safe

DA specialist Safeguarding Advisor
Q1
recrutied to and embededd with a
delivery plan linked to improving
practice
Develop multi Agency DA MASH
Q2
meeting twice weekly = No of MASH
mtgs, No of partnership attendance,
Q4
No of children receiving appropriate
response
Develop a commissioning specification
ready to go to market that is part of DA
Transformation fund - measures being
determined

Do

90

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Quarter to be
completed

Young people remain with a primary caregiver

Pursue opportunities for further integration of adult
social care, health services, Clinical Commissioning
Group, Children’s Services and other partners:

91

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Page 37

Keeping People Safe

Plan

Work with partners to
ensure that local
safeguarding needs are
identified and addressed

Reduce the number of young people becoming
looked after:

86

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome
Keeping People Safe

Services are redesigned
and ensure
vulnerable
Sub Outcome
residents are supported
and kept safe

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Plan, Do

92
Ensure a strong Local Area Partnership that enables
the borough to have a comprehensive Local Offer
that promotes high quality outcomes for children and
young people with SEND.

93

Keeping People Safe

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Develop a revised transition procedure, process and
guide for young people and families.

Review, Plan, Do

95

96

97

Keeping People Safe

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Keeping People Safe

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

- Reduction in EHC Needs
Q4
Assessment requests (ie because of
the effectiveness of prior involvement
of professionals)
- Timeliness of person-centred advice
for an EHC Needs Assessment
- Accuracy and relevance of
Q3
information on the Local Offer Website
Refreshed transition procedure in
place and operational, published on
website

Q4

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Assistant Director of
Adult Social Care

Delivery of the improvement plan with
targets met

Q4

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding
& Director of public
health

Continue to deliver the Troubled Families agenda
which includes tackling issues associated with
poverty, housing, criminal activity, and education by
taking a multi-agency approach
System review of commissioned services with a
focus on early help and prevention of statutory
intervention that is aligned to locality teams

TBC

Review of Children's Centres

Q4

Implement LAC Commissioning Strategy
recommendations to reduce the cost of placements
and improve placement processes.

TBC

Increased inhouse foster carers
leading to reduction in the use of
residential placements
More competitive priced fostering,
residential and semi independent
provision
Implement new process for managing
placement processes

Q4

Build, maintain and restore relationships through
implementing a Restorative Practice Model across
children’s social care.

Do

Production of a delivery plan that
achieves its priorities

Q4

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Page 38

Keeping People Safe

Services are redesigned
and ensure vulnerable
residents are supported
and kept safe

Quarter to be
completed

Assistant Director of
Education and SEND
Redesign Early Help Services across the council and TBC
partners, with jointly commissioned evidence-based
strategies for early intervention:

94

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Deliver the second phase of the digital programme
through focusing on exploitation of new platforms, a
review of high cost and high volume customer
journeys and taking opportunities to create a ‘smart
place’ including:

98

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
Plan, Do, Analyse,
Review

Delivery of Smart Place initiatives

Smarter Ways of
Working

Re-design services to
increase efficiency and
utilise digital opportunities
wherever possible
Review, Do

99
Continued modernisation of library network

Quarter to be
completed

Complete delivery and evaluation of
Smart Place Air Quality pilot

Q3

Complete delivery and evaluation of
Smart Place Independent Living pilot

Q4

Approach for testing and identifying
solutions to Smart Place Independent
Travel challenge agreed

Q3

Approach for Smart Place Domestic
Abuse Challenge agreed

Q3

Staff floor walking as routine.
Consortium go live to new system
implemented

Q4

Continue to re-design service areas to deliver greater
efficiencies and new ways of working
Plan
Improve the Planning Service’s customer service and Analyse, Review
ensure that new ICT platform is utilised to its full
extent

Finale project and ensure system is
operating as expected.

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Wellbeing
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Q3

Number of visitors visiting planning
public access

Re-design services to
increase efficiency and
utilise digital opportunities
wherever possible

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Number of customers signed up to the
public access
Q4

Page 39

List of prioritised service areas aligned Q3
to the new Digital Platform delivery.

100

Smarter Ways of
101
Working

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Assistant Director of
Digital and ICT

Q4
New model for delivery of customer service function
delivered. Including:

102
Smarter Ways of
103 Working

105

Deliver shared customer contact
centre with Kingston and new
Customer Service team structure

Q1

Shared customer contact centre with Kingston and
new Customer Service team structure
Re-design services to
increase efficiency and
utilise digital opportunities Digital platform business case to replace our legacy
CRM
wherever possible
Launch of Customer Access Strategy

Review

Finalise digital platform business case
to replace our legacy CRM

Q1

Plan

Launch Customer Access Strategy

Q2/Q3

Ongoing monitoring of new KPIs

Q2/Q3

New outcomes performance framework with focus on Review
first time resolution, reducing avoidable contact and
enabling channel shift across services

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Agenda Item 5

104

Review

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Development of Commissioning Support Unit with

106

107

109

110

Plan, Do

Smarter Ways of
Working

Re-design services to
new model for council wide Commissioning and
increase efficiency and
Contract management.
utilise digital opportunities
wherever possible

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation through
the Smarter Council
programme to make a
significant contribution to
the council’s savings gap

Continue to explore new delivery models for a range
of services including staff spin outs, local authority
trading companies, shared services and social
enterprises as and when appropriate

Plan

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation through
the Smarter Council
programme to make a
significant contribution to
the council’s savings gap

Ensure appropriate and consistent governance of
shared services and other new delivery models,
including a review of current arrangements:

Plan, Do

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation through
the Smarter Council
programme to make a
significant contribution to
the council’s savings gap

Independent review of constitution to ensure our
overall governance remains fit for purpose for the
council’s commissioning and service delivery
arrangements

Analyse, Plan

Increase income from the investment property
portfolio through acquisition and adopting a more
commercial approach.

Review, Do

Smarter Ways of
Working

Deliver an agreed
programme of
transformation through
the Smarter Council
programme to make a
significant contribution to
the council’s savings gap

Effectively manage high value and transformative
projects and programmes, ensuring appropriate
scrutiny and challenge through the Corporate
programme management office:

Updated OD Strategy

Smarter Ways of
Working

Develop staff so that they
have the skills to operate
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace

Quarter to be
completed

Commissioning Unit structure to go live Q2
with agreed management structure
Phase 1 Recruitment completed and
Q4
Phase 2 structure designed and
agreed
Deliver all currently agreed projects on Q4
time
Savings delivered
New projects to be fully incorporated in
current programme

Deliver all currently agreed projects on time
Savings delivered
New projects to be fully incorporated in current
programme

Delivery of Organisational Development (OD)
strategy and Workforce Strategy through Smaller
Bigger Different programme, including:

111

Plan, Do, Review

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Outcomes agreed and plans in
progress

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Q4
Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

New governance arrangements agreed Q2
with RBK for shared services

Review commissioned and
recommendations made to members

Q4

Achieve target to increase income by
£265k

Q4

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Property & Asset
Management

Do

Re launch of combined OD and People Q3
Strategy

Joint Assistant
Director of People
and Organisational
Development

Page 40

108

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)
Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Smarter Ways of
112 Working

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Develop staff so that they
have the skills to operate
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle

Develop staff so that they
have the skills to operate
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace

Q4

Plan, Do

Voluntary Infrastructure Support fund
recommissioned to meet the needs of
the sector

Q3

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Implement the council’s apprentice levy to deliver
apprentice opportunities across the authority
particularly in those areas that have historically been
difficult to recruit to.

TBC

Levy fully utilised, hard to fill posts
recruited to. Model in place.

Q4

Assistant Director of
People &
Organisational
Development

Continue to deliver improved communication,
lobbying and public affairs work across the
organisation and wider partners:

Review

Review of communications, insight and Q4
engagement functions delivered

Outcome based council wide communications plan

116

117

118
Smarter Ways of
119 Working
120

Develop staff so that they delivered
have the skills to operate
Opportunity Sutton Public Affairs and Marketing
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace Strategy delivered

Plan

Marketing Strategy developed

Q4

Campaign for improved public transport, including
N/A
buses, Crossrail and Tram, especially to help develop
the London Cancer Hub (LCH)

Dormant - the Tram consultation is
referenced in other indicators and the
focus for the Cancer Hub is the
procurement of a developer partner

N/A

Deliver the Children’s Transformation Workstream
(new operating model and workforce capability):

Do

Embedding of Restorative Practice
Q1
Review spend on advertsing to ensure Q2
effective advertising of post

Do

Integration of CAMHS in locality teams Q3

Do

Fewer complaints

Q4

Do

Development of a delivery plan that
covers core activity, ultimately
delivering a hub of excellence

Q4

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance

Assistant Director of
Customers
Commissioning and
Governance
Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Page 41

115
Smarter Ways of
Working

Responsible
Assistant
Director

All appropriate staff in the new
Commissioning Unit are able to
commission an outcomes based
service which contributes to the
Corporate Priorities

Effective and ongoing working with community
groups across the borough to understand issues and
help meet challenges faced

Smarter Ways of
114
Working

Quarter to be
completed

Do

Outcomes based commissioning

113

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Assistant Director of
Economic
Development

Increase staff retention, thereby reducing agency and

Develop staff so that they recruitment costs
have the skills to operate
Increase in multi-disciplinary teams
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace Work in an open systemic way with families and

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

partner agencies

Rollout of the Restorative Programme

Agenda Item 5

121

Measure/s of Success
Lead Outcome

Sub Outcome

Key Commissioning Activity (as in
Corporate Plan)

Implement new Adults’ social services operating
model and workforce capability:

122
Smarter Ways of
Working

Develop staff so that they
have the skills to operate
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace

Current stage(s)
in the
Commissioning
Cycle
TBC

(18/19 performance indicator
for the Key Commisisoning
Activity)

Quarter to be
completed

Agency costs and usage decline from
current position

TBC

New programme approach approved
and available for delivery

Q1 19/20

Redesign of Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding Do
Operating Model:

Integration of Early Help and statutory
SW teams

Q1

Implementation of Locality Model for Children’s
Social Care and Safeguarding

An embeded L&D programme of
Restorative Practice

Q2

Integrated CAMHS practitioners

Q3

Management information report to be
produced to show comaprisons from
2019 to 2018

Q4

Q3

Joint Assistant
Director of People
and Organisational
Development

Increase staff retention, thereby reducing in agency
staff and recruitment cost

Plan

123
Rollout of new Learning & Development Programme

125
Smarter Ways of
Working

Develop staff so that they Reduce the number of team changes for children,
have the skills to operate young people and their families
in a smaller but more
entrepreneurial workplace

Review

Review of Transition points

Reduction in statutory work and costly placements

Review

Review of Top 20 Spend
Implementation of new panel proocess
Reduction in CIN
Reduction in CP
Reduction in LAC
Q3

Reduction in unsuitable high cost placements

Review

Review of Top 20 Spend
Q2
Implementation of new panel proocess Q3

Do

Reduction in CIN
Reduction in CP
Reduction in LAC

126

127

Q4

128

Increase in Family Group Conference activity which
correlates to decreases in CIN, CP and LAC cases

Q3

Joint Assistant
Director of People
and Organisational
Development

Assistant Director of
Children's Social
Care & Safeguarding

Page 42

124

Responsible
Assistant
Director

Agenda Item 5

Outcomes Based Commissioning Plan 2018/19 (draft)

Recommended Capital Budget Adjustments
Directorate

Scheme
No

Scheme

Appendix B
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

NET
CHANGE
£

Rephasing and Virements of Capital Expenditure
EH & R

C003

Temporary Accommodation Unallocated

-5,600,000

5,600,000

0

EH & R

C021

Assembly Walk - Temporary Accomodation

-1,910,000

1,910,000

0

EH & R

E018

Mandator Disabled Facilities Grant

-1,018,638

1,018,638

EH & R

E145

Town Centre Masterplan Delivery

-1,293,000

443,000

EH & R

E255

Area Wide Parking Scheme

-872,000

872,000

PEOPLE
PEOPLE

L011
L112

NDS Devolved Formula Capital
Capital Maintenance

-362,000
-750,000

362,000
750,000

0

0

0
0

-11,805,638 10,955,638

850,000

0

0

Sub total

0
850,000

0
0

Rephase programme as need to wait for return of tenders and further feasibility
on suitable sites
Budget needed for planning and feasibility for Assembly Walk, balance planned to
progress in 2019/20
Grants approved in year will not always be completed in year therefore budget
commitment rolls forward.
Budget rephased to future years to fit with development plans
Budget rephased into 2019/20 because of delays due to decision not to consult
during Belmont by-election as part of purdah.
Budget rephased into 2019/20 following school updates of profiled spend
Rephase £750k to 2019/20 due to larger projects unlikely to start until 2019/20

New Resources into the Programme
C003

8-12 Throwley Way - Temporary Accommodation

47,000

47,000

EH & R

C108

Council House Stock

10,000

10,000

EH & R

C160

Property Acquisition HRA

EH & R

C161

Property Acquisition GF

EH & R

E062

Contaminated land

EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
EH & R
PEOPLE

E145
E174
E179
E180
E271
L011

Town Centre Masterplan Delivery
Hackbridge OLF Project
Sutton Station Gateway
Sutton Decentralised Energy Network
London Cancer Hub - Land Acquisition
NDS Devolved Formula Capital

PEOPLE

-648,000
5,255,000

-57,000

-89,000

-794,000

8,257,000 3,423,000

16,935,000

-89,000

-89,000
90,000

10,000

-89,000

-89,000

L113 - L116 Primary School Expansion

-1,119,000

903,000

74,000

-142,000

PEOPLE

L118

Secondary School Expansion

-2,111,000

148,000

29,000

-1,934,000

PEOPLE

L119

SEN School Expansion

-115,000

146,000

PEOPLE

L120

SCOLA Works

PEOPLE

L138

Early Years Capital

PEOPLE

L139

Children Centre - Victor Seymour School

Sub total
Total Adjustments

-89,000

140,000
-1,000
-3,000
-3,000,000
2,368,000
-267,000

31,000

202,000

202,000

35,000

35,000

-82,000

-82,000

789,000

9,398,000 3,358,000

-89,000

13,456,000

-11,016,638 20,353,638 4,208,000

-89,000

13,456,000

Agenda Item 5

40,000
-1,000
-3,000
-3,000,000
2,368,000
0

Use of balance of Extension & Deconversion grant towards project
Private Contribution to fund Sainsbury/Gasworks site towards Collingwood MUGA
Project
Reprofile of Property Acquisitions and switch between HRA and General Fund
borrowing
Reprofile of Property Acquisitions and switch between HRA and General Fund
borrowing
Balance of budget from general resources not required as no high risk sites
identified
Use of Historic Income Grant to fund High Street Crossroads Conservation Area
Balance of budget from general resources not required as scheme complete
Balance of budget from S106 not required as scheme complete
Sum switched to long term loans
Additional borrowing to fund next phase of land purchase
Capital Devolved Grant reduction in allocation
School expansion programme profiles amended and revised funding agreed from
EFA and Basic Needs to latest tracker
School expansion programme profiles amended and revised funding agreed from
EFA grant for Free School to latest tracker
School expansion programme profiles amended and revised funding agreed from
EFA and Basic Needs to latest tracker
Additional Basic Needs grant needed for Lift replacement and fire alarm works
Balance of budget to be funded by Basic Needs Grant to reflect switch of funding
in 2017/18
Balance of budget from Revenue not required as scheme cost less than
anticipated

Page 43

EH & R

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Community Infrastructure Levy: Review of Charging Schedule,
Revision of Regulation 123 List and options for Neighbourhood CIL.

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Jayne McCoy

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Collette Willis, Planning Officer, 020 8770 5377

Corporate Plan
Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●
●

Date:

29 October 2018

Making informed choices
Smarter ways of working

Open

Signed:

Date:

17 October 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report sets out recommendations with regard to the review of the Council’s Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule and the Regulation 123 List, and proposals for the
governance of CIL receipts to be spent in consultation with the local community.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree that the council continues with its current CIL Charging Schedule (index-linked) rather
than produce a new Charging Schedule.

2.2

Agree to review the CIL Charging Schedule with the Local Plan review due in 2023.

2.3

Agree to public consultation on a draft revised Regulation 123 List (see Appendix B).

2.4

Agree to review the Regulation 123 List on a regular basis to ensure it remains aligned with the
council’s wider priorities.

Agenda Item 6

Page 46

2.5

Agree to allocate 15% of CIL receipts to the neighbourhood portion where that CIL is generated
by new development, except in areas with an adopted neighbourhood plan where the allocation
will be 25% of CIL receipts.

2.6

Task the Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Strategic Director of Resources and the Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business
Committee and Lead Member for Finance to (a) review and consider the governance
arrangements for allocating and spending the neighbourhood portion of CIL receipts; and (b)
report back to the Strategy and Resources Committee with a preferred option.

3.

The Community Infrastructure Levy

3.1

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was introduced in April 2011 as a tool to deliver
infrastructure to support the development of a Local Authority area, and can fund a wide range
of infrastructure including transport, flood defences, schools, hospitals and other heath and
social care facilities. The Strategy & Resources Committee agreed the Borough-wide list of
strategic infrastructure projects “the Regulation 123 List” to support development in May 2013.
Full Council agreed an adopted charging schedule of £125 per square metre for convenience
retail and £100 per square metre for market housing on 3 March 2014, which came into effect
from 1 April 2014. CIL is payable on commencement of development which meant that the first
receipts were only received from late 2016, with a total of £4.2m received to date.

3.2

The CIL charging schedule

3.3

3.4

Background
The council’s current CIL Charging Schedule is based on evidence prepared in 2012 (the Sutton
Community Infrastructure Plan and CIL Viability Assessment). Government guidance advises
charging authorities keep their charging schedules under review to ensure they remain
appropriate and respond to evolving economic conditions. Following the adoption of Sutton’s
Local Plan in February 2018, it is considered appropriate to review the CIL charging schedule
(and Regulation 123 list) as the Local Plan has been through independent examination which
found the policies concerning the Borough’s infrastructure needs to support growth over the
Plan period (to 2031) to be sound, as they were supported by an updated Infrastructure Study
(2017). The financial viability consultants, Aspinall Verdi, were appointed to undertake an
assessment of whether charging more and/or charging for additional development types would
have positive or negative impact on the viability of development coming forward in Sutton.
Issues
As required by the CIL Regulations, the council applies an indexation rate (linked to the all-in
tender price cost from the RICS’s Building Cost Information Service and updated every quarter)
to CIL charges which captures price increases to build costs between the time when the
charging schedule came into force and when planning permission is granted. At the time of
writing indexing has effectively raised the current CIL charges referred to in para 3.1 to £156 per
square metre (convenience retail) and £130 per square metre (market housing).

Page 47

Agenda Item 6

3.5

Aspinall Verdi considered the impact of changing the CIL charging schedule across a range of
development types (including care homes and retirement housing, storage and distribution
warehouses and research and development facilities to potentially capture the London Cancer
Hub developments), which took into account:
● current policy requirements set out in the Local Plan, including requirement for 35%
affordable housing in private residential development schemes
● development costs
● uplift in land values
● the index-linked Mayoral CIL, currently £28.88 per sqm on all uses except health and
social infrastructure

3.6

The results of the viability assessment are set out in Table 1 below:
Table 1: Viability Assessment Findings
Council’s Question

Aspinall Verdi Assessment

For residential (C3 - for
planning use classes, see
Appendix D), will the council
get more income from using
the current indexing or
revising the charging
schedule?

The viability testing shows that the bulk of development is
coming forward as mixed-use development and not stand alone
residential. The stand alone residential scenarios are showing
to be more viable than mixed-use, but even then, in some
scenarios, development is on the margins of viability with the
current CIL charge index linked. The mixed-use scenarios are
less viable because of higher BCIS build costs compared to
stand alone residential and the drag on viability having ground
floor commercial. There is less scope to charge more on
brownfield sites as they already have a favourable value, but
with a relatively lower return from development than a
greenfield site which means that raising CIL charges may
negatively affect viability. Current indexing will produce more
income.

For elderly accommodation
(C3), will the council get more
income from using the current
indexing or revising the
charging schedule?

Elderly accommodation is marginally viable and any increase in
the existing use value would make it unviable. Due to the
marginal nature of viability, there is no clear justification to
increase the C3 charge further than that being achieved
through indexation.

For convenience retail (A1),
will the council get more
income from using the current
indexing or revising the
charging schedule?

Current indexing will produce more income. The convenience
sector has been in decline over the last few years; rents and
yields have fallen whereas build cost continues to rise.

Are developments for
comparison retail (A1) viable if
CIL is charged?

Larger format and smaller format stores in Sutton town centre
are viable with the Mayoral CIL but this assumes the
redevelopment of office or industrial premises. If the
redevelopment occurs on a retail site, development is unviable.
Small format development is currently unviable in other centres.
It is recommended that seeking CIL is not appropriate.

Agenda Item 6

Page 48

Are developments for care
homes and retirement homes
(C2) viable if CIL is charged?

There is no scope for any CIL charge as build costs are much
higher than C3.

Are developments for offices
(B1a) viable if CIL are
charged?

We have carried out Employment Studies for LB Lewisham and
LB Bromley and offices in these areas are not viable by a large
margin. Build costs in these areas are comparable to LB Sutton
and rents are even lower. Office development in LB Sutton is
not viable and there is no scope to collect CIL

Are developments for research There is no scope for CIL. Build costs in the R&D sector are
and development (B1c) viable
significant, around 40% higher than B1a offices. General
if CIL is charged?
development is unviable. Development would only come in very
special circumstance with an end user in place on onerous
terms. In addition, the issue with brownfield development
remains, with regards to the inherent value in the land.
Are developments for general
industry (B2) viable if CIL is
charged?

Our viability testing shows that general industrial development
in unviable with the Mayoral CIL and therefore there is no
scope for an additional Sutton CIL charge.

Are developments for storage
and distribution (B8) viable if
CIL is charged?

Our viability testing shows that general industrial development
in unviable with the Mayoral CIL and therefore there is no
scope for an additional Sutton CIL charge.

3.7

These findings are in line with a number of other London boroughs which have investigated
revising their charging schedule and found that their existing CIL Charging Schedule with
index-linking would generate more income than a revised Charging Schedule. Therefore, it is
recommended that there is no change to the council’s current charging schedule as this would
negatively impact on the viability of schemes, in favour of continued indexation, to ensure that
Sutton remains attractive to developers.

3.8

In order to ensure the Charging Schedule continues to be set at an appropriate level, it is
recommended that a further review is undertaken concurrently with the next Local Plan review
in 2023, where decisions on the appropriateness of the council’s growth strategy can take
account of changing economic conditions, the position on housing delivery and how that
impacts on Sutton’s infrastructure needs.
Options Considered

3.9

The Viability Assessment undertaken by Aspinall Verdi modelled the impact of revising the
charging scheule on the viability of development in Sutton. The modelling showed that both
increases to the charging rate, and applying a charging rate to a wider range of development
types would make development in the borough less viable, which would have a significant
detrimental impact on housing delivery, the economy and employment.

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

4.

Revision of Regulation 123 List

4.1

Background
The 2013 Regulation 123 List expired in April 2016 during the Local Plan preparation, and
has been reviewed in light of current infrastructure needs and best practice.

4.2

Issues
The principal purpose of the list is to clarify the type of Borough-wide infrastructure that can
be funded by CIL as distinct from the planning obligations secured through Section 106
agreements, which can still be sought to make a development acceptable that otherwise
might be unacceptable, and can include both monetary and non-monetary contributions.
The CIL Regulations ensure that developers are not charged twice for the same item of
infrastructure through CIL and s106. Officers have reviewed the current Regulation 123 List
against the borough’s identified infrastructure needs as set out in the Infrastructure Study
(2017) and in the Infrastructure Schedule in the Local Plan (Appendix C). A draft revised
Regulation 123 List based on the evidence for Borough-wide infrastructure needs is
attached at Appendix B.

4.3

The collection of Borough-wide CIL is linked to the captial programme as CIL is proposed to
partly fund items of infrastructure through each four-year cycle. The current Regulation 123
list needs to align with the current capital programme to ensure that committments against
infrastructure spending can be met. The CIL Regulations do not stipulate a process for
revising a Regulation 123 List but states that changes should be clearly explained and
subject to appropriate local consultation.  Officers propose to publish a draft revised
Regulation 123 List on the council’s website and to notify those who have opted to be
registered on the planning policy consultation database. Subject to the Strategy and
Resources Committee approving the draft revised Regulation 123 List (Appendix B),
officers will undertake public consultation in November and report the results in early 2019
with a view to agreeing the list at that time.

4.4

In order to ensure the schemes and type of development identified in the Regulation 123
List remain aligned with the council’s wider priorities, it is also recommended that the list is
reviewed on a regular basis.The recommended format of the revised Regulation 123 list
updates the approach from the current list to include infrastructure that has already been
identified through previous consultation on the Local Plan and includes some flexibility in
being able to revise the list according to changing priorities.

4.5

Options considered
The council’s published Regulation 123 List identifies priorities up to 2016, and is now out of
date. Should the council’s Regulation 123 List not be amended, the council would not be able to
spend CIL monies on revised priorities, such as the Tramlink Extension as this is not identified
as a project in the current list.

5.

Governance of Neighbourhood CIL

5.1

Background
CIL Regulations allow for local authorities to spend a portion of CIL reciepts for administrative
purposes and to spend CIL reciepts on Borough-wide infrastructure identified in the the

Page 50

Agenda Item 6

Regulation 123 List. The Regulations also require that a portion of CIL receipts should be spent
in consultation with the local community, i.e. the ‘neighbourhood’ portion, see Table 2 below.
Officers recommend how the neighbourhood CIL is allocated and set out possible options for
how it could be spent to meet locally identified priorities.

Table 2: Apportionment of CIL receipts (CIL Regulations 2011)
Portion

Receipts

Process

Administrative
portion

5%

For costs including setting a charging
schedule, collection and enforcement

Neighbourhood
portion

15%
no neighbourhood
(capped at £100 per plan in place
dwelling per annum
- but index linked
from 2014)

Funding retained by council and spent
in consultation with local
communities.

25%
(no cap)
Borough
portion

5.3

70- 80 %

Can be spent on a wider range of
infrastructure than the borough portion

neighbourhood
plan adopted
Funding spent on infrastructure
identified in Regulation 123 List.

Issues
CIL Regulations require that 15% of CIL receipts be spent in consultation with the local
community, rising to 25% of CIL receipts in areas with an adopted neighbourhood plan in
place. The Government has emphasised that one of the key benefits of CIL is that by
accepting development, people will benefit directly from improvements to local infrastructure
associated with that growth. Map 1 below shows the designated neighbourhood areas in
Sutton and also identifies areas where most development is likely occur, which identifies
where the majority of CIL receipts will be raised. Of the three neighbourhood areas
designated in Sutton, Beddington North, Belmont and South Cheam and Hackbridge &
Beddington Corner, only Hackbridge and Beddington Corner have submitted a
Neighbourhood Plan, which has been subject to an independent examination. The Housing,
Economy and Business Committee agreed on the 25 September 2018 to make the
modifications to the Neighbourhood Plan as recommended by the Examiner and to proceed
to a referendum on whether to adot the plan.

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

Map 1: Local Committee Areas, Neighbourhood Areas and Potential CIL Chargeable sites
based on Local Plan Site Allocations

5.4

5.5

The CIL Regulations do not stipulate how the neighbourhood portion of CIL is allocated but
recommends the use of existing community consultation and engagement processes to
inform this. In Sutton, Local Committees provide an existing structure through which the
distribution of CIL could be managed. It is officers’ recommendation that the neighbourhood
portion of CIL receipts will influence decisions on needs-based proposals brought forward
through Local Committees for local infrastructure. The amount a Local Committee could
spend will be influenced by how much CIL is raised in that area, but, in some
circumstances, it could benefit areas near the development but across a Local Committee
boundary. It is noted that current (and future) Neighbourhood Plans do not cover the entire
area designated by Local Committee boundaries and could potentially cross the boundaries
of more than one Local Committee area.
The neighbourhood portion of CIL can be spent on anything which addresses the ‘demand
that development places on an area’. Further work is required to develop a process to
agree how community priorities are determined, the assessment criteria for prioritisation to
ensure a fair and transparent process for assessment and funding of individual schemes.
Any assessment criteria should reflect corporate priorities established through the council’s
Outcome Based Commissioning approach based on need. Table 3 sets out how potential
neighbourhood CIL schemes could be incorporated with this approach.

Page 52

Agenda Item 6

Table 3: Outcome Based Priorities - indicative Neighbourhood CIL schemes
●

5.6

5.7

Outcome Based Priorities
Indicative Neighbourhood CIL projects

Being Active:
● Improvements to / provision of open spaces /
sports facilities
● Improvements to / provision of play areas /
equipment

Making Informed Choices:
● Improvements to / provision for facilities to
promote cycling and walking, enabling people to
choose sustainable travel options
● Supporting local people into jobs and training
through employment and training support
initiatives

Living Well Independently:
● Providing safe and accessible entrances to
buildings / facilities to enable access for all
● Improvements / repairs to community facilities
(eg community halls)

Keeping People Safe:
● Lighting schemes
● Decluttering public realm to make more
accessible and safe

The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the
Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Strategic Director of Resources and Lead Members for Planning and Finance, to agree the
future governance arrangements for allocating and spending the neighbourhood portion of
CIL receipts.
Options Considered
CIL Regulations require the council to fund the ‘Neighbourhood portion’ of CIL in
consultation with the local community. The Government does not prescribe a specific
process for agreeing how the neighbourhood portion should be spent, but recommends use
of existing community consultation and engagement processes. Failure to adequately
address the allocation and governance of the neighbourhood portion could lead to legal
challenge and reputational damage to the council.

5.8

Other options for allocating neighbourhood CIL included distribution of 25% of CIL receipts
borough-wide. This would not disadvantage areas without an adopted neighbourhood plan
and would simplify the administration of this spending, but it would also be a disincentive for
local communities to prepare neighbourhood plans and could cause a shortfall in funding for
schemes in the capital programme. Further options considered were to allocate
neighbourhood CIL receipts to Local Committees based on where CIL receipts were raised.
However, it was considered that this could disadvantage areas where the impacts of
development was felt but funding would not be allocated to those areas.

6.

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial

6.2

Table 4 shows the council’s accumulated and projected CIL receipts up to the end of 2021/22
and spending so far against these sums. As explained in the report the total CIL received will
need to be split across the admin, neighbourhood and borough portions and then applied

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

accordingly. To date £753k has been applied from the borough portion against capital
expenditure which complies with the existing Regulation 123 list.

Table 4: CIL Income and Expenditure
CIL Income and Expenditure

Value

CIL Receipts 2014 to date

£4.231m

CIL Projected 2018-22

£2.442m

2016-17 CIL spend on capital schemes
(To nearest 000s: Area Wide Parking Scheme £70k; SDEN - £56k; Beddington Park
HLF £38k; Park Improvements 38k; Cheam & Belmont Public Realm £17k;
Worcester Park Public Realm 9k; Beddington and Wallington Public Realm £7k)

(£235k)

2017-18 CIL spend on capital schemes
(To nearest 000s: Beddington Park HLF £240k; Area Wide Parking Scheme £206k;
Park Improvements 28k; Sutton Area Public Realm 19k; Cheam & Belmont Public
Realm 18k; Worcester Park Public Realm £6k; Beddington & Wallington Public
Realm 1k)

(£518k)

CIL BALANCE UP TO 2022 TO BE APPLIED

£5.920m

6.3

Currently capital expenditure priorities for the council are identified as part of the capital
programme planning process. As part of the 2018/19 to 2021/22 programme, projected
resources from CIL were taken into account and used to partially fund the capital
programme. The total level of current and projected future CIL receipts being applied to the
programme is £5.920m. This assumed that the Regulation 123 list would be revised to
reflect the capital expenditure priorities identified through the capital programme.

6.4

The CIL projections are based on known CIL agreements where monies are yet to be
received. This is due to the delay between granting permission for development and when
work commences, which means that permissions recently granted may only be honouring
their CIL obligations two or three years down the line.
Legal

6.4

The legislation governing the revision, adoption, administration and spending of CIL is contained
within the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended). Government Planning Policy Guidance also provides key guidance to the
process of revising levies and Regulation 123 lists, and administering CIL.

6.5

The Government consulted on reforms to developer contributions ‘Supporting Housing Delivery
through Developer Contributions’ in March 2018. This included proposals to remove the
requirement for a Regulation 123 List and replace with an annual Infrastructure Funding
Statement which would set out how authorities anticipate using funds and how the contributions
have been used. Officers will monitor the outcome of the Government consultation and will take
into account the implications of any proposals on the work streams noted above.

Agenda Item 6

Page 54

Equalities Impact Assessment
6.6

The current CIL Charging Schedule and the draft Revised Regulation 123 List are based on
eivdence for, and information within, the adopted Local Plan which has been subject to a
detailed Equalities Impact Assessment (within the Sustainability Appraisal). The conclusions of
the EqIA on the Local Plan show that most of the council’s planning policies are predicted to
have long-term beneficial impacts on one or more of the target equalities groups within the
borough.

6.7

It is recognised that impact on equalities will continue to be assessed when developing any
proposed governance arrangement for the allocation and spending of CIL monies, to ensure the
council’s public sector equality duty under the Equalities Act 2010 is met.

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

7. Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Regulation 123 List (current)

B

Draft Revised Regulation 123 List

C

Infrastructure Schedule from the Adopted Local Plan (2018)

D

Planning Use Classes Order

Background documents
CIL Review - London Borough of Sutton, Aspinall Verdi (September 2018)
Sutton Local Plan (2018) London Borough of Sutton
Infrastructure Study (2017)
Sutton CIL Charging Schedule (2014) London Borough of Sutton

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 17 October 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

Yes

David Fellows

Equality Impact Assessment
required

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 57

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A
CURRENT REGULATION 123 LIST
Area

Specific Project (if
applicable)

Education

School place
expansion and
maintenance/
improvement works

£9.0m

Health

Health provision in
Sutton town centre

£5.0m

Sustainability

New district heating
system in
Hackbridge

£4.5m

Sustainability Flooding

Flood alleviation
schemes across the
borough

Not known

Transport

Rosehill Integrated
Transport Package

£100,000

Transport

Local Parking
Mitigation
((£240,000 to be
divided between the
six local committees)

£0.24m

Open Space

Borough-wide Play
and Activity
Provision (£619,000)
& Infrastructure
Costs (£4,697,000)

£5.3m

This estimate is based on the Priority
level of “High” from the Parks
department

Open Space

Borough-wide
improvements to
allotments

Approx
£0.7m

This estimate is based on a complete
list of allotment improvements in the
Borough provided by the Parks
department

Wandle Valley
Regional Park

Range of measures
to improve
recreational grounds

£0.78m

TOTAL

Funding
Gap

£25.62m

Comment
Funding arrangements and funding
levels for Secondary School
expansions are currently uncertain

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX B
DRAFT REVISED REGULATION 123 LIST
In accordance with Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations (as amended), the following table contains a list
of the infrastructure types and/or projects that the council may wholly or partly fund through the CIL. The list
will take effect from xx xx 2019. In determining what infrastructure should be included in the list the council
has had regard to the infrastructure required to support the delivery of the Sutton Local Plan (Adopted
2018). The council will review and update the list on a regular basis to reflect evolving infrastructure needs.
The inclusion of a project or type of infrastructure in the Regulation 123 List does not represent a
commitment from the council to fund it, either in whole or in part. The order of the table does not imply any
order of preference for the use of CIL receipts.
CIL receipts may be used to fund wholly or partly the provision, improvement,
replacement, operation or maintenance of the following infrastructure

Transport and highways, including:
●
Tramlink extension
●
Public realm and improvements to gyratory in Sutton Town Centre
●
Borough wide highways and pavements improvements
Education Facilities, including:
●
School place expansion and maintenance / improvement works
Health Facilities, including:
●
A new health centre in North Cheam
Flood alleviation schemes across the borough
Parks, Open Space and Social and Community Infrastructure*, including:
●
Borough-wide: enhancement of existing public open spaces and their facilities
●
Park improvements in conjunction with the Wandle Valley Regional Park Trust,
except where the park is funded through planning obligations
●
Borough-wide: improvements to the quality and access of play space for
children and young people
●
Borough-wide: improvements to existing allotments
●
Upgrading of David Weir Centre

Infrastructure
Schedule
Reference
From the
Local Plan
61
83

17-26

13
35-46
50
50
52
53
58

* Social and Community Infrastructure is defined in the Local Plan (p350) as: Facilities such as health
provision, nurseries, schools, colleges and universities, community, cultural, play, recreation and sports
and leisure facilities, places of worship, fire stations, policing and other criminal justice or community
safety facilities, and many other uses that contribute to making an area more than just a place to live.
This Regulation 123 list excludes the provision of infrastructure that is required to make a
development acceptable in planning terms and which meets the legal tests of Regulation 122 of the
CIL Regulations. Through the publication of this list the council therefore retains its discretion to
negotiate necessary planning conditions, s106 planning obligations and s278 of the Highway Act as
appropriate to secure such infrastructure.

This page is intentionally left blank

Table 2 – Infrastructure Schedule
Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Policy 2 of the Local Plan & ‘London Cancer
Hub Development Framework’ set out details
for the council to create a new world-class life
science hub on the sites currently occupied by
Sutton Hospital, the Institute of Cancer
Research (ICR) and the Royal Marsden
Hospital (RMH). The other landowner at Sutton
Hospital is the council, which has purchased a
portion of the land for a school.

Not known

Not known

Not known

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery

Health
1

Sutton Hospital
(Epsom & St
Helier Trust)
Cotswold Road,
Sutton Surrey
SM2 5NF

Permission for Harris Academy
(EFA) (see scheme 25 below)

ICR: north expansion
RMH: Maggies Centre

Permission (ICR funded)
Permission (RMH funded)

WAVE 1 (2018-26):
ICR: North expansion
Medical R&D
Infrastructure

Permission (ICR funded)
To be marketed (to be supported by
private)

355

WAVE 2 (2020-30):
Hospital expansion
Medical R&D
ICR internal expansion
Infrastructure

2

1. Improvement to Maternity services with
additional Clinic Rooms and Birthing units
(Growth in population over the Local Plan
period)

£315,000

£215,000

£100,000

(to be provided by private)
To be marketed (private)
The Trust advises that this project is
scheduled to go ahead in 2017/18
and is seeking other funding to
close the funding gap.

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

St Helier (Epsom
& St Helier Trust)
Wrythe Lane,
Carshalton
Surrey SM5 1AA

WAVE 3 (2025
onwards):
Medical R&D
Project to be delivered
in 2 phases
commencing in 2017
with additional Clinic
Rooms (Trust Capital
Programme and Sutton
CCG)

Proposal under consultation (RMH
and ESHT)
To be marketed (private)

Page 61

WAVE 0 (2016-20):
Secondary School

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

3

St Helier (Epsom
& St Helier Trust)
Wrythe Lane,
Carshalton
Surrey SM5 1AA
St Helier (Epsom
& St Helier Trust)
Wrythe Lane,
Carshalton
Surrey SM5 1AA

2. General Outpatient Clinic rooms (The
population growth will see demand for Clinical
consultations rise, taking into account improved
utilisation, demand will equate to an additional
6 rooms)
3. Elective surgery is projected to increase by
more than 10% over the Plan period (The
increased demand will necessitate an additional
Theatre and 6 recovery beds as well as
preparation areas).

£270,000

£185,000

£85,000

£1,860,000

£1,210,000

£650,000

5

St Helier (Epsom
& St Helier Trust)
Wrythe Lane,
Carshalton
Surrey SM5 1AA

4. A&E and Out Of Hours service (The
population increase will place additional
burdens on the A&E, Urgent Care Centre and
the Out of Hours service. These areas will need
an additional 200m2 of space)

£750,000

£500,000

£250,000

6

St Helier (Epsom
& St Helier Trust)
Wrythe Lane,
Carshalton
Surrey SM5 1AA

5. Elderly Acute Services (The increase in
population linked to longevity is already placing
additional burdens on acute medical services
which will only rise as the population grows
over the Plan period. This project will include
beds and ward-based physiotherapy services).

£1,350,000

£900,000

£450,000

4

356

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
It is planned to create 2
additional Clinic rooms
in 2018, 2023 and 2023
(Trust Capital
Programme)
Better utilisation will
take up increased
activity through to 2018
when it is planned to
create a new Theatre
and recovery beds in
2019 to serve the Plan
period (Trust Capital
Programme and Sutton
CCG)
This will be a phased
project starting in 2018
with completion in 2021
(Trust Capital
Programme and Sutton
CCG)
The project will
commence with
conversion of space to
accommodate 10
additional beds with
physiotherapy and
ancillary space (Trust
Capital Programme and
Sutton CCG)

Update on delivery
The Trust advises that this project
is scheduled to go ahead in
2018/19 and is seeking other
funding to close the funding gap.
The Trust advises that this project
is scheduled to go ahead from
2018/19 onwards and is seeking
other funding to close the funding
gap.

The Trust advises that this
project is scheduled to go ahead
from 2018/19 onwards and is
seeking other funding to close the
funding gap.

Page 62

Location

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

The Trust advises that this project
is scheduled to go ahead from
2018/19 onwards and is seeking
other funding to close the funding
gap.

Appendix C

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

7

Redevelopment
of Royal Marsden
Sutton Campus
Downs Road,
Sutton Surrey
SM2 5PT

Replacement/renewal of existing clinical
/Research facilities – to provide new facilities
for existing outpatients, medical day unit, a
rapid diagnostic centre and research facilities at
the Royal Marsden Sutton.

Approx.
£70 m.

Approx.
£70 m.

£0m

8

Sutton Town
Centre

£14.3m

Third party
developer
and central
NHS funding

Sutton CCG
will fund ongoing revenue
consequence

Radio pharmacy scheme completed

2016-onwards

Feasibility work on pharmacy and
Bud Flanagan buildings upgrade

2017-2021: Creation of
the Clinical Care and
Research Centre
(public fundraising
principally)
N/A

Project plans signed off and
fundraising effort on schedule

2018-19: Centre for
Cancer Drug Discovery

Under construction

2016-2020
(private/NHS)

St George’s Mental Trust have
relocated patients and sold the site
to Epsom and St Helier Trust and
the land now forms part of the LCH.

Options under consideration

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

10

Planning permission was granted
(B2016/73429) on 30 March 2016 for a new
Centre for Cancer Drug Discovery to allow the
ICR to develop new targeted drugs for the
treatment of cancer. The total floorspace for
the new research building is c 7,550 sqm and
1,070 sqm for the service building. The design
of this building was developed to reflect the
design principles within the 2009 masterplan for
the site.
LB Sutton and Primary Health Properties have
been discussing options for redevelopment of
the Robin Hood Lane site to provide health
facilities as part of a mixed use scheme and
this will continue to be reviewed.

Update on delivery

Page 63

357
9

SW London St
George’s Mental
Health Trust,
adjacent to
Sutton Hospital,
Cotswold Road,
Sutton Surrey
SM2 5NF
Institute of
Cancer Research
15 Cotswold
Road, Sutton
London SM2 5NG

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2017

Location

12

Hackbridge area

13

North Cheam
area

Approx £2.3
m

£5.6m

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

to be
confirmed
Third Party
developer.

to be
confirmed
Sutton CCG
will fund ongoing revenue
consequences
.

Third Party
developer

Sutton CCG
will fund ongoing revenue
consequences

Not known

Not known

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2016-2020 (private)

2016-2021 (Section
106 funding)

Update on delivery

Planning application submitted.

Works will commence shortly on
this part of the site. The provision
of the health centre was a S106
requirement of the development on
the former Felnex site.

Sutton CCG recognises the need
for additional General Practice
services in the area but no
definitive plan at present. This
scheme is therefore likely to be
delivered post 2021.

Appendix C

The scheme is to relocate the practice from a
small building to a new purpose-built modern
surgery in south Sutton, which keeps it in
walking distance of the Shanklin estate in
Belmont. The original purpose was for a larger
building however it has now been decided to
relocate only the Belmont branch of the Benhill
and Belmont surgery to the former Henderson
Hospital site. A smaller application (for 493
sqm on two floors) will be submitted.
The scheme is to relocate the existing GP
practice in Hackbridge from London Road to a
new ground floor area of the Felnex
development. The GP will move into the 565
sqm facility adjacent to the village centre and
close to the railway station. The developer is
Barratt Homes. They bought the site recently
from Schroders and all relevant permissions
have now been granted for development to
commence.
The scheme is to develop a building to
consolidate 6 practices into modern
accommodation alongside community health
services and out-of-hospital services to support
the population of North Cheam and adjoining
wards. A building has not been identified but a
floor area of 2,166 sqm on two floors each of
1,088 sqm is required. There is a potential joint
facility with the local authority. There is the
possible use of the GP centre (building or other
parts of the Cheam Leisure centre/Priory

Total Cost

Page 64

Belmont area

358

11

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery

£0.6m

Not known

Not known

2017-2022 (To be
agreed)

CCG is still seeking funding
support. Possibility of being
delivered in the first 5 years subject
to funding approval.

£2.62m

Not known

Not known

2018-2023 (To be
agreed)

Sutton CCG recognises the need
for additional General Practice
services in the area but no definitive
plan at present. Therefore this
scheme is likely to be delivered post
2021.

Crescent clinic site), which has been
designated as a development site since 2009.
Wrythe Lane
Practice

15

Carshalton area

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

The Wrythe Green surgery is a purpose-built
GP surgery built in 1992. There are 18 clinical
rooms on the ground floor that are used by
doctors, nurses, physiotherapists and nurse
practitioners. The administration offices are
upstairs. The plan is to build above the current
clinical rooms to provide further capacity (8
further rooms). This extension is included
within Sutton CCG’s Estates Strategy and will
address the issue of population growth arising
from the closure of a local practice at Wandle
Valley and the building of new houses and flats
in the surrounding area.
The plan is to develop a scheme to consolidate
the 3 existing practices in the Carshalton
Beeches area into modern accommodation with
capacity for community health services and out
of hospital services. A building has not been
identified but a floor area of 1,048 sqm over 2
floors each of 524 sqm would be required. This
plan is included within Sutton CCG’s Estates
Strategy due to the planned population
increase in the area by 2025. The three
practices are in converted semi-detached
houses that are cramped, do not meet CQC
standards and have no capacity for expansion.
The practices have identified under-capacity as
shown in the table attached based on current
list sizes. The table also indicates the capacity
required for additional population growth.

Page 65

359

14

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery

Funded by
ESFA grant

Nil

2016-2021

Stanley Park school nursery is
providing 26 nursery places within
the existing Infants school and is
planned to open 2018-planning
permission currently in progress.
The other 2 facilities are within
private accommodation and are
grant funded to be available for
September 2017.
Completed 2016

N/A

2016-2021

N/A

2016-2021

Under construction - available from
2018.
Under construction - available from
2017.
Works completed for September
2017.
School under construction as 1FE.
There is planning permission for a
further 1FE of capacity if required in
the future.
Two possible sites identified in the
Local Plan (STC4 and STC10) and
to be built by 2020.

Education

360

Nursery Schools

3 new nursery classes proposed for early years £550K for
places (for two, three and four year olds) to meet LBS nurseryidentified need (borough-wide)
other 2
schools are
privately
funded.

17

Primary Schools

18

Primary Schools

19

Primary Schools

20

Primary Schools

21

Primary Schools

Expansion of Cheam Park Infants (+15 from
2016)
Expansion of Cheam Park Junior (+15 from
2018)
Expansion of Manor Park Primary (+30 from
2017)
Expansion of Westbourne Primary (+30 from
2017)
New primary school on London Road,
Hackbridge (+30 from 2018)

22

Primary Schools

Allocate a second primary school site to meet
educational needs in the medium term to 2020.

23

Primary Schools

24

Special
Educational
Needs

Safeguard a third site for one potential new
primary school should it be required later in the
Plan period
Allocate a site at Sheen Way Playing Fields,
Wallington for a Special Educational Needs
school in the long term to 2025.

N/A

N/A
N/A

Applications have been
made to ESFA for a new
primary free school and will
be grant funded.

2016-2021

Nil

2016-2021

The third primary school is a
medium-term requirement
This is a long term relocation from
less suitable premises.

Appendix C

16

Page 66

Available
Funding

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

25

Secondary
Schools

-£54m

Grant funded
free school-

-

26

Secondary
Schools

Land at Sutton Hospital, Belmont Only
deliverable brownfield location in the borough
capable of supporting new secondary school by
2018.
The All or Part of the All-Weather Pitch and Part
of the Tennis Centre at Rosehill Recreation
Ground. Allocation of one secondary school site
to meet educational needs in the borough in the
medium term to 2020.

27

Further & Higher
Education

No costs
currently
available

Grant
funded-

None

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2016-21

2016-2021

Update on delivery
Harris Academy plan to start work
on site from November 2017
following recent grant of planning
permission with completion 2019
Greenshaw Learning Trust have
applied to establish a free school in
this location. Likely completion
2020.

Every five years water companies are required
to produce a Water Resources Management
Plan (WRMP) showing how they will meet
demand for the next 25 years. Both companies
say they will be able to satisfy demand in Sutton
until 2031 (the end of the Plan period). (Sutton &
East Surrey serve most of the borough, while
Thames Water serves a small area to the
northeast and northwest of the borough.)
Thames Water is the statutory sewerage
undertaker for the borough. They collect all
wastewater in the borough and treat it at
Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works (15%) in
Kingston; 15% in Beddington Sewage Treatment
works; and 70% in Crossness Sewage
Treatment works in Bexley. Significant

The Sutton & East Surrey Water
Resources Management Plan was
approved by DEFRA on 14 May
2014. This covers the period 20152040. The other provider, Thames
Water, received approval from
DEFRA in July 2014 for its plan,
which also runs from 2015 to 2040.

Physical Infrastructure
28

Water supply

29

Wastewater

Thames Water believe proposed
development in the borough
between 2016 and 2031 can be
accommodated, although there may
be cases where developers will
have to carry out appraisals to
ascertain whether the proposed

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

Feasibility studies yet to take place

Page 67

361

Sutton College (St Nicholas Way, Sutton;
Woodcote Road, Wallington; Carshalton College
(evening centre), Nightingale Road, Carshalton;
660 London Road, North Cheam) & Carshalton
College, Nightingale Road, Carshalton

Location

31

Development of
district heat
networks
Waste
Management

32

33

Digital
Connectivity

34

Gas/electricity

Total Cost

upgrades are planned for Beddington sewage
treatment works from April 2015 to March 2020:
odour enhancement scheme; energy and carbon
project to reduce energy use; capital
maintenance works; sludge treatment project;
water quality upgrades; restoration upgrades
following fire in power house in 2012.
Delivery of the District Heat Network – Phase 1
Phase 1
(Hackbridge & Rosehill)
£4.5m
The development of the district heat network will
utilise renewable and low carbon fuel sources
and support the ambition of achieving ‘Zero
Carbon Suburb’ in Hackbridge (extended to
Rosehill). The project will utilise waste heat from
the Energy Recovery Facility in Beddington and
existing landfill gas engines.

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Update on delivery
development will lead to
overloading of existing water/waste
water infrastructure.

£4.5m

£0

Phase 1 2017-2022
(Public Works Loan
Board)

2021-2031-(Public
Works Loan Board)

Not Known
at this stage.

Phase 2 20202030

Modern waste facility to manage south London’s
waste – the Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) at
Beddington Farmlands for use by Merton,
Sutton, Kingston and Croydon.
The council is carrying out a “Review of Digital
Connectivity” in the borough at the corporate
level. The results will enable the council to
identify areas in the borough that are deficient in
digital connectivity.
National Grid – provider for gas and electricity
transmission in Sutton. National Grid’s high
voltage electricity transmission lines are:

N/A

None

Not known

2016-2021

2016-2021

Agreement between council and
Barratt Homes for district heat
network to be delivered to the
Felnex Estate (S1) signed in July
2017. The connection of Felnex to
the District Heat Network is Phase 1
of a longer-term ambition, including
St Helier Hospital, Durand Close
and Carshalton College/LB Sutton
offices in Carshalton.
The second stage of the District
Heat Network is to expand the
network to Sutton.
Planning permission granted for
ERF facility in Beddington in
March 2014 and under
construction.
Study in 2016-2021.Works likely to
be in subsequent period.

National Grid, Southern Gas
Networks, and EDF Energy have
not identified any issues with regard
to the capacity of gas and electricity

Appendix C

Delivery of the District Heat Network – Phase 2
(Sutton town centre)

Works
funded by
providers
over lifetime
of plan.

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Page 68

Development of
district heat
networks

362

30

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)



Critical Drainage
Area 23
(Trafalgar
Ave/Hamilton
Ave)

37

Critical Drainage
Area 24 (Sandy
Lane, Cheam)

2016-2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

The council has received Local
Levy funding for updated
modelling which should be
completed by the end of 2017.
The council has funding to model
some possible alleviation
schemes in order to establish a
viable option. The next stage
would be to design and subject
to further funding deliver the
scheme.

Bid for
modelling
costs

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

It is likely that only the modelling of
schemes will be undertaken during
2016-21 although subject to further
funding a scheme may be
implemented.

Bid to review
previous
modelling
outputs.

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

More funding is required to review
previously modelled
outputs/research as previous

Scheme
costs not
known at
present.

£0 -Need to
bid for
scheme
costs

Flood risk
and
mitigation
measures
modelling:
£20k
Investigation
and
mitigation
measures

Scheme
funding
required- not
known at
present.
(see update)

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

36

infrastructure in relation to the level
of growth proposed over the Plan
period.

Page 69

Flooding
Critical Drainage
Area 22
Worcester Park

363

35

275kV line from Beddington substation
to Chessington substation in Kingston
 275kV underground cables from
Beddington substation to Rowdown
substation in Bromley
Southern Gas Networks owns and operates
the local gas distribution network in the borough.
UK Power Networks is the provider for
electricity distribution.
There is a Local Flood Risk Zone within this
Critical Drainage Area along with the surface
water flood extent as shown in the Surface
Water Management Plan (2011). The Worcester
Park Flood Alleviation Scheme has reduced the
risk of flooding from fluvial flooding as well as
reducing an element of the surface water flood
risk. Since the Flood Alleviation Scheme, there
has been no revised modelling which accounts
for the updated flood risk. It would be beneficial
to carry out updated flood risk modelling to
identify any existing flood risk areas which could
benefit from future flood reduction schemes.
There is a Local Flood Risk Zone within this
Critical Drainage Area along with the surface
water flood extent as shown in the Surface
Water Management Plan (2011). Tier 3 of the
Drain London Project is to carry out local flood
risk modelling to understand the flood risk and
investigate potential flood mitigation schemes.
As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project, a
feasibility study was carried out in 2014. The
localised modelling refined the original flood risk
extent but still revealed 1 Local Flood Risk Zone

Update on delivery

Location

Critical Drainage
Area 26 (Cedar
Road/Brighton
Road (Overton
Grange)

40

Critical Drainage
Area 27
(Carshalton
Beeches)

41

Critical Drainage
Area 28

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery

modelling:
£20k

modelling
costs

modelling did not result in bringing
forward a viable option.

Flood risk
and
mitigation
measures
modelling:
£20k

Bid for
modelling
costs

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

It is likely that only the modelling of
schemes will be undertaken during
2016-21 although subject to further
funding a scheme may be
implemented.

Investigate
and outline
design: £15k

Bid to review
previous
modelling
outputs.

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

More funding is required to review
previously modelled
outputs/research as previous
modelling did not result in bringing
forward a viable option.

Investigation
and
mitigation
measures
modelling:
£20k

Bid to review
previous
modelling
outputs.

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

More funding is required to review
previously modelled
outputs/research as previous
modelling did not result in bringing
forward a viable option.

Investigation
and
mitigation

Bid to review
previous

Post 2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

More funding is required to review
previously modelled
outputs/research as previous

Appendix C

39

and a clear flow path of surface water flooding.
A number of mitigation measures were modelled
but the results showed that none of them were
viable. The next stage is to further investigate
mitigation measures.
There are 2 Local Flood Risk Zones within this
Critical Drainage Area along with the surface
water flood extent as shown in the Surface
Water Management Plan (2011). Tier 3 of the
Drain London Project is to carry out local flood
risk modelling to understand the flood risk and
investigate potential flood mitigation schemes.
As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project, a
feasibility study was carried out in 2014. The
results of this showed a refined flood extent but
no viable mitigation measures. An additional
study was conducted in 2015 using additional
asset information collected as part of the study.
Further refinements were made to the flood
extent and a mitigation measure was identified
at possibly being viable. The next stage is to
investigate this option further and produce some
designs.
As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project,
detailed modelling was completed in March
2014, part funded by Drain London (GLA) and
Sutton council. Mitigation measures were
modelled but none proved viable. The next
stage is to further investigate mitigation
measures.
As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project, a
feasibility study was carried out in 2015. The
results of this showed a refined flood extent, but

Total Cost

Page 70

Critical Drainage
Area 25 (York
Road)

364

38

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location
(Carshalton
Centre)

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

still a number of areas which were predicted to
encounter deep flooding. No viable mitigation
measures were identified. The next stage is to
further investigate mitigation measures.
There is a large Local Flood Risk Zone within
this Critical Drainage Area along with the
surface water flood extent as shown in the
Surface Water Management Plan (2011). Tier 3
of the Drain London Project is to carry out local
flood risk modelling to better understand the
flood risk and investigate potential flood
mitigation schemes.

measures
modelling:
£20k

modelling
outputs.

Scheme
costs not
known at
present.

£0-Need to
bid for
scheme
costs.

Scheme cost
not known at
present.

2016-2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

Update on delivery
modelling did not result in bringing
forward a viable option.

43

Critical Drainage
Area 30
(Wallington)

There are areas at risk of surface water flooding
within this Critical Drainage Area as shown in
the Surface Water Management Plan (2011).
Tier 3 of the Drain London Project is to carry out
local flood risk modelling to better understand
the flood risk and investigate potential flood
mitigation schemes.

Scheme
costs not
known at
present.

£50K for
design
shared with
scheme 44.
Need to bid
for
remainder of
scheme
costs.

Scheme cost
not known at
present.

2016-2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

44

Critical Drainage
Area 31 (South
Beddington)

There is a Local Flood Risk Zone within this
Critical Drainage Area along with the surface
water flood extent as shown in the Surface
Water Management Plan (2011). Tier 3 of the
Drain London Project is to carry out local flood
risk modelling to better understand the flood risk
and investigate potential flood mitigation
schemes.

Scheme
costs not
known at
present.

£50K for
design
shared with
scheme 43.
Need to bid
for
remainder of

Scheme cost
not known at
present.

2016-2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

Following the June 2016 floods, LB
Sutton provided the necessary
funding to undertake the modelling
work and this is expected to be
completed by the end of 2017. The
council then intends to model some
alleviation schemes in order to
establish a viable option. The next
stage would be to develop a viable
option (if a viable option is found)
through design and then delivery.
The council has received Local
Levy funding for updated modelling
which should be completed by the
end of 2017. The council has
funding to model some possible
alleviation schemes in order to
establish a viable option. It also has
funding to carrying out design and
subject to further funding deliver the
scheme.
The council has received Local
Levy funding for updated modelling
which should be completed by the
end of 2017. The council has
funding to model some possible
alleviation schemes in order to
establish a viable option. It also has
funding to carrying out design and

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

Critical Drainage
Area 29
(Beddington
Gardens)

Page 71

365

42

45

46

Location

Critical Drainage
Area 32 (London
Road,
Hackbridge)

As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project, a
feasibility study was carried out in 2014. The
results of this showed a refined flood extent The
next stage is to investigate this option further
and produce some designs with associated
costing.

366

As per Tier 3 of the Drain London Project, a
feasibility study was carried out in 2015. The
results of this showed a refined flood extent and
a viable risk reduction measure. The next stage
is to investigate this option further and produce
some designs with associated costing.

Total Cost

PLP survey
specification
&
completion:
£5k/property
PLP capital:
£5k/ property
Scheme
costs not
known at
present.

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

scheme
costs.
Bid to review
previous
modelling
outputs

£0-Need to
bid for
scheme
costs.

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2016-2021
(FDGiA/Local Levy
funding)

Scheme cost
not known at
present.

2016-2021

Update on delivery
subject to further funding deliver the
scheme.
More funding is required to review
previously modelled
outputs/research as previous
modelling did not result in bringing
forward a viable option.

Modelling work was carried out in
2015. Concept designs were
developed in 2015/16 and site
investigation and funding work
carried out in 2016/17. Detailed
design underway.
First priority scheme.

Adult Social Care
47

Ludlow Lodge,
Wallington

48

Century House
Fellowes Road,
Carshalton

2016-2021

47 units under construction.

2016-2021

15 units under construction

Appendix C

There is an identified need for Affordable
housing evidenced by the SHMA and needs
data from the Housing Register. Over recent
years there has been an increasing lower
amount of affordable housing delivered through
S106 due to viability. Councils now have the
opportunity to build new council housing due to
changes in finance regulations and availability of
retained right to buy receipts.
There is an identified need for Affordable
housing evidenced by the SHMA and needs
data from the Housing Register. Over recent
years there has been an increasing lower
amount of affordable housing delivered through

Page 72

Critical Drainage
Area 33
(Hackbridge)

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

49

Location

Richmond Green,
Beddington

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

S106 due to viability. Councils now have the
opportunity to build new council housing due to
changes in finance regulations and availability of
retained right to buy receipts.
There is an identified need for Affordable
housing evidenced by the SHMA and needs
data from the Housing Register. Over recent
years there has been an increasing lower
amount of affordable housing delivered through
S106 due to viability. Councils now have the
opportunity to build new council housing due to
changes in finance regulations and availability of
retained right to buy receipts.

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

2016-2021

Update on delivery

28 units under construction

367

Borough-wide :
Provision of new
public open
space and
enhancement of
existing spaces
and their facilities

New public open space will be secured through
development schemes, with priority given to
deficiency areas.

51

Borough-wide:
improving access
to nature through
biodiversity
enhancing
measures in new
development

Biodiversity gains are achieved through the
provision of new natural green spaces in major
developments and enhancement measures
delivered through other schemes e.g. green
roofs, wildlife corridors, biodiversity-enhancing
landscape.

Not known

Yes

Nil

2016-2021 (S106 / part
of development /
heritage lottery funding)

No new schemes in phase 1 unless
Sheen Way Playing Fields is
advanced. Wandle Valley Regional
Park is to become progressively
open to the public towards the end
of the plan period
CIL could fund park improvement
projects.
Biodiversity improvements resulting
from developments with permission:
1. Beddington FarmlandsFootpath to open to public and
hides to be installed for bird
watching.
2. South of Sutton Court Road
(STC13) – biodiverse roofs.
3. Subsea7 office – biodiverse roofs
4. Felnex (S1) - biodiverse open
spaces.

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

50

Page 73

Open Space

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery
5. Corbet Close – river restoration
6. Wandle Valley Trading Estate
(S56) – restoration of mill pond,
riverbank improvements, new
pocket park.
7. Institute of Cancer Research
(LCH1) – loss but enhancement of
grassland.
8.Woodcote Grove House –
management plan for Woodcote
Grove Wood (SINC28).

53

Borough-wide:
improvements to
the quality and
access of play
space for children
and young people
Borough-wide:
Improvements to
existing
allotments and
creation of new
allotments

New and refurbished play space for children and
young people

Not Known

Protection of existing allotments; possible
relocation of Belmont Allotments; and creation of
new allotments at Site S90 – “Land to the West
of Carshalton Athletic, Carshalton”.

Not Known

Page 74

368

52

Other biodiversity improvements:
improvements to the lake, river and
stock pond in Beddington Park
(Heritage Lottery Fund)
CIL could be used to provide
improvements to the quality and
access of play space for children
and young people.

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Two long term proposals. Belmont
Allotments is dependent on the
development of the London
Cancer Hub and would be funded
as part of the scheme. Some of
the land at the Carshalton
allotments is being used for foodgrowing as part of a community
allotment scheme.

Appendix C

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Update on delivery

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

There are no capacity issues with
the existing library accommodation
meeting predicted growth over the
Plan period.
The council is not aware of any
proposals by the voluntary sector to
upgrade these centres.The children’s centres have recently
undergone a reorganisation of the
service provision with services
provided at 6 key centres across
the borough.

Social Infrastructure
54

Libraries

Review of library service being undertaken by
the council.

N/A

N/A

55

Community
Centres

Upgrading of community centres

Not known

56

Children’s
Centres

Upgrading of children’s centres

N/A

N/A
N/A

369

57

Cheam Leisure
Centre

58

David Weir
Leisure Centre

N/A

£1 m

N/A

N/A

£0

£1m

New roof completed. No capital
projects planned.

2016-21

Running track to be maintained to
current standard. No other capital
projects planned.

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

Provision of New Centre (on existing site)
 33m swimming pool
 Dry facilities
 Health and fitness centres
 Squash Courts
 Sports Hall
Upgrade leisure Centre (including new running
track)
Current facilities:
 Dance & Exercise Studios;
 Fitness Centre;
 Multi-purpose sports hall;
 Indoor athletic hall;
 60m indoor sprinting hall;
 Outdoor athletics track;
 Field event hall;
 Covered spectator seating for 300; Bar
and café

Page 75

Sports & Leisure

Location

59

Phoenix Leisure
Centre

60

Provision of an
all-weather pitch
in the borough

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments
Upgrade leisure centre
Current facilities
 Gym
 Sports Hall
 Fitness centre
 8 court sports hall
 Squash courts
 Creche
 Café
Either at Sutton tennis centre, Carshalton
Athletic football club or Sutton United football
club

Total Cost
N/A

Available
Funding
N/A

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

N/A

Update on delivery
No capital projects planned

Strategic Transport – Public Transport
61

Tramlink
extension from
Morden Road to
Sutton town
centre (phase 1),
with potential for
phase 2 to
Belmont / Life
Sciences Cluster

Provision of transport link for Sutton to
Wimbledon / South Wimbledon, providing highcapacity, modern and emission-free transport
link, assisting in regeneration of Sutton town
centre and St. Helier estate. The majority of land
within the borough is available to the council.
Transport for London (TfL) have undertaken
various engineering feasibility studies and have
prepared a business case for Phase 1 which is
safeguarded in the development plan.
Alternative options have been identified for
Phase 2 which is linked to the delivery of the
London Cancer Hub.
Lead organisations: TfL, LB Sutton, LB Merton

£288 m
(tramlink
phase 1)
TfL /
boroughs
Unfunded
(but TfL
feasibility
work funded,
and future
borough
contributions
identified)

Not known at
this stagefurther
funding work
in progress

Not known at
this stage

2020-2025 (phase 1)
2025-30 (phase 2)
(TfL LB Sutton LB
Merton)

Appendix C

TfL and LBS/LBM are currently
working together to identify sources
of possible funding available to TfL,
the council and from government
and will be producing a study which
will be reported to the Mayor later
this year. TfL has already
committed £70m from its growth
fund. It has also agreed to fund
further engineering studies to work
the scheme up to the necessary
standard to support a Transport and
Works Act application by late 2019
and will continue to develop the
business case for the scheme.

Page 76

370

New 3G football pitches have
recently been installed at both
Sutton and Carshalton FCs and
made available for wider use.
Potential CIL funding if there
remains a requirement in the
future.

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

£100m
(tramlink
phase 2)

63

Introduction of
Metro-Style
London
Overground
Service levels
and standards
across the south
London rail
network, including
all Sutton lines.

64

Platform
lengthening to
accommodate
longer trains
Station
accessibility
improvements

65

Train/Tram
operation on the
Sutton to Belmont

Major expansion of rail capacity between SW
and NE London, relieving crowding on Waterloo
lines and LU. Potential branch to Epsom with
stop at Worcester Park. Would provide direct
link from WP to central and NE London. (Lead
organisations: TfL/Network Rail)
Improve frequency, reliability, service and
station quality, connect Sutton to TfL London
Overground network (to bring rail services closer
to ‘turn-up-and-go’ Tube frequencies and cater
for growing demand (subject to no adverse
impact on other rail services)
Lead organisations:
TfL / Network Rail / DfT
DfT launched a rail devolution prospectus in
January 2016 setting out intentions to progress
this.
Extend Hackbridge and Carshalton Beeches
station platforms to accommodate 10-car trains
Lead organisations: Network Rail/DfT

Total Cost
£27 billion
DfT
Feasibility
work funded
for scheme
£1 billion

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2030+ (DfT/TfL/London
boroughs)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2020-2025 (DfT/TfL)

£10 million
(DfT)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2018-25

To make all rail stations in the borough fully
accessible
Lead organisations: Network Rail / Train
Operating Companies/DfT

£25 million
(DfT)

Not known at
this stage

2016-2026

Work to install a new lift connecting
platforms 1 and 2 at Carshalton
Station agreed and will progress
subject to funding.

Improvements linked to the development of the
London Cancer Hub and the possible extension
of the Tram to Belmont, mean that work will be

Not known at
this stage

Scheme at
Carshalton
“Access for
all” funded
2016/17
Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2020-2030

Improved services on this route
could also result from TfL’s
metroisation proposals. The scale

TfL are currently seeking to
progress this proposal and are in
discussions with DfT

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

66

Further work will be undertaken on
a potential phase 2 which is linked
to the delivery of the London
Cancer Hub.
Any funding from the council will
come via its contribution to the
Mayor’s CIL.

Page 77

Crossrail 2

371

62

Update on delivery

67

68

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

carried out to investigate trams and trains
sharing the current rail corridor between Sutton
and Belmont.
To improve access to and interchange at
stations for all modes, and passenger facilities
Lead organisation: TfL / LB Sutton

Cost £10
million
(TfL)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage.

2016-2026

Improvements
and extensions to
bus services and
infrastructure
including local
cross-borough
bus links

To improve access to and increase usage of bus
services in the borough
Lead organisation: TfL / LB Sutton

Cost £10
million
(TfL)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage.

2016-2026

See update

See update

2026-2031+

of phasing of development at the
London Cancer Hub is likely to
affect delivery.
Interchange improvements recently
completed at Sutton Station and
bus /rail interchange will be
enhanced as part of the new
development of the former Felnex
site in Hackbridge.
TfL is reviewing bus services to
serve areas where future growth
anticipated to examine the impact
on services.

Highway / Cycleway / Pedestrian and Public Realm Schemes
69

Construction of a
new road linking
Sutton High
Street/Mulgrave
Road to Grove
Road

To divert general traffic away from the section of
the High Street between the station and Grove
Road, allowing for the creation of a public
transport / cycle / pedestrian only corridor would
facilitate phase 2 of Tramlink if implemented.

£2.45m
(latest
estimate
from ‘Sutton
Town Centre
Transport
Options
Appraisal’
excluding
land) (TfL /
LBS)

Appendix C

Following the completion of the
‘Sutton Town Centre Transport
Options Appraisal Study’ (STCTOA)
study which identified the locations
and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are
commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
This study will identify whether
there is likely to be a need for this
link to improve junction capacity but
the scheme also enables the
improvement of this section of the
High Street for sustainable modes.

Page 78

372

section of the
Epsom Downs
branch
Station access,
interchange and
facility
improvements

Update on delivery

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

70

Proposals to
transform the
gyratory system
to make the roads
less trafficdominated and
more pedestrianfriendly and
cycle-friendly
measures to
encourage
shared space,
reassignment of
priorities and
landscape
improvements
A new road
between High
Street and
Marshalls Road
via Lewis Road
and Burnell Road

Crown Road/
Sutton High
Street junction
improvements/Hi
gh Street/Old

71

72

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2021-2031

The Sutton Town Centre Masterplan identified
the gyratory system as a major barrier to
pedestrian movement to and from the town
centre and identified the scope to improve its
contribution to the public realm.
Lead organisation: TfL / LB Sutton

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

To allow public transport only corridor in part of
High Street between Crown Road and Marshalls
Road and relieve pressure on the Crown
Road/High Street/Sainsbury’s junction as arising
from future growth identified in the Sutton Town
Centre Masterplan
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£10m
(TfL / LBS)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2021-2026

This work is required as part of the traffic
improvements identified by AECOM transport
consultants, arising from the Sutton Town
Centre Masterplan Study (adopted June 2016).
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£190K
without land
(STCTOA)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2021-2026

Update on delivery
The above future study will help
inform the work on transforming the
gyratory which may be part funded
by developer contribution.

Following the completion of the
STCTOA study which identified the
locations and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are
commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
This study will identify whether
there is likely to be a need for this
improvement as part of the junction
improvement below (scheme 72).
Following the completion of the
STCTOA study which identified the
locations and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

Location

Page 79

373

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Gasworks
junction
improvements

This work is required as part of the traffic
improvements identified by AECOM transport
consultants, arising from the Sutton Town
Centre Masterplan Study (adopted June 2016).
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£160K
without land
(STCTOA)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2016-2021(TfL)

74

Sutton Court
Road/High Street
Junction
improvements

This work is required as part of the traffic
improvements identified by AECOM transport
consultants, arising from the Sutton Town
Centre Masterplan Study (adopted June 2016).
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2026-2031(TfL)

Appendix C

commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
However, the need for or scale of
any improvements will be
influenced by whether the tram is
extended to Sutton.
Following the completion of the
STCTOA study which identified the
locations and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are
commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
This study is intended to confirm the
need for and timing of this junction
improvement which the STCTOA
study identified as the highest
priority for a junction improvement
scheme. This junction forms part of
TfL’s strategic route network and
would be directly funded by TfL.
Following the completion of the
STCTOA study which identified the
locations and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are
commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
This level of improvement required
at this junction will be influenced by

Page 80

Throwley
Way/Carshalton
Road/Chalk Pit
Way/Manor Park
Road junction
improvements

374

73

Update on delivery

Agenda Item 6

Scheme
Ref.

Scheme
Ref.

Location

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

£110K
without land
(STCTOA)

76

London Cancer
Hub

As part of the delivery of the London Cancer
Not known at
Hub and in accordance with Local Plan Site
this stage
Allocation “LCH”, it is likely that Junction
improvements will be required at:
1. Brighton Road/Chiltern Road/Cotswold Road
2. Brighton Road/ Downs Road
3. Cotswold Road/Downs Road
4. Belmont Rise (A217)/Cheam Rd (A232)
5. Banstead Rd South/The Warren
6. Banstead Rd/Staplehurst Rd
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, Institute of Cancer
Research and Royal Marsden

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2026-2031(TfL)

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

20202031(Development
funded)

Update on delivery
whether scheme number 69 is
implemented. This junction forms
part of TfL’s strategic route network
and would be directly funded by
TfL.
Following the completion of the
STCTOA study which identified the
locations and timescale for junction
improvements within the town
centre, TfL and LBS are
commissioning further work to
model the impact of future growth
on the capacity of these junctions.
This study is intended to confirm the
need for and timing of this junction
improvement which the STCTOA
study identified as being required
around the end of the Plan period.
This junction forms part of TfL’s
strategic route network and would
be directly funded by TfL.
Dependent on the scale and
phasing of development at the
London Cancer Hub. The transport
assessment supporting any future
planning application for the London
Cancer Hub will identify the location
and scale of highway improvements
that will be required.

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

This work is required as part of the traffic
improvements identified by AECOM, following
the Sutton Town Centre Masterplan Study
(adopted June 2016).
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)

Page 81

Cheam Road/St
Nicholas
Way/Sutton Park
Road junction
improvements

Funding Gap

375

75

Available
Funding

Available
Funding

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2016-2021(TfL)

77

Beddington Lane
Improvements –
reconstruction,
widening and
realignment
including
footways,
carriageway

To improve access for heavy goods vehicles to
industrial sites and introducing measures to
enhance the movement of, and facilities for,
pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users.
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£c3m (TfL /
LBS)
Some
funding
through LIP
and S106.

See update

None

78

Traffic
management
scheme in
Carshalton

Traffic management scheme in Carshalton to
address traffic and safety issues, involving the
diversion of HGVs in a westbound direction via
Ruskin Road to relieve congestion and improve
safety of the A232 at Carshalton Ponds (as
shown on the Proposals Map)
Lead organisation: TfL, LB Sutton

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2026-2031(TfL)

79

North CheamWorcester Park –
Old Malden – A3
Roundabout

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2021-2031

80

Minor highway
and junction
capacity
improvements at
key congestion
hotspots and to
serve new
developments

To relieve congestion, improve air quality and
improve bus priority along the above corridor in
conjunction with Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames.
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, RB Kingston upon
Thames, TfL
To relieve congestion, increase capacity and
reduce delays, including to buses. To cater for
increased traffic from new developments.
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£15 million
LBS / TfL
Some
funding
through LIP /
S106.

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2016-2031

Update on delivery
Long standing scheme for
improving access to Beddington
Strategic Industrial Location. Part
funding already secured for the
design of the scheme (£318k
2016/17) with the remainder for
construction to be made available
by TfL once the scheme is fully
designed. Scheme likely to be
completed by 2019.
Dependent on future traffic
growth/safety. This is a long
standing scheme proposed by the
council but TfL may wish to identify
alternative proposal. This
improvement is on a strategic road
and would be directly funded by
TfL.
This is a long standing
traffic/environmental problem that
requires joint working with TfL and
RB Kingston upon Thames and
which could be affected by Crossrail
2.
Minor schemes to be brought
forward as required. Dependent on
future traffic growth/safety.

Appendix C

Total Cost

Page 82

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Agenda Item 6

Location

376

Scheme
Ref.

Evidence/Justification for
Scheme/Comments

Total Cost

Available
Funding

81

Improvements to
walking and
cycling facilities

To provide a comprehensive cycle and
pedestrian route network and encourage use of
these sustainable modes
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

£10 million
LBS / TfL
Some
funding
through LIP /
S106.

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

82

Bus Services

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2016-2031

83

Public realm and
transport
improvements in
town and local
centres

Improvements and extensions to bus services
and infrastructure e.g. improvements to
frequency and duration of services (such as
Sunday services), bus priority measures,
improved bus stops, and real time information.
Lead organisation: TfL.
To improve the pedestrian environment and
balance between movement and place,
including improved parking and loading.
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2016-2031

84

Parking and
loading review
and
improvements
including CPZs
and provision of
electric vehicle
charging
infrastructure

£15 million
LBS / TfL /
New Homes
Bonus / GLA
Some
funding
through LIP /
S106.
£1 million
LBS / TfL /
New Homes
Bonus / GLA
Some
funding
through LIP /
S106.

Not known at
this stage

Not known at
this stage

2016-2026

To manage the growth in car ownership and use
by rationalising parking provision and ensuring
efficient use of kerb space and off-street
parking, as well as promoting use of cleaner
vehicles.
Lead organisation: LB Sutton, TfL.

Funding Gap

Delivery Period 201621 (Phase 1) (Source
of Funding)
2016-2031

Update on delivery
The council has identified a series
of cycle improvements to be
secured via TfL through LIP
funding. Funding has been secured
for implementing one Quietway
scheme and it is expected to follow
for the second enabling both
Quietways in the borough to be
implemented in the period 20162021.
On-going improvements secured
through TfL. TfL are currently
reviewing bus services in the
borough to determine the level of
improvements that are likely to be
needed to support future growth.
No fixed programme, but work in
progress to commission the
modelling of Sutton town centre to
understand the impact of future
growth which will inform the design
of the gyratory arising from the
Sutton Town Centre Masterplan.
Existing problem but will be
influenced by the level of traffic
growth. The council has produced a
parking strategy for the borough.

C
AgendaAppendix
Item 6

Location

Page 83

377

Scheme
Ref.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 85

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX D
Planning Use Classes
Use Class

Description

A1 Shops

Shops, retail warehouses, hairdressers, undertakers, travel and ticket
agencies, post offices, pet shops, sandwich bars, showrooms, domestic hire
shops, dry cleaners, funeral directors and internet cafes.

A2 Financial and
professional services

Financial services such as banks and building societies, professional services
(other than health and medical services) and including estate and
employment agencies. It does not include betting offices or pay-day loan
shops - these are now classed as “sui generis” uses (see below).

A3 Restaurants and cafés

For the sale of food and drink for consumption on the premises - restaurants,
snack bars and cafes.

A4 Drinking establishments

Public houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments (but not night clubs)
including drinking establishments with expanded food provision.

A5 Hot food takeaways

For the sale of hot food for consumption off the premises.

B1 Business

Offices (other than those that fall within A2), research and development of
products and processes, light industry appropriate in a residential area.

B2 General industrial

Use for industrial process other than one falling within class B1 (excluding
incineration purposes, chemical treatment or landfill or hazardous waste).

B8 Storage or distribution

This class includes open air storage.

C1 Hotels

Hotels, boarding and guest houses where no significant element of care is
provided (excludes hostels).

C2 Residential institutions

Residential care homes, hospitals, nursing homes, boarding schools,
residential colleges and training centres.

C2a Secure Residential
Institutions

Use for a provision of secure residential accommodation, including use as a
prison, young offenders institution, detention centre, secure training centre,
custody centre, short term holding centre, secure hospital, secure local
authority accommodation or use as a military barracks.

Agenda Item 6

Page 86

C3 Dwellinghouses

This class is formed of 3 parts:
C3(a) covers use by a single person or a family (a couple whether married or
not, a person related to one another with members of the family of one of the
couple to be treated as members of the family of the other), an employer and
certain domestic employees (such as an au pair, nanny, nurse, governess,
servant, chauffeur, gardener, secretary and personal assistant), a carer and
the person receiving the care and a foster parent and foster child.
C3(b): up to six people living together as a single household and receiving
care e.g. supported housing schemes such as those for people with learning
disabilities or mental health problems.
C3(c) allows for groups of people (up to six) living together as a single
household. This allows for those groupings that do not fall within the C4 HMO
definition, but which fell within the previous C3 use class, to be provided for
i.e. a small religious community may fall into this section as could a
homeowner who is living with a lodger.

C4 Houses in multiple
occupation

Small shared houses occupied by between three and six unrelated
individuals, as their only or main residence, who share basic amenities such
as a kitchen or bathroom.

D1 Non-residential
institutions

Clinics, health centres, crèches, day nurseries, day centres, schools, art
galleries (other than for sale or hire), museums, libraries, halls, places of
worship, church halls, law court. Non-residential education and training
centres.

D2 Assembly and leisure

Cinemas, music and concert halls, bingo and dance halls (but not night clubs),
swimming baths, skating rinks, gymnasiums or area for indoor or outdoor
sports and recreations (except for motor sports, or where firearms are used).

SG Sui Generis

Certain uses do not fall within any use class and are considered 'sui generis'.
Such uses include: betting offices/shops, pay-day loan shops, theatres, larger
houses in multiple occupation, hostels providing no significant element of
care, scrap yards. Petrol filling stations and shops selling and/or displaying
motor vehicles. Retail warehouse clubs, nightclubs, launderettes, taxi
businesses and casinos.

Page 87

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Annual Audit Letter 2017/18

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Ruth Dombey / Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for
Finance
Michael Mackie, Head of Finance Operations and Residents Support,
020 8770 5375
● Making Informed Choices

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

Date:

Date:

29 October 2018

03 October 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

The Annual Audit Letter for 2017/18 formally reports the outcome of the external audit of the
Council’s financial statements for the year and the auditor’s opinion on the Council’s
arrangements to secure value for money. The auditor gave an unqualified opinion on the
financial statements, including the pension fund statements, and concluded that the Council had
proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it delivered value for money in its use
of resources.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Note the external auditor’s unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements for the
2017/18 year and the auditor’s conclusion that the Council had proper arrangements in all
significant respects to ensure it delivered value for money in its use of resources

3.

Background

3.1

The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, examines the Council’s financial statements to
assess whether they:

Agenda Item 7

Page 88

●

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and its spending and
income for the year; and

●

have been prepared properly, following the relevant accounting standards.

3.2

The auditor is also required to give an opinion on whether the Council has proper arrangements
for securing value for money.

3.3

The results of the audit are formally reported to the Council in the Annual Audit Letter. The
Annual Audit Letter for 2017/18 is at Appendix A. The letter will be made available on the
Council’s website. The letter will be considered by the Audit and Governance Committee on 18
October 2018.

4.

Issues

4.1

The auditor has given an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements. The auditor’s
Audit Findings Report, which was considered by the Audit and Governance Committee on 26
July 2018, recorded no material or non-trivial errors in the draft accounts and did not identify any
adjustments for the final accounts. No recommendations were made by the auditor in respect of
the main accounts.

4.2

The auditor’s Audit Findings Report in relation to the Pension Fund was also reported to the
Audit and Governance Committee on 26 July 2018. No adjustments for material or non-trivial
misstatements were made to the draft accounts. No recommendations were made by the
auditor in respect of the Pension Fund.

4.3

The auditor has also given an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Council’s arrangements
for securing value for money.

4.4

Appendix A to the Annual Audit Letter provides details of the auditor’s fees. The total fee of
£105,590 to General Fund which can be accommodated within available budgets.

5.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

These are covered in the report.
Legal

5.2

There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 89

6.

Agenda Item 7

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Annual Audit Letter 2017-18

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version
Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance

final

Date: 18 October 2018

Comments Sought
Yes

Comments checked by
Michael Mackie

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Annual Audit Letter
Year ending 31 March 2018

August 2018

Page 91

London Borough of Sutton

Agenda Item 7

Section

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Page

1.

Executive Summary

3

2.

Audit of the Accounts

5

3.

Value for Money conclusion

Agenda Item 7

Contents

10

Appendices
A

Ian Murray
T: 0207 7283 328
E:Iain.G.Murray@uk.gt.com

Page 92

Engagement Lead

Reports issued and fees

Senior Audit Manager
Paul Jacklin
T: 0207 7283 263
E: Paul.J.Jacklin@uk.gt.com

Assistant Manager
Keith Mungadzi
T: 0207 7282 393
E: Keith.Mungadzi@uk.gt.com

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

2

Executive Summary
Purpose
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the work
that we have carried out at the London Borough of Sutton Council (the Council) and
its subsidiaries (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2018.
This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the
Council/group and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to draw
to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed the National
Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 –
'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the
Council's Audit and Governance Committee as those charged with governance in our
Audit Findings Report on 26 July 2018.

Respective responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, which
reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). Our key
responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council and group's financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section three).
In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we comply with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality

We determined materiality for the audit of the groups financial statements to be £9,600,000, which is 2% of the group]s gross revenue
expenditure. We determined materiality for the audit of the pension fund accounts administered by the Council to be £6,416,000, which is 1%
of the pension fund’s net assets.

Financial Statements opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council/group's financial statements on 30 July 2018.
We gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund accounts of London Borough of Sutton Pension Fund 30 July 2018

Whole of Government Accounts
(WGA)

We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers

We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Page 93

Our work

Agenda Item 7

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

3

Value for Money arrangements

We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 July 2018.

Certification of Grants

We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on
this claim is not yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2018. We will report the results of this work to the Audit and Governance
Committee in our Annual Certification Letter.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of London Borough of Sutton in accordance with the requirements of the Code of
Audit Practice.

During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with you:

•
•

An efficient audit – we delivered an efficient audit with you in June/July, delivering
the accounts before the early close deadline two months earlier than the previous
year, releasing your finance team for other work. We working closely with your
finance team to bring forward more work than previous years reducing the amount
of work undertaken at the year end
Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates covering best
practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports
Providing training – we provided your teams with training on financial accounts
and annual reporting.

Page 94

Working with the Council

•

Agenda Item 7

Executive Summary

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
August 2018

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

4

Audit of the Accounts
Our audit approach

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:
• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed;
• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We determined materiality for the audit of the group accounts to be £9,600,000,
which is 2% of the group's gross revenue expenditure. We determined materiality for
the audit of the Council's accounts to be £6,954,000, which is 2% of the Council's
gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the
group and Council's financial statements are most interested in where the group and
Council has spent its revenue in the year.

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts and the narrative report, annual
governance statement and Annual Report published alongside the Statement of Accounts to
check they are consistent with our understanding of the Council/group and with the financial
statements included in the Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We set a lower threshold of £464,000, above which we reported errors to the Audit
and Governance Committee in our Audit Findings Report.
Pension Fund Materiality
For the audit of the London Borough of Sutton Pension Fund accounts, we
determined materiality to be £6,416,000, which is 1% of the Fund's net assets. We
used this benchmark, as in our view, users of the Pension Fund accounts are most
interested in the value of assets available to fund pension benefits.

Page 95

Materiality
In our audit of the Council/group's financial statements, we use the concept of
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating
the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the
financial statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change
or influence their economic decisions.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit Practice. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council/group's business and
is risk based.
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to these risks
and the results of this work.

We set a threshold of £321,000 above which we reported errors to the Audit and
Governance Committee.

Agenda Item 7

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

5

Agenda Item 7

Audit of the Accounts
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Going Concern

As part of our audit work we have:

we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the appropriateness of management's
use of the going concern assumption in the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements and to
conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about
the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA
(UK) 570)

•

Reviewed the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and savings programmes.

•

Reviewed the Council’s outturn and reserves position.

We are satisfied that the Council’s
financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis.

•

Reviewed the Council’s disclosure in the financial statements.

Management override of controls

As part of our audit work we have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities. We identified management
override of controls as a risk requiring special audit
consideration

•

Reviewed the accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by
management.

•

Reviewed journal entry process and selection of large and unusual journal
entries for testing back to supporting documentation.

•

Reviewed the accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by
management.

•

Reviewed unusual significant transactions.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

Page 96

Risks identified in our audit plan

Our audit work has not identified
any evidence of management override of controls.

6

Audit of the Accounts
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.
How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Valuation of property, plant and
equipment
The Council revalues its land and buildings
on an rolling programme to ensure that
carrying value is not materially different
from current value. This represents a
significant estimate by management in the
financial statements.

As part of our audit work we have:

Our audit work completed has not
identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

We identified the valuation of land and
buildings revaluations and impairments as
a risk requiring special audit consideration

Valuation of pension fund net liability
The Council's pension fund asset and
liability as reflected in its balance sheet
represent a significant estimate in the
financial statements.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

Reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate.

•

Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.

•

Reviewed the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work.

•

Discussed with the Council's valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out,
challenging the key assumptions.

•

Reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it was robust and
consistent with our understanding.

•

Tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they were input correctly into the
Council's asset register.

•

Evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the
year and how management satisfied themselves that these were not materially different to
current value.

As part of our audit work we have:
•

Identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net liability
is not materially misstated and assessed whether those controls were implemented as
expected and whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

•

Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council's pension fund valuation.

•

Gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out,
undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made.

•

Reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the financial
statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the
risk identified

Agenda Item 7

We identified the valuation of the pension
fund net liability as a risk requiring special
audit consideration.

•

Page 97

Risks identified in our audit plan

7

Agenda Item 7

Audit of the Accounts Pension Fund
Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund.

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Management override of controls

As part of our audit work we have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities.

•

Reviewed entity controls.

•

Reviewed accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by
management.

Our audit work has not identified any
evidence of management over-ride of
controls.

We identified management override of controls as a risk
requiring special audit consideration.

•

Reviewed unusual significant transactions.

The valuation of Level 3 investments is incorrect
Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant
non-routine transactions and judgemental matters. Level
3 investments by their very nature require a significant
degree of judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at
year end.

As part of our audit work we have:

We identified the valuation of level 3 investments as a
risk requiring special audit consideration

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

•

Gained an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing level 3
investments and evaluated the design of the associated controls.

•

Reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what
assurance management has over the year end valuations provided for
these types of investment.

•

Considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any
management experts used.

•

Verified the investment balances to the fund manager and custodian
report.

•

Tested the valuations by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts,
at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the
fund manager reports at that date. We reconciled those values to the
values at 31 March 2018 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period.

Page 98

Risks identified in our audit plan

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the risk
identified

8

Audit of the Accounts
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council/group's financial statements on 30
July 2018, in advance of the national deadline.
Preparation of the accounts
The Council/group presented us with draft accounts in accordance with the national
deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. The finance
team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course of the audit.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative
Report. It published them on its website within the Statement of Accounts in line with
the national deadlines.

We also reported the key issues from our audit of the pension fund accounts to the Council’s
Audit and Governance Committee on 30 July 2018. We did not identify any adjustments to the
Funds financial position.

Certificate of closure of the audit
We are also required to certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of London
Borough of Sutton in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice.

Page 99

Issues arising from the audit of the accounts
We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit and Governance
Committee on 26 July 2018.
We have not identified any adjustments to the financial statements that have
impacted on the Council’s financial position. Adjustments were classification and
presentational.

Pension fund accounts
We gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund accounts of London Borough of Sutton on
30 July 2018.

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting
guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent with the financial
statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

Agenda Item 7

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)
We carried out work on the Council’s Data Collection Tool in line with instructions
provided by the NAO . We issued an assurance statement which did not identify any
issues for the group auditor to consider on 29 August 2018.

9

Agenda Item 7

Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice,
following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which specified the
criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and
deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and
local people.

Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and identify
the key risks where we concentrated our work.
The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

Overall Value for Money conclusion

Page 100

Key findings

We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31
March 2018.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

10

Value for Money conclusion
Key Value for Money Risks
How we responded
to the risk

Findings and conclusions

The Council have
historically managed
their finances well.
However, the financial
environment is
becoming even more
challenging and at the
time of preparing our
audit plan the
Council’s anticipated
2017/18 outturn
position was a net
overspend of £2.5m

We responded to this
risk by:
• Review of budget
monitoring reports
and financial outturn
reports to Members.

The Council continue to operate in an extremely challenging financial environment; 2017/18 was the seventh successive year of
spending reductions. The council’s financial position was closely monitored during the year. At the year end a small surplus of
£0.160m was reported.
The main areas of overspend during the year were:
• £1.8m relating to Leaving Care Placement costs for young people still being looked after by the leaving care team. The number of
young people has increased from 216 to 266. Also included in the balance is the additional costs of looking after 10
unaccompanied asylum seeking children who became 18 in the year.
• £1.8m relating to Special Educational Needs transport. The number of students requiring Special Educational need transport has
increased from 559 to 651 in the year. The cost is impacted by the number of Education, Health Care Plans that need to be
maintained.
• £600k relating to legal costs from a higher number of care proceedings and expert assessments needed than anticipated.

•

Discussion with
senior officers

Page 101

Risks identified in
our audit plan

Agenda Item 7

Whilst additional budgetary growth had been allocated to these areas as part of the 2017/18 budget process, further financial
pressure materialised, reflecting the inherent risks in these services. The Council are are not alone in that 75% of Local Authorities
have overspent their Children’s Social Care budget which is closely linked to a 50% increase in looked after children nationally over
the last four years.
These overspends were offset by underspends within Environment, Housing and Regeneration and non service revenue accounts
mainly due to net underspends on interest payable / receivable and the outcome of a review into the Council's approach to providing
for debt repayments which resulted in a reduction to the level of annual contribution (MRP) saving of £1.5m, unspent contingency
against Business Rates Revaluation and Apprentice Levy of £0.3m and a contribution from insurance reserve of £0.6m held in nonservice budgets.
The £10m of savings required for 2017/18 were deducted from budgets and the in year monitoring focussed on reviewing actuals
against budget. The savings plans were not subject to separate monitoring, as monitoring was undertaken on overall budgets. In our
view, this results in a lack of transparency and clarity in identifying whether the overspends are the result of under-delivery of savings
plans or genuine unavoidable pressures from demand increases. Without this clarity, the Council are not properly able to assess the
robustness of future plans and make an informed judgement as to the deliverability of the £8m of savings in the 2018/19 budget. The
Council is currently implementing a methodology that will enable savings plans to be separately monitored for the remainder of the
2018/19 financial year. This is a positive move forward.
The general fund balance is held to mitigate against risks such as unforeseen increased demand and cost pressures. The £0.160m
underspend brings the general fund balance to £12.7m as at 31 March 2018 this includes £3.6m relating to schools. The General
Fund position excluding schools of £9.1m represents 6.4% of the net revenue budget for 2018/19, above the 5% level set out in your
reserves strategy.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

11

Key Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in
our audit plan

How we responded
to the risk

Findings and conclusions

At the time of the plan
the Council have set a
balanced budget for
2018/19. The medium
term financial strategy
outlined the need to
achieve further savings
£5.8m by 2019/120.
The projected funding
gap is £2.2m in
2018/19 and expected
to rise to £11.5m by
2020/21. The Council
plan to utilise £2m of
the reserves in 2018/19
to assist in balancing
the budget

We responded to this
risk by:

2018/19 year will be particularly challenging year for the Council. In broad terms the reduction of Revenue Support Grant and
continued reduction of government funding in 2018/19 £4m (8%) plus inflation and other costs of £3.6m and service growth cost
pressures of £8.1m (including children’s safeguarding and adult social care) creates a significant budget gap before mitigation of
£15.7m.

• Review your progress
in updating your
medium term financial
plan.

This gap is addressed by the increase in Council Tax of 1.99% precept for adult social care at 2% raising total of £3.6, use of
Integrated Better Care Funds and other monies £3.3m and £0.7m from the London Business rates Pool and delivery of £8.1m
savings. Successful delivery of the budget and the medium term financial strategy will be dependent upon the effective continued
management of demands across all council services and particularly in Children’s Services, and the continued development of robust
of budgetary control and management of pressures in year.

Page 102

• Review the savings
plans for 2018/19 and
2019/20

Agenda Item 7

Value for Money conclusion

In 2018/19 you have assumed £8.1m of growth which includes £2.9m for Adult Social Care, £2.3m for Special Educational Needs
transport costs and £750k in respect of implementing duties required by the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. These were areas of
increased demand in 2017/18. There remains some uncertainty about whether this level of growth will be sufficient to enable services
to remain within budget for 2018/19.

The Council’s savings plans for 2018/19 have been Red Amber Green (RAG) rated with £2.5m being Green, £5.8m Amber and £175k
Red rated. Only £3.1m are new savings with the remainder being brought through from previous years. The significant areas of
expected savings are Adult Social Care and Children’s safeguarding transformation schemes that are anticipated on delivering £3.5m
savings and the reduction of Special Educational Needs transport costs £772k and the continued savings being bought about through
waste collection service
The council will need to monitor closely progress of these savings and the benefits anticipated from growth and investment in these
key demand led services and ensure transformational schemes are implemented across the board.
From 2019/20, the Council’s recommended approach to identifying and delivering savings is largely through an Outcomes Based
Commissioning approach. Further work needs to be completed on the detailed allocation of savings to the themes. The move from
Directorate based savings targets and plans to outcomes based savings targets and plans will require a different approach to the
agreement, tracking and oversight of savings. This will mean a revised approach to the financial planning process and how budgets
are allocated and then monitored.
The Medium Term Financial Plan includes a gap of £3.6m in 2019/20 increasing to £8.7m in 2020/21 and then to £6.7m in 2021/22
and a further £5.4m in 2022/23. The forecast therefore, although with significant level of uncertainty, is that to balance the budget to
2022/23 savings of £24.5m will be required.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

12

A. Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Reports issued

Fees for non-audit services

Report

Date issued

Service

Audit Plan

29 March 2018

Audit related services

Audit Findings Report

26 July 2018

Annual Audit Letter

August 2018

Planned Actual fees
£
£

2016/17 fees
£

Statutory Council/group audit

94,290

94,290

94,290

Audit of Pension Fund

21,000

21,000

21,000

Audit of Sutton Housing Partnership
subsidiary

33,000

33,000

38,000

Housing Benefit Grant Certification
Total fees

12,300

TBC

15,068

160,590

TBC

168,358

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018

Teachers Pensions Claim

6,000

-

Pooling of Capital Receipts Return

2,800

Non- audit services
• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton
UK LLP teams providing services to the Council/group. The table above
summarises all non-audit services which were identified.
•

We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived as a
threat to our independence as the Council/group’s auditor and have ensured
that appropriate safeguards are put in place.

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council/group’s policy on
the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

Agenda Item 7

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit
subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited. Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are
shown under 'Fees for other services'.

-

Page 103

Fees

Fees £

13

Agenda Item 7

Page 104

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

©
2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | August 2018
grantthornton.co.uk

Page 105

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Constitutional Updates Report

Report from:

Jessica Crowe, Monitoring Officer

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Chair

Open/Exempt:

Date:

29 October 2018

Fiona Bywaters, Committee Services Team Leader, 0208 770 5122
● Making Informed Choices
● Smarter Ways of Working
Open

Signed:

Date:

12 October 2018

Jessica Crowe
Assistant Director - Customers, Commissioning
and Governance

1.

Summary

1.1

This report reviews the terms of reference of the Sutton Shareholdings Board for the efficient
and effective oversight of council interests in companies and decision-making in relation to
matters reserved to the Council as shareholder.

1.2

Additionally, the report also recommends that the number of substitutes across the committees
is increased to two for the Sutton Independent Residents, a matter reserved to Full Council.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:
Governance Arrangements

2.1

Recommend the Sutton Shareholdings Board’s amended terms of reference to Council as a
constitutional amendment detailed in Appendix A.

2.2

Recommend to Council that authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make any
consequential amendments to the Council’s Constitution arising from these recommendations.
Committee Substitutes: Sutton Independent Residents

Page 106

Agenda Item 8

2.3

Recommend to Council that the number of substitutes for committees for the Sutton
Independent Residents is increased to two.

3.

Background

3.1

The Sutton Shareholdings Board (formerly ‘Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub Committee’) is a
sub-committee of the Strategy and Resources Committee and comprises five elected members.
In February 2018, the Sutton Shareholdings Board established a Task and Finish Group to
examine governance issues and options for council interests in companies. The group met on
two occasions, with council officers and company directors invited to contribute, and the
discussions at those meetings informed a report to the Sutton Shareholdings Board on 12
September 2018. The Board recommended to the Strategy and Resources committee that its
amended terms of reference be recommended to full council and delegated authority given to
the Monitoring Officer for any consequential amendments resulting from these constitutional
changes.

4.

Issues
Sutton Shareholdings Board - Amended Terms of Reference

4.1

4.2

Considering the need for companies to have freedom to operate effectively in a commercial
environment against the requirement to exercise control in the decision-making process, the
Task and Finish Group recognised that flexibility, and a means of determining reserved matters
outside of the committee cycle, was required. Following discussion and feedback, the following
mechanism is proposed for inclusion in the Sutton Shareholdings Board’s terms of reference:
●

Where decisions reserved to the sub-committee cannot wait until the next biannual
meeting, a nominated Chief Officer would be authorised, subject to the concurrence of
the Chair or, in his/her absence, the Vice-Chair of the Shareholdings Board, to perform
all functions within the powers and duties of that sub-committee in any case in which
the prompt exercise of the Council's functions as shareholder is desirable and
necessary.

●

Authority would be exercised following consultation of at least one member of each
group proportionally represented in the membership of the sub-committee.

●

Decisions would be reported through records of decision, as per the current
constitutional scheme of delegation, and published online in the interests of openness
and transparency.

Some reserved matters however, will remain only for decision by the shareholder board
meaning they cannot be determined by the shareholder representative under the mechanism
outlined above. These are key matters requiring member oversight and scrutiny and are
outlined in the terms of reference (Appendix A) as any reserved matter pertaining to the:
●
●

Annual business plan (adopt or amend);
Annual report and accounts;

Page 107

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Agenda Item 8

Change of auditor;
Dismissal of director;
Engaging in any business other than as contemplated by the business plan;
Formation of a subsidiary;
Listing or trading of shares;
Variation of the rights attached to shares;
Winding up or administration.

Sutton Independent Residents substitute places
4.3

The Sutton Independent Residents group have requested that the number of substitutes they
are allocated for committees is increased from one to two. This request has been made to
ensure the group have adequate cover to attend meetings in the event the named committee
member is unable to attend.

5.

Options Considered
Sutton Shareholdings Board - Amended Terms of Reference

5.1

The Sutton Shareholdings Board considered two alternative models:
●

An officer shareholder representative and working party shareholder board where the
shareholder board would be established as a working party by the Strategy and
Resources committee in lieu of the current sub-committee arrangements. Authority to
act as the shareholder representative would sit with a Chief Officer alone rather than
the Shareholder Board (of which the officer would be a member). The shareholder
board instead plays a consultative or advisory role in the making of decisions and
meetings are held in private (though can be held in public if desired).
This was not proposed as a preferred option due to preference for a formal
sub-committee model where members retain the principal decision-making power,
rather than a senior officer, as well as practicalities in calling effective working party
meetings at short notice. Advantages of the proposed consultative mechanism involve
remote communication in determining reserved matters.

●

A hybrid model: sub-committee and consultative working party mechanism where
aspects of the working party and formal sub-committee models are combined.
Decision-making authority remains with the formal sub-committee with delegation to a
chief officer to take decisions outside of the meeting cycle at a private meeting of a
consultative working party. This would permit discussions in person, aiding openness
and transparency, with a reduced summons length than that required for a committee.
This was not selected as the preferred option: decisions made between meetings could
involve face-to-face consultation in a meeting without the need to establish a working
party.

6.

Impacts and Implications

Page 108

Agenda Item 8

Financial
6.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from the report, though the proposed changes
to the Sutton Shareholdings Board Terms of Reference will enable the Council to operate more
effectively in its Shareholder role. The oversight of business plans, annual accounts and regular
financial reporting will enable the Council to manage its investments in Council owned
companies and have greater visibility of risk.
Legal

6.2

The reserved matters contained in the Shareholders Agreements for each of the companies that
have been set up by the Council, still remain reserved to the sub-committees. As has been
stated above, the delegation to a nominated Chief Officer to make decisions on identified
reserved matters enables those decisions to be made as and when they are required rather
than waiting for the next meeting of the sub-committee. However, this does not preclude the
identified Chief Officer from passing up decisions delegated to them to the sub-committee
where they think it is appropriate.

6.3

The reserved power of the Council as an owner of the company which exists in the Articles of
Association of a company would be exercised by the sub-committee.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Shareholder board terms of reference

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 12 October 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Victoria Goddard

Legal

Yes

Fabiola Hickson

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

Page 109

Agenda Item 8
APPENDIX A

SUTTON SHAREHOLDINGS BOARD
Composition
7.18

This is a sub-committee of the Strategy and Resources Committee and
comprises five elected members appointed on a politically proportional basis.
Purpose

7.19

To exercise responsibility for the Council’s functions as corporate shareholder
of a company, or group of companies.

7.20

Meetings of the Shareholdings Board will take place on a biannual basis and
focus on company performance against objectives as well as adoption of the
business plan and any mid-year amendments.
Relationships

7.21

The Shareholder Board as it considers appropriate in accordance with its
functions, may:
1.

report and make formal recommendations to the Strategy and
Resources Committee of the Council;

2.

make reports to and consult other committees of the Council; or

3.

make reports to and consult the Council’s Audit and Governance
Committee, in relation to that Committee’s particular functions.

Function
7.22

7.23

Monitor the performance of a company in relation to its Business Plans and, in
particular, the company’s performance:
(a)

in financial matters

(b)

against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s
Objects, Business Case or Business Plans; and

(c)

against the values of the Council.

Evaluate and monitor via periodic reports (including annual reports):
(a)

performance and progress against business plans;

(b)

financial and social returns on investment (be that shareholding, loans or
direct investment); and

(c)

risks and opportunities including those arising from joint ventures or new
opportunities.

Page 110

Agenda Item 8

7.24

Consider matters reserved to the Council for shareholder approval, such as
those listed below but more particularly set out in a company’s Articles of
Association or Shareholder Agreement:
(a)

Varying Articles of Association

(b)

Varying ownership and structure

(c)

Variations to shares (number of, rights, etc.

(d)

Entering contracts that:
(i)

have a material effect on council business (including other
companies within the group)

(ii)

are outside of the business plan or do not relate to the business

(iii)

significant in relation to the size of the business, the business plan,
etc.

(e)

Material legal proceedings outside of ordinary business

(f)

Adopting and amending business plans each year and strategic plans (3
years)

(g)

Appointment, removal and the remuneration of directors (members of the
company board)

(h)

Selection of the chair of the board

(i)

Appointment of auditors

(j)

Issue of dividends

7.25

Consider proposals that might be outside of the agreed operational
parameters and business plans.

7.26

Exercise oversight on decision making and assurance that the statutory
functions of the companies are being properly discharged.
Decision making by the shareholder representative

7.27

Where a reserved matter is considered by the Chief Executive to necessitate
a shareholder decision before the next scheduled meeting of the Sutton
Shareholdings Board, the Chief Executive, or their appointed nominee, is
authorised to perform all functions within the duties and powers of the
Shareholdings Board in accordance with provisions set out below and as
shareholder representative.

7.28

The Chief Executive is authorised, subject to the concurrence of the Chair of
the Sutton Shareholdings Board or, in his/her absence, the Vice-Chair, and
the consultation of a member of each political group proportionately
represented on the sub-committee, to perform all functions within the powers
and duties of that Shareholdings Board in any case in which the prompt
performance of any of the Council's shareholding functions is desirable and
necessary, subject to the action taken being reported through delegated
decision notices.

Page 111

Agenda Item 8

7.29

The Chief Executive, or his/her nominee, is further authorised to exercise the
Council’s vote as shareholder at general meetings of a company.

7.30

The following matters to be determined by the Council as shareholder are
reserved for decision by the Sutton Shareholdings Board only:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Annual business plan (adopt or amend);
Annual report and accounts;
Change of auditor;
Dismissal of director;
Engaging in any business other than as contemplated by the business
plan;
Formation of a subsidiary;
Listing or trading of shares;
Variation of the rights attached to shares;
Winding up or administration.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 113

Report to:

Strategy & Resources Committee

Report title:

Portage Service Spin Out

Report from:

Niall Bolger - Chief Executive

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Ruth Dombey

Open/Exempt:

Signed:

Agenda Item 9

Date:

29 October 2018

Shona Okeke - Public Health Project Officer, 0208 770 5506
Tom Alexander - Head of Strategic Business, 020 8770 4522
● Making Informed Choices
● Living Well Independently
Open with the exception of Appendix A ,B and C which is exempt by
virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.
Date:
15 October 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

As part of the Smarter Council initiative, the council has had a long standing policy of asking
staff to rethink how they could best deliver their service in order to improve outcomes for local
people within a reduced budget. In October 2014, the council agreed an offer to staff which sets
out how they will be supported to consider new delivery models on this basis. This, along with
our work on shared services, has enabled considerable changes to how the council is able to
sustain and improve services and has specifically led to the setting up of:
● Cygnet ICT
● Opportunity Sutton Ltd.
● Encompass
● Cognus

1.2

In summary the process has two parts. One is the completion of an expression of interest that
needs to be agreed by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the Lead Member - this
gives council staff a mandate to put together a detailed business plan to explain how they would
transition into a new delivery model and sets out why this option would be favourable. That
business plan including financial assessment of the proposed model is what is set out in the
accompanying papers. This paper proposes letting the service manager open a Community
Interest Company (CIC) and then transferring her service from the council into the new
company (NewCo) so that it can offer new services and generate additional income.

Agenda Item 9

Page 114

1.3

Portage is an internally provided service covering the London Borough of Sutton only. The
eligibility criteria are;
● The child lives in the London Borough of Sutton
● The child is between the ages of birth and three years old at point of referral
● The child has two or more areas of developmental difficulties and are
demonstrating a minumum of a six-month delay impacting on their learning.

1.4

An earlier version of this proposal was presented at Strategy and Resources in July 2018 and
invited back to October committee for further clarification. See section 5.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy & Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Formally confirm the Council’s support for the transition of the internal Portage service into a
Community Interest Company (CIC) based on the externally validated business plan.

2.2

Delegate to the Strategic Director of People’s Services, authority to negotitate contractual
arrangements as part of the transfer needed (see appendix A).

2.3

Delegate to the Strategic Director of Resources, the authority to negotiate the transfer of office
assets and buy-back arrangements based on previous experiences with other new delivery
models.

3.

Background

3.1

The Sutton Portage Service is a pre-school home visiting education service providing a bespoke
home visiting service for disabled children and those with special educational needs. The service
provides a direct intervention with the children and a supportive and nurturing service for parents
and carers. Sutton Portage also delivers similar services to community based groups around the
borough.

3.2

Sutton Portage Service is funded entirely through DSG funding and whilst there are no specific
savings target set against its budget, all services are expected to review the potential and
opportunities that they have to contribute to the council’s budget deficit and the improvements to
the service that can be made for Sutton residents, staff and stakeholders.

3.3

There are currently limited equivalent home based services on offer locally and none expected
to be established in the immediate future to the best of our knowledge.

3.4

The service is valued by both commissioners and its current users base and has demonstrably
improved the lives of the people it has served to date.

3.5

There is potential for commissioning opportunities, for example through the Outcome Based
Commissioning Reviews (OBCR) and in partnership with Sutton Clinical Commissioning Group

Page 115

Agenda Item 9

(CCG), in order to reduce demand on statutory services as the spin out broadens its offer. This
should also support the Sutton Plan.
4. Service offer
4.1

If the recommendations are agreed, this will be the first Portage Service to develop into CIC
status in its own right and this new model of service delivery aims to be the lead in its field;
developing a range of specialist and bespoke services for its local community and residents that
are not currently on offer. A greater variety of support services will ensure a sustainable future,
with the ability to target families who both meet and do not meet the current portage criteria.
There should also be a reduction in the dependency of families on council services whilst
maintaining high quality standards; all without increasing the Portage budget.

4.2

The NewCo intends on keeping the current portage service free at the point of contact and
only available to those who meet the portage criteria, with a range of new additional
services available for all families. Whilst the new services will be generate income, discounted
prices will be made available to Sutton families including a discretionary fund to enable service
to be purchased. This model is also dependent on financial support provided by external
investors.

4.3

The NewCo expects a staff expansion (finance dependent). To manage this expansion in the
first instance, current staff will be TUPED across on the current Local Government Pension
Scheme and all new staff will be offered a market rate pension scheme.

5.

Issues for consideration and mitigating actions

5.1

Members asked for further clarification at July committee. These have been considered and
mitigating actions have been taken;

5.2

A need for an independent review of financial planning
5.2.1 An independent financial assessment of the NewCo was undertaken by Ian Pettman, head
of finance at Virgin and chartered accountant. The assessment recommended that the
NewCo ‘work to the minimum expenditure scenario, with increasing cost only when further
funding is confirmed’ (see appendix B of the business plan). Please note that Ian Pettman
has no vested interest in this proposal and has supported this project on a one-off pro
bono basis.

5.3

Resilience of the service going forward
5.3.1 The current service manager will become the managing director (MD) of the NewCo. In
any eventuality where the MD is unable to make decisions, the NewCo will be governed by
two executive directors and further supported by an advisory board including
representation from parents, staff, professional services (such as lawyer/accountant) and
two external networks in the private sector.

Agenda Item 9

5.3.2

5.4

6.

Page 116

Staff will have the opportunity to be upskilled specifically in leadership qualities through
support provided by the Mutuals Leadership Development Programme for emerging and
early stage mutuals (Cabinet office).

Financial positioning of the service going forward
5.4.1 Prior to July Strategy and Resources, the service manager had already secured £25,000
of external funding. At the time of writing, the NewCo now has a bank account which will
provide more opportunity to secure further funding, of which at least £100,000 is in line of
sight.
5.4.2

The Council intends to contract the new CIC for a period of two years for the Portage
Service only, from the date of spin out. The annual value of this contract will be £225,400
p.a. for this period (assuming members approval). The NewCo will then receive a 2 year
contract with London Borough of Sutton to provide Portage services to Sutton residents
after which they would have to compete with the wider market. This goes some way in
short to managing the sustainability of the NewCo and the delivery of the Council’s
anticipated changes within children’s social care.

5.4.3

Further work has taken place to review the reliability of the finance projections including a
risk matrix and sensitivity analysis around income and expenditure assumptions. The
internal finance service has reviewed the finances in line with these changes alongside the
independent validation carried out by Ian Pettman.

Options and opportunities
6.1 The service will need mixed use accomodation and the rental costs are likely to be high. An
interim arrangement is currently being arranged to house the service across 2 rooms in
Central Sutton Library to provide a range of activies to enhance the provision for familes. The
view is still to find a more suitable location long term.
6.2 Business planning reflects accommodation costs at the higher end of the spectrum as a
cautious approach but it may be possible to reduce this cost significantly if premises at lower
rent can be identified.
6.3 Since July Committee, the NewCo is now registered on companies house with a registered
bank account, now allowing the possibility for consideration from funders. There continues to
be credible commitment from funders which could provide the platform for company and
service growth.
6.4 Buy-back arrangements are yet to be decided. Whilst there are positives to continuing with
LBS services, the CIC has the opportunity to access market rate services including but not
limited to;
● IT (CIC is likely to continue with LBS/RBK services)
● Payroll

Page 117

●
●
●
7.

Agenda Item 9

Pensions (market rate to be offered to new staff. LGPS operate a closed scheme for
TUPED staff)
Financial management
Insurance

Impacts and Implications
Financial

7.1

This project, if agreed, will not, initially, save money from the general fund, however it should
help the pressures on our Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), either by enabling the service to
operate more cheaply and / or by generating income that it currently cannot access.

7.2

To date, the costs of the project have been contained within the existing service budget, the
Smarter Council and through the support from the internal services listed at section 7.

7.3

Included within the Business Plan is a 5 year budget plan, detailing all expenditure broken down
by type (including initial set up costs and contingency), alongside all income / funding sources.
The funding and financial viability for this project is dependent on both continued investment of
some DSG funding contribution and a major new external funding contribution.

7.4

A cash flow forecast is also included for year 1. Assumptions have been made around timings of
receipt of the 2 major funding contributions, this being crucial in determining the value of an
initial loan so that obligations around payment of set up costs and month 1 expenditure items
can be settled on time.
Legal

7.5

The CIC was registered on the 20 July 2018 at Companies House as PLAYWISE LEARNING
CIC, a community interest company limited by guarantee (registered CIC number is 1147564).

7.6

It is proposed that the new company will be a staff mutual providing the Portage Service to the
Council. It will not be a company falling under regulation 12 (1) of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR) (also known as the Teckal exemption) and so normally the Council
would have to go out to the market and carry out a tender. As the services being provided to the
council will fall under Schedule 3 of the PCR, the threshold levels to apply for the purposes of
the PCR is £615,278. The proposal of a 2 year term would result in the contract value being
under the threshold and so the PCR will not directly apply, though the Treaty principles of
equality, transparency etc. would. As the council has advised they have not been able to identify
an alternative provider this could be grounds for a waiver from Contract Standing Orders in
order that the Contract could be awarded directly to the CIC.

7.7

If a direct award is made the legal documentation which will be required is a Transfer
Agreement which will cover the actual transfer of the service from the Council to the CIC. A
Commissioning Agreement will also be required to govern the relationships between the Council
as a commissioner of the service and the CIC providing the services.

Page 118

Agenda Item 9

7.8

Any assistance provided to the CIC from the Council whether it be e.g. loans or provision of
accommodation would need to be carefully considered in light of the State Aid rules.

7.9

As existing Council staff will be working for the new company there will need to be legal advice
on TUPE and pensions.

8.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix
letter

Title

A

Portage Business Plan exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972

B

Independent Assessment by Ian Pettman exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of
schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

C

Delivery Model Impact Analysis exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972

D

Equalities Impact Assessment

E

Risk Register

Background documents
Portage Service Impact Report

Audit Trail
Version:

Final

Date 17 October 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Matt Tizzard

Legal

Yes

Fabiola Hickson

Human Resources

Yes

Priam Samuel

Adult Social Services

Yes

Sandra Roche

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Completed

Page 119

Agenda Item 9
APPENDIX D

Equality Impact Assessment
Please state the service / project your
proposal relates to:

Portage Spin Out

Lead Officer:

Pam Fry

Directorate:

People’s Directorate

Is this a new policy or a review of an
existing policy or service? :

New service delivery model

What are the aims and purpose of this
proposal? :

To spin out the current LBS Portage service
out of the local authority into an
independent organisation. This proposal
recommends that this is a Community
Interest Company

Which of the geographic areas does this
proposal affect? (Insert any specific wards
or state all borough):

All Wards

Which stakeholder group or groups does
this proposal affect? (Broad groups - e.g.
Staff at LBS, residents, third and voluntary
sector):

Residents of Sutton (including children),
LBS staff and the Voluntary sector

Whose needs is the proposal designed to
meet? (Specific groups of people e.g.
those who directly use the service):

(a) Children 0-8 with disabilities
(b) Children 0-3 who meet the portage
criteria, with disabilities
(c) Parents of the above

What evidence has been collected to
inform this proposal? :

1. Portage is a non statutory service
and under no obligation to continue
to be funded via the local authority
2. Portage is entirely funded through
the Dedicated School Grant and this
funding cannot be confirmed for the
future
3. A 5 year finance projection for the
possible spin out has been written

Agenda Item 9

Page 120

alongside the finance service
4. Stakeholder engagement sessions
with parents/carers who currently
use the service and some who do
not use the service (due to being out
of the criteria) have been carried out
to understand the needs of the users
5. There is currently a waiting list on
access to Portage due to lack of
capacity within the team
What equality-related information, for
example through consultation with
stakeholders, has been gathered on this
proposal?:

Baseline service level information about the
service users (existing through database
and updated monthly) such as age, gender,
nationality, residing ward, disability
(diagnosis and prime area of need)

Based on the information you have
collated, which equality characteristics may
be affected by this proposal

Age and disability

Please give further information on how
these characteristics may be affected

Whilst the current portage service only
provides the core home visiting service for
children from 0 to 3 (and in the community
services up to 5, the new service will create
capacity for a home visiting service for
children up to 8.
The core home visiting service for Portage
will continue in the new service delivery
model under the current criteria. Additional
services will be made available for children
and families who do not fall into the portage
criteria and will develop disability specific
support groups

What will be done to promote equality of
opportunity as part of this proposal?:

●

●

Greater accessibility to Portage &
bespoke home interventions (and
support services) for children and
families who do not currently meet the
portage criteria.
Due to the nature of a Community
Interest Company, any surplus made is
reinvested back into the organisation.
Built into the model of the new
organisation is discretionary fund which
will heavily subsidise services or
completely pay for a package of
services for families on a low income,
benefits or those with two or more

Page 121

Agenda Item 9

disabled children - this will ensure that
money is not a barrier to accessing
services.
In what way could this proposal positively
Positive impact
or negatively impact on the physical and/or ● A range of new services will be offered
mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a
including services to support the mental
negative impact what action will be taken to
health needs of children and promoting
mitigate this? What evidence has been or
health and well-being for parents and
will be collected? :
carers - the introduction and evaluation
of services will indicate the impact
● The new community space will be
disability accessible/ DDA Compliant
Negative impact
● If the new service is not re-commissioned
by the council the lack of a Portage
service would negatively impact on
families and children
● If the new service is not TECKAL
compliant - the portage service may be
temporarily suspended.
What actions are going to be taken as a
result of this EIA to address negative
impacts or previously met unidentified
needs?:

●

●

What data monitoring or evaluation activity
has been put into place to monitor the
impact of this proposal? :

Long term contract to be put in place via
legal to offer an initial long term offer and
a good commissioning bid in the future to
ensure the long term sustainability of the
core offer via the DSG
A review with legal to ascertain
commissioning and procurement
processes for a CIC

Staff Evaluation
● The full Portage team has undertaken a
review of their thoughts, concerns and
hopes for the new service. Overall there
was a positive response to the potential
changes
● Staff have continued to be involved in the
discussion with the Portage manager as
the project
Data Monitoring
● Target numbers monitored for current
service users accessing the service - this
will be reviewed to ensure numbers
remain high.
● Waiting list numbers and length of wait is
monitored - this will reduce with the
introduction of the new services

Agenda Item 9

Page 122

Evaluation activity
● Regular updates from workstream leads
inform any concerns that staff may be
having about next steps
● Use of Google+ community to gain a
sense check of how staff are feeling
about the proposal
● Project Team meetings with heads of
service have been key to providing
recommendations for this proposal
● Ongoing annual service reviews with
parents/ carers/ stakeholders and
community based group offers

Risk Description

Probability
(H/M/L)

Impact

Impact
(H/M/L)

High

Scope to develop the service is limited

High

Risk to continuity and quality of service

High

Medium

Exposure to liability for
directors and / or company. Exposure to loss for
employees, LBS, customers, suppliers and
directors

High

TUPE implications when
tendering for contracts

High

Staff transfer into the company on existing T&Cs
which could reduce profitability

High

Unable to secure a building for the new
service

Medium

Potential loss of business and profitability as the
space is required to lead on some of the more
income generating areas of the business.

High

Company is unable to meet LGPS
employer contribution obligations

Medium

Shortfall in pension funds.
Unable to pay full pensions to current or future
beneficiaries. Pension scheme becomes an
unsecured creditor and company fails due to
debts

High

Failure to have a clear service delivery
model

Low

Service delivery failure. Failure to meet statutory
duty. Risk to continuity and quality of service

High

Contract not awared by Council

Low

Portage service discontinued for families
reaching the criteria. NewCo unable to start
business/pay staff with no income

High

Unable to secure funds by go live date

Medium

Service delivery failure. Unable to run
additional services and cover bills. NewCo
would shut down

High

Difficulty marketing new services to
stakeholders

Low

Low income generation, which may lead to
reducing price of new service - putting at risk
the financial viability of the organisation

Slippage in timescales due to consultation
period

Low

Slippage in go live date by one month
(potentially more)

Low

Business model can be duplicated as this
is not protected

Medium

Service no longer unique. Risk of losing
customers to other businesses = business
closure

High

Loan not approved from the council

Medium

Service delivery failure. Unable to begin
business due to low capital costs

High

High

Failure to gain Member approval to form
CIC

Medium

Loss of Key staff

Low

Failure to manage
insurance risks

Medium

Need letter of intent from sponsors & costs can be
controleed as new business activity will only be
delivered as and when the funding is secured
Ensure compelling evidence base and benefits
through Business Plan
The current workforce are extremely trained and are
dedicated to their role. Staff have been informed
throughout this process and continue to play a role
in the shaping of the new service going forward and
support the current plans
1) All insurance requirements will be identified within
the business plan. 2) Ensure the insurance risk is
mitigated for employees and directors
1) Ensure that HR is involved in any
potential TUPE situation. 2) Company policy for
TUPE situations. 3) Understand the costs / impact
of TUPE within bids.
Work with asset management upon approval on
where the service could be based in the short term
(LBS property). Alternatively the service could
remain within the council building for the meantime.
1) Take internal / external advice on
how to transfer / manage pension contributions for
seconded staff. 2) Governance to provide scrutiny of
financial management and once approved system
should support LGPS members
The service offer will be shared with board, senior
managers, service users and staff for discussion
and deliberation
Working with Legal services to confirm whether a
contract between the council and the NewCo to
deliver the portage service for a defined period of
time. This will ensure the sustainability of the
service and of the organisation
1) Finances to be externally validated to ensure that
they are not too ambitious. 2) Continue to work with
contacts across the sector to ensure funds
3)Service to be brought back in house
1) Stakeholder engagement has already taken place
to scope whether families would be willing to buy
services
2) Communication about changes to the new
service offer will need to be made available in
enough time, for families to decide to make the step.
3)New Co to ensure adequate promotion takes
place
Ensure timetables have been agreed in advance
making space for public holidays
30 years of Portage in the borough means that the
team is trusted. These relationships should continue
either informally or through Memorandum of
Association
Lawyers to play a role in supporting this
Service to find alternative funding model and
perhaps delay spin out

RAG

AMBER

Risk Owner

Progress

Date Reviewed

Resolution
implemented by

Closed / open

Scope agreed - agreed a longer
implementation period for the
Project owner/finance
integrationof support
S&R Committee date16/7/18

GREEN

AMBER

Project Owner

Staff evaluations completed to
judge the satisfaction of staff

GREEN

Project Manager / Project
Owner

To take advice from insurance

RED

Project Manager/Project
owner/HR

Seeking advice from HR

RED

Project
Owner/Manager/Asset
management

Seeking support from Asset
management including potential
use of Sutton Youth Centre

RED

Project Owner/Manager/HR

GREEN

Project Owner

GREEN

Project owner /Project
manager/Legal

Contract value is under the Public
Contracts Regulations value, so
NewCo can be awarded a 2 year
contract for Portage services

AMBER

Project owner

Since July Committee, letters of
intent have been received. CIC
has been registered and now has
a bank account.

AMBER

Project owner/project
manager

Project manager working with
Comms team to draft key
messages for stakeholders

AMBER

HR/ Project owner

CMT agreed tupe/consultation
timetable.

RED

HR/ Project owner

Service manager developing
relationships and opportunities
for sales outside of Sutton

AMBER

Project owner

NewCo to discuss with council
pending members approval

Business plan outlines that new
staff will be employed under
different terms and conditions
including a closed pension
scheme
Business plan has been shared
with a number of internaland
external stakeholders to access
the viability of the operation
model

Page 123

Risk of members and CMT not on board with this,
service spin out (completely away from the
organisation) will not be viable without this
finance

Sponsorship not fully agreed at this point
by external funders

Mitigating action

Agenda Item 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Risk Description

No guarantee of letter of intent from
external funders
Failure to set up the company in strict
compliance with legislation and statutory
guidance
Problems resulting from
staff reorganisation and transfer to
community interest company

Project owner becomes unwell an
unable to continue pushing forward the
project

Probability
(H/M/L)

RAG

Risk Owner

Progress

RED

Project owner

Interest from child care organisations to
buy products and services from the
NewCo

Impact on cash flow and sustainability of
the set up and sustainability of the new
company

High

Low

Non compliance with the Companies Act

High

Follow advice and supprt from Legal
services

AMBER

Project owner/manager

Project owner supported by legal services
and external support from business
advisors

Medium

Loss of continuity of service.
Loss of pension rights

High

1) HR will be fully involved in managing
the transfer / secondment process. 2)
Internal departments will also be
consulted on LGPS management.

AMBER

Project owner

Project owner in discussion with HR

Low

Loss of continutiy of the process

Medium

In the new structure there is capacity to
deputise

GREEN

Project Owner

Medium

Difficulty to deliver services in line with
the new vision

Medium

AMBER

Project manager

Low

Loss of continuity of the launch of a new
service.

Exposure of liability

Medium

Cannot deliver services or will have to
buy

Insufficient back office support at go live

Medium

Medium
Loss of LBS contract
High

GREEN

Medium

Early identification and meeting with
board post approval at October S&R.
Session to be facilitated on shared
vision for the work

AMBER

High

Ensure risk is mitigated for directors

AMBER

High

Unable to get started on day one due to
missing equipment etc. Discussions to
be had with support leads (project team)
about cost of support

GREEN

Medium

Reach out to community as soon as
possible after committee to ensure that
they have maximum time to make any
changes following S&R

GREEN

Service unable to go live

Failure to win new business
Portage unable to be delivered/Portage
service to be reviewed and further cuts
made
Unable to carry out business especially
Unable to create links with lcoal
authorities to link into services

Project owner

Directors and advisory board to be
nominated to step in when appropriate

Project owner

Project owner

Project owner/project board

Project owner

Project owner
Medium

Medium

MOU to be signed
Early promotion of changes
MOU/SLA's to confim how NewCo will
work with other services in the borough
(eg health visitors/social workers etc)

GREEN
Project owner/project manager

Project Owner has identified a second in
command which will help withs shifting a
load. In terms of governance, the advisory
board/exec directors boad will be able to
input into the running of the newco
Staff met with Pensions in September.
One member of staff to attend Mutuals
Leadership Development programme run
by the Cabinet Office to ensure a shared
vision between staff and to upskill
Staff and project owner to atted Mutuals
Development Programme to provide
support for transition
Project Owner has identified a second in
command which will help withs shifting a
load. In terms of governance, the advisory
board/exec directors boad will be able to
input into the running of the newco
Project owner to seek advice for
insurance going forward
IT to be taken forward
LGPS to be frozen for new staff
Insurance (external)
Payroll (external)
Finance (external)
Project owner is making
connections/networks with people in her
field. Of recent, the service manager was
asked to link in to people across the
borough
Council intends to provide contract for
NewCo for two years assuming member
approval - for the Portage service only.
Value of 225K

Date Reviewed

Resolution
implemented by

Closed / open

Page 125

Medium

Service to receive support from
corporate core and HR to carry out
culture change workshops

Medium

Lack of healthy governance structure

Unable to get advisory board

Failure to identify service users

Mitigating action

Medium

Medium

Failure to manage insurance risk

Impact (H/M/L)

Relationship management with external
funders. Costs can be controlled by
managament of the expansion - not to
take place until the funding is
guaranteed.

Difficulty in influencing and implementing
a new culture for the organisation
Inability for staff to remain resilient and
pick up work where needed

Impact

Information about changes to be shared
widely post committee.

GREEN

Agenda Item 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 127

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Annual Report on Corporate Asset Management Strategy

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director for Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council and Councillor Sunita
Gordon, Lead Member for Resources

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Ade Adebayo, Assistant Director for Resources (Asset Planning,
Management & Capital Delivery). 020 8770 6128

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

●

Date:

29 October 2018

Smarter Ways of Working

Appendix C is exempt on the basis of Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972
Date:
17 October 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

Strategy & Resources committee approved the Council’s corporate asset management strategy
in February 2015 and resolved to receive an annual report on progress with delivery of the
strategy.

1.2

This year’s annual report notes the good progress that has been made with delivery of the
strategy and details performance of the Investment Property Portfolio (IPP) using the indicators
adopted for its monitoring. The report also notes the significant changes made by government to
the regulatory framework that guide local authority investments. Consequently, the aims of the
council’s Investment Property Portfolio and the strategy for its delivery have been revised, along
with the council’s policy for governance and portfolio management.

2.

Recommendations
The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Note the good progress that has been made in implementing the corporate asset management
strategy 2015 - 2019.

2.2

Note the strong performance of the Investment Property Portfolio.

2.3

Agree that the strategic aims and priorities of the Investment Property Portfolio are amended as
set out in paragraph 4.60 of this report.

Agenda Item 10

Page 128

2.4

Approve the revised Policy for Governance and Portfolio Management (October 2018) as
attached at Appendix D.

3.

Background

3.1

The Corporate Asset Management Strategy 2015/19 was approved by the Strategy &
Resources (S & R ) Committee on the 9 February 2015. The strategy covered all of the
Council’s property with the exception of housing and schools.

3.2

The strategy included setting up an Investment Property Portfolio (IPP). The council’s Policy for
Governance and Portfolio Management of the IPP was agreed by the S & R Committee on the
28 September 2015. Property investments over £53m have been made since approval of the
strategy, generating an additional net annual revenue income of £1m which is available to
support provision of council services, with an additional £0.8m put into a special IPP reserve.

3.3

The strategy also included a requirement to report progress with its key targets and milestones
annually to the Strategy & Resources committee and the portfolio management arrangements
for the IPP also include reporting on key indicators. Performance against these targets,
milestones and indicators is set out below in this report.

3.4

The government has significantly tightened the regulatory framework for local authority
investments by revising its Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the New
Guidance”) and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CPIFA) has also
published a revised guidance on Treasury Management and the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance. The council has a mandatory duty under the Local Government Act 2003 to give
regard to both documents in carrying out its functions, which include investments and
borrowing. The New Guidance came into effect from 1 April 2018.

3.5

The council’s IPP strategy has consequently been revised to reflect the New Guidance.

4.

Issues
Progress Monitoring - corporate asset management strategy

4.1

Good progress continues to be made with delivery of the strategy. In line with changes to
arrangements for the delivery of council services, notable progress has been made with
reducing the number of properties the council operates. Staff are now able to work flexibly from
any of the council’s offices and from home.

4.2

The Corporate Asset Management Strategy cuts across all council functions and identified the
strategic property decisions the Council would have to make over the 4-year life of the strategy
so that the property portfolio properly supports the delivery of corporate objectives.

4.3

Nine key targets and milestones were identified to track progress with delivering the asset
management strategy. A delivery plan for the strategy was also produced which identified 43
key actions to track progress with implementation. Progress against the targets and actions has
been assessed for this report and attached as Appendices A & B.

Page 129

4.4

Agenda Item 10

Performance against the targets has been assessed using the traffic light system - Red Amber
Green (RAG) system. A summary of the RAG ratings is set out below in Tables 1 and 2.
Table 1 – Targets & Milestones (Appendix A)
Green

Amber

4

3

Green

Amber

For Operational Buildings

15

9

1

25

For Non-Operational Buildings

14

0

0

14

For Economic Regeneration

4

0

0

4

Total

33

9

1

43

Targets/Milestones

Red

Total
2

9

Table 2 – Delivery Plan Actions (Appendix B)
Red

Total

4.5

Two of the targets/milestones are unlikely to be delivered by March 2019 and are assessed as
Red. This includes the target to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from Council buildings by 50%
by March 2018 compared with emissions in 2010/11. Progress against this target has actually
been noteworthy with an overall reduction of 38%. Although still short of the 50% target, it had
always been recognised that this was a particularly challenging target that would require radical
changes to our operational property portfolio. This target, along with other targets in the One
Planet Living plan is currently being reviewed as part of the council's sustainability strategy
which is scheduled for adoption by March 2019.

4.6

The second milestone/target that is unlikely to be met is the target to achieve a 25% reduction in
the council’s property occupational costs. Although savings up to £539k had been achieved by
March 2017, this had reduced to £153k by March 2018 due to a number of factors that include
increase in the National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) across a number of buildings, increase in
the security costs at Civic Offices, transfer of the management and operational costs of
Children’s Centres back to the council, and a general increase in utility prices.

4.7

One action in the delivery plan is unlikely to be delivered in its entirety and has been assessed
to be Red. This is the proposal to transfer the Grove building to a partnership of three voluntary
and community sector organisations for use as a community hub. Although Heritage Lottery
Funding was secured the plans were shelved as refurbishment costs came back significantly
higher than the funds secured.

Page 130

Agenda Item 10

Performance of the Investment Property Portfolio
4.8

Governance and portfolio management arrangements for the IPP were agreed by Strategy &
Resources committee in September 2015. The portfolio management arrangements included
setting up an officer-led Investment Property Portfolio Board to take responsibility for reviewing
investment opportunities and for recommending properties for acquisition or disposal. The IPP
Board is also responsible for monitoring performance and for presenting this annual report on
the IPP to the Strategy & Resources Committee.

4.9

The aim of the IPP is to generate secure medium to long term income from the portfolio. A
target of increasing the gross income from the IPP by £1.6m by 2019/20 was agreed, alongside
evaluation criteria and a corporate process for acquiring new commercial property. This target
has been surpassed as the increase in gross income currently stands at £3.07m per year.

4.10 Five key indicators were adopted to monitor performance of the portfolio. Performance against
the indicators is reported below along with a property market narrative:
a)

Total Return – which is the annual increase in net capital value (expressed as a
percentage) plus net income growth (expressed as a percentage of the capital value)

Total Portfolio
Year

Asset Value
(£000’s)

Income
Return (%)

£42,666

Net Asset
Value
Growth (%)
1.94%*

2015/16

5.31%*

Total
Return
LBS (%)
7.25%*

UK All Property
Total Return
(IPD Index) (%)
13.1% (Dec 2015)

2016/17

£75,739

1.72%*

3.78%*

5.50%*

3.5% (Dec 2016)

2017/18

£93,935

4.14%

3.61%

7.76%

11.3% (Dec 2017)

* restated values following change in methodology
By Property Type - 2018 Outturn
Property Type

AV as (%)
of Total
Portfolio
41.82%

Net Asset
Value
Growth (%)
1.56%

Income
Return (%)

Total Return
(%)

Offices

Asset Value
(AV)
(£000’s)
£39,062

2.12%

3.68%

Leisure

£4,177

4.47%

0.34%

6.82%

7.16%

Industrial

£26,420

28.29%

13.54%

4.96%

18.50%

Retail

£23,736

25.41%

0.21%

4.14%

3.93%

b)

Effective Return – Income receivable less costs, expressed as a percentage of capital value

Page 131

Year

Asset Value
(£000’s)

2015/16

Agenda Item 10

Effective Return
(%)

£44,156

Net Income (£000’s)
(less interest, minimum revenue
provision and management)
£2,320

2016/17

£77,229

£2,934

3.84%*

2017/18

£93,935

£3,242

3.56%

5.25%*

* restated values following change in methodology
c)

Growth in Asset Value and Gross Income - Percentage increase per year

Year

Asset Value
(£000’s)

Asset Growth
(%)

Gross income
(£000’s)

Income Growth
(%)

2015/16

£44,156

1.89%

£2,809*

0.75%*

2016/17

£77,229

74.90%

£4,565*

65.77%*

2017/18

£93,395

20.93%

£5,883

17.29%*

* restated values following change in methodology
d)

Vacancy Rate – Expressed as a percentage of vacant space and potential rent loss
compared with total lettable space and overall rent

Year

Nr. of
Properties

Nr.
Vacant

Vacant
Lettable
Space

Rent Loss
(If vacant for
whole year)

Vacancy
Rate (% of
total rent)

9,458 m2

Vacancy
Rate (%
lettable
space)
0.87%

April 2016

121

2

N/A

N/A

April 2017

111**

2

2,384 m2

0.26%

£195,003

3.34%

April 2018

111

5

2,036m2

0.22%

£109,000

1.85%

** number of IPP properties reduced as agreed by S & R committee (Nov 2017)
4.11 Performance of the portfolio against all the indicators is strong. The total return of the council’s
IPP has been compared with the Investment Property Databank (IPD) UK All Property index
published by MSCI Inc., which is the acknowledged property investment benchmark indicator.
The council calculates its own total returns. The formula has been adjusted this year to improve
accuracy resulting in the restatement of affected indices (previous years) to ensure like for like
comparison.

4.12 The significant contraction between 2015 and 2016 in the total returns of the IPD index reflects
the impact of Brexit referendum vote. This has since been shrugged off with an annualised total
return for all UK property of 11.3% by December 2017. This is also reflected in the council’s own

Agenda Item 10

Page 132

portfolio with total returns increasing from 5.50% to 7.16% in the year. The breakdown
according to the different types of properties in the portfolio mirror what is happening nationally
with industrial properties having the strongest performance and retail the weakest.
4.13 There has been growth in both gross and net income over the reporting period. The indicators
show a step change in the effective return achieved by the portfolio from 5.35% in 2015/16 to
3.86% in 2016/17 and 3.56% in 2017/18. The drop between 2015/16 and 2016/17 is largely
explained by interest payments and provisions made for capital repayments which are set
against the gross income for new acquisitions and which do not apply to the previously owned
stock of commercial property. It is expected that the effective income return, which represents
the income that can be applied to provision of other council services will remain stable at around
this level going forward.
4.14 The vacancy analysis shows that the council’s properties remain well-let, with a relatively small
loss of income from vacant properties. The council’s properties are however subject to the same
property market outlook that affects the rest of UK property. The commentary below sets out the
views of some of the leading UK property firms. There is broad consensus that retail properties
will continue to face difficulties and that industrial warehouses and logistics will continue to
outperform other property classes.
Market Environment
4.15 Gerald Eve publish a property investment briefing note (INVBRIEF) twice a year and in their
summer 2018 edition, they reported the significant improvement in the UK all property total
returns, which they noted now stands 13.4% above where it was in the period immediately
preceding the Brexit vote in June 2016. They noted the difficulties of the retail sector with
negative capital growth and low rental growth. Offices are showing positive growth of both
capital values and rents, but the strongest performing sector has been the industrial sector with
a total return of 20% over a 12 month period.
4.16 Looking forward, Gerald Eve are forecasting a softening of returns over the next 12 months,
predicting a halving of the current total return of 11.3%. This reflects their view of the economic
impact of the uncertainty regarding Brexit and potential trade wars.
4.17 GVA, in their own summer 2018 edition of their property market review (EPMR), noted that
investor appetite for UK commercial property remains robust and that lack of buying
opportunities is curtailing transactions. They reported that the rise in overseas investment due to
the depreciation of Sterling has moderated although much of the gap has since been filled by
UK investor interest which has increased by 29% in the year.
4.18 Looking forward, GVA noted that industrial properties remain one of the most sought after.
Demand is also noted to be high for offices with limited supply restricting activity in the market
thereby making properties with long-term secured income highly sought after. They forecast that
the positive interest in UK real estate will continue and that high quality stock is likely to trade at
a premium, with retail being the exception.

IPP - Income Risk Analysis and Obsolescence

Page 133

Agenda Item 10

4.19 The CIPFA review of the IPP carried out in August 2017 highlighted the need for the council to
consider the impact of obsolescence on the portfolio. Obsolescence is generally recognised to
be of three types (see below). Ultimately it will have an adverse impact on a building’s rental
income and capital value.
4.20 The three generally recognised types of obsolescence are:
● Physical - deterioration in the condition of individual building materials
● Functional - when the building no longer offers the best possible design for its intended
use, including technology and building systems and compliance with legislation
● Economic - external factors such as deterioration in the neighbourhood, traffic patterns,
infrastructure, changing use patterns affecting demand for the property
4.21 The three main options for responding to a property affected by obsolescence is to:
a) Invest in the property to address physical and functional deficiencies, and either retain
or sell
b) Retain the property without any further investment
c) Sell without any further investment
4.22 There are many reasons why properties in any portfolio might be sold. However, as a response
to obsolescence, a decision to invest, retain or sell should be driven by the action that will
enable the highest value to be realised from the asset. The properties that generate the majority
of the council’s income from the IPP (80% of total income) have been analysed to test the
security of income in the short to medium term and establish whether any intervention is
required to address obsolescence. The detail is set out in confidential Appendix C.
4.23 The conclusion is that the income from the IPP is relatively secure in the medium term and that
obsolescence is not a major issue. It is considered that there is little need for additional
investment on the IPP and that all these top rental properties should be retained by the council.
Over the next 12 months, a detailed exercise will be carried out into the remaining 91 properties
that generate the remaining 20% of the IPP income so as to identify any investment
requirements or opportunities to realise value by disposals.
Review of the Investment Property Portfolio Strategy
4.24 The principle of setting up an investment property portfolio (IPP) was agreed by the the S & R
committee of the 9 February 2015, with its governing policy, priorities and portfolio management
arrangements agreed by the S & R committee of the 16 September 2015.
4.25 The aims of the IPP were to:
a)

to deliver a secure medium to long-term investment return in line with agreed criteria
and

b)

support the economic viability of the borough

Agenda Item 10

Page 134

4.26 The second of the two aims - to support economic viability of the borough - was removed in
2017, leaving investment return as the sole purpose of the IPP.
4.27 In delivering the IPP strategy, the council has invested both within and outside of the borough.
This has resulted in the portfolio growing from a baseline gross income of £2.81m in 2015 to
£5.8m to date. This has involved capital expenditure of about £53m since February 2015.
4.28 Other local authorities have also been active in investing in commercial property over the same
period, with around £3.8bn spent. This has resulted in concerns about local authorities’
understanding of the risks involved with commercial property investment being discussed in
Parliament and the media. The government has consequently tightened the regulatory
framework on local authorities by revising its statutory guidance on local government
investments and on the minimum revenue provision they should make to meet their capital
financing requirement.
4.29 In parallel, the council has started to implement its masterplan for Sutton’s town centre which
has highlighted the need to acquire properties to support both physical and economic
regeneration objectives. While there are clear objectives and governance arrangements for the
IPP, there are none yet in place for properties acquired solely for regeneration purposes.
Revised statutory guidance on local authority investments
4.30 In 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) published revisions to
two documents - The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and Treasury
Management in Public Services. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
also issued a revised Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd edition) “New
Guidance” which came into effect from 1 April 2018. Local authorities have a mandatory duty to
“have regard” to these documents. The informal commentary published as Annex A to the New
Guidance stated that the revision was made to reflect changes in local authorities’ activities,
particularly investment in non-financial assets with the primary aim of generating a profit and
grant of long-term loans to local enterprises or third sector entities as part of regeneration and
place making plans.
4.31 The commentary states that the concerns about local authority behaviour which the guidance
aims to address are:
●

Too much exposure to financial risk through borrowing and investment decisions

●

Inadequate transparency to understand extent of local authorities exposure through
their borrowing and investment decisions; and

●

Insufficiency of Members’ expertise to understand the complex transactions for which
they are ultimately responsible

4.32 The New Guidance states that for each financial year a local authority shall prepare at least one
Investment Strategy and make a number of disclosures regarding its investment activity and
present both annually to Full Council. These requirements are designed to increase
transparency and democratic accountability.

Page 135

Agenda Item 10

4.33 Commercial property investment is classed as a non-financial investment. These are assets a
local authority holds primarily or partially to generate a profit.
4.44 The requirements in the guidance that most affect the council’s commercial property investment
are paragraphs 46 and 47. Paragraph 46 says that “Authorities must not borrow more than or in
advance of their needs purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums
borrowed”. Paragraph 47 then goes on to say that where a local authority “chooses to
disregard” the CIPFA Prudential Code and the New Guidance by borrowing purely to “profit from
the investment of the extra sums borrowed”, it should explain in its Investment Strategy why the
authority has “decided not to have regard to” the New Guidance” or Prudential Code “in this
instance”, and also set out its policies in managing the extra money borrowed, including
management of the risks.
Counsel’s Advice
4.46 The Council has sought and received the Advice of James Goudie QC on these matters.
Counsel noted that notwithstanding the language of paragraph 46, the New Guidance is no
more and no less than guidance to which regard must be given - which paragraph 47
anticipates can be lawfully departed from, but the departure must be explained and must be
explained in the investment strategy. It is consequently not prohibited that councils can borrow
to invest in commercial property where the sole purpose is for profit, however, it would be
necessary to balance the strength of the case for a new investment against the weight to attach
to the New Guidance.
4.47 Advice was sought for four categories of commercial property investment:
a)

Property in the borough where some regeneration or other benefit over income
generation can be demonstrated

b)

Property outside the borough but nonetheless close enough that a case can be made
for regeneration/employment etc benefits to the borough

c)

Property in the borough bought purely for income generation

d)

Out of borough property where no regeneration case can be made

4.48 Counsel was clear that there is nothing in the new legislation that prohibits any of the four
categories of investment if the council is not funding the acquisitions with borrowing.
4.49 Where borrowed funds are to be used, categories (a) and (b) are not affected by paragraphs 46
and 47 of the new legislation if the benefit to accrue to the council is the dominant purpose of
the acquisition.
4.50 With regard to categories (c) and (d) where the dominant purpose is income generation - either
in or out-of-borough, Counsel’s opinion is that while the New Guidance does not prevent
borrowing to purchase investment properties in all circumstances, it makes borrowing solely for
purchasing investment properties more difficult than it was before 1 April 2018.
4.51 Counsel further advises that, on the face of it, there is a risk that paragraph 46 contains a
prohibition on borrowing solely for the purposes of purchasing investment properties, but having

Agenda Item 10

Page 136

regard to paragraph 47 of the New Guidance, and provided there is full transparency and due
diligence, that it is not an absolute prohibition. Counsel further advises that it may be of
assistance in such cases if:
a)

The borrowing is demonstrated to be driven by a need to fund a particular project rather
than plug a general budget gap;

b)

The project and expenditure on it is demonstrated to be in accordance with the
council’s policies; and

c)

The borrowing is demonstrated to be in accordance with the council’s financial
strategies

Implications of the revised regulatory framework for the council’s IPP Strategy
4.52 The Council’s current approach to new acquisitions for the IPP is that all acquisitions will
eventually be financed through borrowing although the initial purchase could be made using
cash reserves from its treasury management activities. Its strategy for achieving the aim of
securing medium to long term investment return is based on the following principles:
●

Invest in properties with tenants with strong finances and with long unexpired lease
terms and in areas with strong sustainable economic activity

●

Achieve a balanced portfolio - no property class more than 50% or less than 10% over
the medium term

●

Diversify the portfolio by acquiring outside and within the borough

●

Introduce clear governance arrangements and criteria for acquisitions

●

Monitor performance against agreed indicators and and report outturns to the S&R
Committee.

4.53 Although the council can continue to manage its existing portfolio of commercial properties as it
is, the constraints imposed by the New Guidance has come at a time where it is increasingly
evident that the council needs greater intervention within the borough in order to realise its
vision for economic and physical regeneration.
4.54 The IPP has a significant asset value, and the revenue income it generates contributes towards
the delivery of the council’s functions. If the council retains the IPP, it is necessary to continue to
manage the portfolio on commercially sound principles. It is considered therefore that the
principles listed above continue to be required for prudent portfolio management. They help to
diversify and mitigate risks to the portfolio and the annual reporting requirement underline the
council’s commitment to transparency and democratic accountability.
4.55 There are a number of options open to the council in taking forward the IPP. These revolve
around whether the council wishes to continue to invest to grow the portfolio, and if it does, how
such investment could be funded. A summary of the options is tabulated below:

Page 137

Agenda Item 10

Option

Funding & Income implications

1

Do not actively pursue
further IPP acquisitions

No additional funding required. IPP cash reserve can be
used to address investment requirements of existing
buildings. Income growth will come from periodic rent
reviews and from lease renewals.

2

Continue to invest, based on Every investment made solely for income generation with
current IPP focus on
borrowed funds will require a case to be made for lawful
income, but restrict to within departure from the New Guidance.
the borough

3

Continue to invest, but
revise to make regeneration
the priority.

Investments with a regeneration focus will, by definition, be
restricted to investments within the borough and adjacent
boroughs where the impact/benefits of such regeneration
can be demonstrated to extend to Sutton. The council will
be able to use borrowed funds to acquire new property. Net
income surpluses (in the short to medium term) is likely to
be less that what the council currently achieves from the
IPP.

4

Continue to invest out of
borough

Investments outside the borough can continue to be made
with the council’s own funds, or exceptionally, with borrowed
funds if a case can be made for lawful departure from the
New Guidance.

4.56 It is considered a combination of options (3) and (4) from the table above provides the council
with the flexibility to continue to respond to the regeneration requirements in the borough and
the prudent management of its IPP.
4.57 There is a recognition that investments made to enable regeneration will be broadly of two
types:
a) investments with an aim to attract and/or maintain economic activity and that are still
able to generate an economic return
b) investments that are made for land assembly purposes to enable regeneration plans that
are in line with council adopted plans, masterplans and strategies.
4.58 It is proposed that regeneration-led investments that are able provide an economic return
should continue to be made for addition to the IPP, while acquisitions for land assembly
purposes are made on a case by case basis. They will require a different set of guidelines and
governance arrangements that should still enable the council to respond appropriately where
speed is necessary. It is proposed that these are developed and brought back to a future
meeting of the S & R committee.
4.59 Adoption of the approach set out above for the IPP requires a revision of its aims and strategic
priorities, together with a revised policy for governance and portfolio management. It will also
require the council to set out in its Investment Strategy, when prepared for Council approval in

Agenda Item 10

Page 138

February 2019, the basis on which it may make a lawful departure from the New Guidance and
Prudential code in order to invest in commercial property, using borrowed funds.
4.60 The following revised aims and strategic priorities are consequently proposed for the IPP:
The aims of the strategy for the Investment Property Portfolio are to:
a)

support the economic viability of the borough; and

b)

deliver a secure medium to long-term investment return to help sustain the delivery of
council functions.

In delivering the strategy, the following priorities are to be used to guide the growth of the
Investment Property Portfolio.
a)

acquisitions that help attract and sustain economic activity and investment in the
borough

b)

arrangements that help mitigate risks and contribute towards achieving a balanced
portfolio, including acquisitions within or out of the borough.

5.

Options

5.1

This report has considered the range of options available to the council for taking forward the
IPP.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

In line with requirements set out in both the MHCLG statutory guidance on local authority
investments and CIPFA Prudential Code, the Council intends to develop a new Capital Strategy
alongside the existing Treasury Management Strategy which will form part of the budget setting
papers to be agreed by Strategy and Resources Committee and then Council in February 2019.
These documents will effectively contain the disclosures required by MHCLG in the document it
refers to as an ‘investment strategy’.

6.2

As advised by the Prudential Code, the Capital Strategy will set out the long term context in
which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made and will give due consideration to
both risk and reward and impact on achievement of priority outcomes. These investment
decisions will include those made in relation to commercial property.

6.3

As part of the development of the Capital Strategy the council will consider the most appropriate
indicators against which to monitor investment activity in commercial property. This will at the
very least include those shown under para 4.10 of this report. Under the statutory guidance and
prudential code authorities are encouraged to include indicators which allow the assessment of
the risks and opportunities of an investment over both its payback period and the repayment
period of any debt taken out. The Prudential Code provides more extensive guidance
suggesting that indicators should cover achievement of service objectives, stewardship of
assets, value for money, prudence and sustainability, affordability and practicality. The Council
will continue to carefully assess risks of all investments in a prudent way.

Page 139

Agenda Item 10

Legal
6.4

Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers local authorities to acquire land by
agreement “any land, whether situated inside or outside their area for: the purposes of any of
their functions under this or any other enactment, or for the benefit, improvement or
development of their area.”

6.5

Part 1, Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a “general power of competence” for local
authorities, subject to the limitations set out on sections 2 and 4 of the same act.

6.6

The Local Government Act 2003 (“LGA 2003”), Part 1, Chapter 1, (sections 1 to 20) is
concerned with the capital finance of local authorities. Section 1 gives a local authority power to
borrow. Section 12 gives a local authority power to invest for any purpose relevant to its
functions under any enactment or for the purposes of the prudent management of its financial
affairs; requiring local authorities to self-regulate their capital finance, borrowing and investment
activities. Section 15 of LGA 2003 provides that in carrying out its functions under Chapter 1,
which include investment and borrowing, a local authority “shall have regard” to such guidance
as the Secretary of State may issue and to such other guidance as the Secretary of State may
by regulations specify.

6.7

Statutory Instrument (SI) 3146/2003—the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) Regulations 2003—develops the controls and powers in the LGA 2003 and by section
24 requires local authorities to have regard to the CIPFA guidance

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Progress Update on Targets and Milestones

B

Progress update on Delivery Plan

C (EXEMPT)

IPP - Income Risk and Obsolescence

D

Draft Policy on Governance and Portfolio Management (Revised October
2018)

Background documents
Gerald Eve LLP. ( 2018, Summer) INVBRIEF - Property Investment Market.

Agenda Item 10

Page 140

GVA. (2018, Summer) EPMR - Economic & Property Market Review.

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 17 October 2018

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

Yes

Rowenna Warburton

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

APPENDIX A

Corporate Asset Management Strategy 2015/19 – Progress Update on Key Targets and Milestones (October 2018)
Activity

Target Date

Complete all set up arrangements for
commercial property por olio

December 2015

2

Open expansion to Hackbridge Primary
School

September
2018

Open ﬁrst new secondary school

September
2018

3

4

Achieve a 25% reduc on in opera onal
property occupa on costs – compared
with 2013/14 base – through a reduc on in
opera onal property used by the Council
(£1.125 m reduc on from a £4.5m baseline

G

A

G

March 2018

R

Progress Update

Agenda Item 10

Strategy & Resources Commi ee’s approval (28.09.15) was received for policy
and governance arrangements for managing the Investment Property Por olio
(IPP). The IPP Board has been mee ng quarterly since October 2015.
Planning permission was granted in December 2015. Start of school
construc on works was held back to align with progress with the Barra s
redevelopment scheme for the Felnex Estate. Work started on site July 2017
and is now due for comple on in December 2018.
The Harris Academy opened the new school in temporary premises in
September 2018 at the Su on Hospital site. Construc on of the new school
building started in September 2017 and is due to be completed in July 2019 for
occupa on by September 2019.
Since the 2013/14 baseline year, LBS has ceased its previous use of 22 no.
proper es and iden ﬁed or in the process of iden fying alterna ve future uses
for them. (Ludlow Lodge, Oakleigh House, The Lodge, Stonecourt , Beddington
Library, Highview Children’s Centre, The Grange Children’s Centre, Cheam
Children’s Centre, Fellowes Road, Wallington Public Hall, Foxley Lane, 717
London Road, Old Rectory, Quarry Co age, Grange Lodge, Charles Cryer
Theatre, Secombe Theatre, The Grove, Su on Youth Centre, 3 Robin Hood
Lane, 204 Thornton Road). By March 2018, savings of £153k had been
achieved against the 2013/14 baseline. This represents an increase in
opera onal costs compared with the situa on at March 2017 where savings of
£539k against the baseline had been achieved. The in-year increase is down to
increase in NNDR, increase in number of proper es managed, addi onal
security at Civic Oﬃces and increase u li es prices

Page 141

1

R
A
G

5

March 2018

Increase income from new commercial
property investment by £220k (Revised to
£1.6m by S & R on 28 Sept. 15)

March 2019

7

Generate up to £7.5m in disposal income
over life of asset management strategy

March 2019

8

Transfer all administra ve services and
staﬀ into a single building in Su on

April 2019

Open second secondary school

September
2019

6

9

R

G

G

A

A

To date, a reduc on of 2,938 tonnes of CO2 emissions for buildings has been
achieved against a baseline of 7,832 tonnes. This equates to a reduc on of
38%. Although the 50% reduc on target was not achieved, a 38% reduc on is
a signiﬁcant achievement given the age and type of construc on of most of the
council’s buildings.
Commercial property income (gross) stands at £5.8m (full year 2018/19),
compared with the baseline income of £3.178m when the IPP policy was
agreed. 154 Su on High Street was acquired in April 2016, Oxfam House in
November 2016 and 71-81 High Street Su on in July 2017 and 132 Stanley
Park Road in March 2018.
Currently projected that £8.71m will be realised on comple on of transac ons
for the sale and/or transfer of proper es iden ﬁed as surplus to Council
requirements since February 2013. Completed so far - £6.91m
The oﬃce consolida on process has been signiﬁcantly advanced with the
transfer of Children’s Services from the Lodge to the Civic Oﬃces in December
2015 and Cognus to Denmark Road in July 2018. The eventual consolida on
could involve the redevelopment of the Civic Oﬃces site as proposed in the
dra Su on Town Centre Masterplan.
Land including the former All weather pitch at Rosehill Park was allocated in
the dra Local Plan as a site for a secondary school. Authority was delegated to
oﬃcers to agree grant of 125 year lease to the Greenshaw Learning Trust (GLT)
at the S & R Commi ee mee ng of 17 July 2017. Development of the school
will be undertaken by the Educa on and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the
GLT who were originally aiming for a September 2019 opening of the school.
The ESFA has had delays in their nego a ons with GLL who lease the Su on
Tennis Centre from the council. It is unlikely the school will be completed by
September 2019 and September 2020 will be challenging.

Page 142

Reduce CO2 emissions from Council
buildings by 50% compared with emissions
for 2010/11)

Agenda Item 10

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

Corporate Asset Management Strategy 2015 – 2019

Delivery Plan – Progress Update - October 2018

Page 143
Agenda Item 10

1.

Projects to Deliver the
Outcomes

Target Date

Reduce the number of opera onal
buildings used by the Council and
achieve a reduc on of £1.125m
(25% of gross premises costs)

Close Wallington Public Hall and
iden fy future use

March 2015

Iden fy alterna ve future use
for the Old Rectory (Carshalton)

July 2015

Iden fy future use for Bungalow
at 121A Foxley Lane
Commercially let Grove Hall

March 2015

Transfer Secombe Theatre and
Charles Cryer Theatres to other
Service Providers

April 2015

March 2015

R Progress Update
A
G
Closed as scheduled. Su on Living has obtained
planning permission for new residen al
G development on the site and are ﬁnalising
arrangements to procure contractor.
31 October 2015 S & R Commi ee agreed to grant
a lease to Su on Living to convert to
G residen al/commercial use on ground ﬂoor. Plans
currently being prepared for submission for
planning permission.
Property was sold at auc on on the 16 June 2015.
G
G

Le ng was completed on 9 April 2015

Transfer of both theatres to the Su on Theatres
Trust was completed on the 15 June 2015. The STT
went into Administra on on the 11 August 2016.
Both buildings were marketed for theatre/cultural
use in October 2016. The Council did not receive
A
any bids that had suﬃcient ﬁnancial capacity to run
the buildings without ﬁnancial support from the
Council. Charles Cryer has been re-marketed and S
& R commi ee will consider recommenda ons for
grant of a lease on the 29 October 2018.

Page 144

Outcomes Sought

Agenda Item 10

Delivery Plan for Operational Buildings

Transfer Gaynesford Lodge for
use by the Su on Music
Founda on

April 2015

Iden fy alterna ve use for
Stonecourt and associated
co ages

July 2015

Transfer The Lodge for use by
Ecolocal as oﬃces and base for
community ac vi es

September
2015

G

A

April 2016

Transfer the Grove for use as a
Hub Building for community and
voluntary sector organisa ons

September
2016

G

S & R Commi ee agreed (13.10.14) to give the
Su on Connected Partnership (SCVS, VCS) up to
R December 2015 to secure the external funding
required to refurbish the Grove so that it could be
opened up to the community and also be used as

Agenda Item 10

Ra onalise the number of
Children’s Centres as agreed by
the Children, Family and
Educa on Commi ee

Page 145

A

Su on Music Service is now part of Cognus and has
moved from the Gaynesford Lodge to the
portacabin at Denmark Road. The building is now
being marketed for a new tenant.
S & R Commi ee agreed (28.09.15) to the disposal
of Stonecourt when vacated by Educa on &
Children’s Services. The building was vacated in
February 2016 and following marke ng and receipt
of a sa sfactory oﬀer, contracts are now being
drawn up for redevelopment for residen al use.
S & R Commi ee (28.09.15) and the Council (Nov
2015) agreed to transfer the Lodge on a long lease
to Ecolocal. Ecolocal took occupa on of the Lodge
in March 2018. Conversion of the chapel for oﬃce
use (Phase 1) has been completed. Phase 2 of the
works which will provide 8 residen al ﬂats, oﬃces
and community space on the ground ﬂoor is
scheduled for comple on by the December 2018.
There is a 5 year long-stop date for comple on of
Phase 3 - The Straw Bale Classroom.
The Children’s, Family & Educa on commi ee
agreed (25.02.16) to close 3 of the 14 Children’s
Centres (High View, The Grange and Green Oak –
Cheam). The rest have been retained as Hubs or
Access points.

Redevelop Oakleigh House as
temporary accommoda on

Commence
on site by
December
2015
December
2015

Iden fy future use for Culvers
Lodge, 110 Hackbridge Road,
Hackbridge

Wandle Valley Regional Park Trust, with the
support of the local community proposals for
refurbishing and mixed use of the building were
agreed by the S & R Commi ee on the 31 October
2016. The WVRPT has now advised that they are
A
unable to proceed with the scheme. The building is
now being considered for residen al conversion as
part of the council’s housing stock, with the
adjacent land redeveloped by the Council or a
Housing Associa on dependent on funding

Page 146

Sell or ﬁnd alterna ve use for
buildings declared surplus to
Council requirements

March 2019

Agenda Item 10

2.

Close the Denmark Road oﬃces
and iden fy future for building
and staﬀ car park

oﬃces and a hub for the voluntary and community
sector organisa ons. The SCVS were successful
with their applica on for a Heritage Lo ery Fund
for the Grove and were due to submit their stage 2
bid in June 2016. However due to inability to
secure a third partner to occupy and also a 300%
increase in the capital cost of the project, the
partnership decided not to proceed further with
the scheme.
Arrangements are now being made to ﬁnd a new
use for the Grove with the vaca on of Cognus from
the building in August 2018.
Closure of Denmark Road is dependant on
consolida ng all administra ve services in one
A building. The viability of this approach is being
considered alongside proposals for redevelopment
of the current Civic Oﬃces site
The redevelopment was completed and handed
over for use as temporary accommoda on 17 May
G
2016.

Develop Ludlow Lodge as New
Build Council Housing
Develop site at Fellowes Road as
New-Build Council Housing
Develop 6 HRA garage sites as
New-Build Council Housing
Development site at Richmond
Green as New Build Council
Housing
3.

Commence
on site by
January 2016
Complete by
July 2015
Complete by
July 2015
Complete by
March 2016

Transfer staﬀ from the Grove to
the Civic Oﬃces

Complete by
September
2016

Refurbish Civic Oﬃces to
upgrade mechanical, electrical
and ven la on systems

Complete by
April March
2019

Transfer staﬀ from Denmark
Road and all other

Complete by
April 2019

G
G
G

G

A
A

This was successfully completed by December
2015.
This was successfully completed by December 2015
Some staﬀ were relocated to the Civic Oﬃces and
others to the Grove to keep the Grove occupied
while proposals for its future occupa on and use
are developed.
Educa on staﬀ based at the Grove transferred to
Cognus (formerly Su on Educa on Services Ltd)
which was formed as a Council spin oﬀ company in
November 2016. Cognus moved into Denmark
Road oﬃces in August 2018.
This decision will be taken alongside the other
op ons that could be made possible through
implemen ng the Su on Town Centre Masterplan
for the redevelopment of the Civic Oﬃces site
Denmark Road will con nue to be occupied by staﬀ
un l the strategic decision regarding the Civic

Agenda Item 10

Implement ﬂexible working at
the Su on Civic Oﬃces
Transfer staﬀ from the Lodge to
Civic Oﬃces
Transfer staﬀ from Stone Court
and Co ages to Civic Oﬃces

Planning permission was granted for 57 units of
G aﬀordable housing. Work started on site in April
2017 and is due for comple on by June 2019
Planning permission granted for 15 aﬀordable rent
G houses . Work started on site in June 2017 and is
due for comple on by Nov 2018
A bid for funding is being made in Sept 18 for funds
A
to develop Assembly Walk and other garage sites
Planning permission granted for 21 aﬀordable rent
houses . Demoli on completed August 2017, units
G
are due for comple on by May 2019.

Page 147

Oﬃce accommoda on for a
reduced workforce , with a target
of 500/600 directly employed
council staﬀ by 2018/19

Commence
on site by
January 2016
Commence
on site by
January 2016
None set

Expansion of Hackbridge Primary
school

Complete consulta on and
development plans for loca ng
new provision on the open land
at Hackbridge

5.

Provide two new secondary
schools

Complete the acquisi on of
land at the Su on Hospital site
and complete feasibili es for
other sites.

To open by
September
2016
(Revised to
September
2018)
First school
to open by
September
2018

Second
school to
open by
September
2019

Land including the former All weather pitch at
Rosehill Park was allocated in the dra Local Plan
as a site for a secondary school. Authority was
delegated to oﬃcers to agree grant of 125 year
A
lease to the Greenshaw Learning Trust (GLT) at the
S & R Commi ee mee ng of 17 July 2017.
Development of the school will be undertaken by
the Educa on and Skills Funding Agency and the
GLT who were aiming for a September 2019
opening of the school. The ESFA has had delays in
their nego a ons with GLL who lease the Su on
Tennis Centre from the council. It is unlikely the
school will be completed by September 2019 and
September 2020 will be challenging.

Page 148

4.

Oﬃces site is made as this will enable
consolida on of all administra ve staﬀ into a single
building.
Planning permission was granted in December
2015. Start of school construc on works was held
back to align with progress with Barra s scheme
G
for redevelopment of Felnex Estate. Construc on
started on site in July 2017 and is due for
comple on by December 2018.
The Harris Academy opened a new school in
temporary premises in September 2018 at the
Su on Hospital site. Construc on of new school
buildings started in November 2017 and is due to
be completed in July 2019.

Agenda Item 10

administra ve oﬃces to Civic
Oﬃces

Delivery Plan for Non-Operational Buildings

1.

2.

Projects to Deliver the Outcomes

Timetable

Separate the Council’s Tenanted
Non-Residen al Proper es into
two por olios: Investment and
Community buildings

Apply evalua on criteria to all
TNRP and iden fy proper es to
be held as investment proper es
and those to be held for
socio-economic reasons
Develop proposals to establish
framework for decision-making
to maximise opportuni es from
acquisi ons, disposals and
management of property and to
provide for appropriate Member
oversight
Review and recommend changes
to exis ng delegated powers to
oﬃcers in managing the
commercial property por olio
Set out business plan and clear
performance targets for the
commercial por olio

March 2015

Governance arrangements for
the opera on of commercial
property por olio

Generate addi onal income
from the commercial por olio

4.

Reduce exposure to low value
or low income proper es

Review the following proper es
that do not meet the threshold

G
For Strategy
Resources
approval in
October 2015

For Strategy
& Resources
approval in
October 2015
For Strategy
& Resources
approval in
October 2015
March 2016

Proposals were agreed by S & R Commi ee of 28
September 2015.
G

G

This was agreed by S & R Commi ee of 28
September 2015

Proposals and target of £1.6m (gross) increase in
income from the IPP was agreed by S & R Commi ee
G
of 28 September 2015.
Over 400 opportuni es have been reviewed since
the strategy was agreed. Proper es with capital
G
values totalling £53m and gross income of £3.07m
have been acquired.

Agenda Item 10

Invest in exis ng and new
commercial property in line with
business plan.

R Progress Update
A
G
Completed.

Page 149

3.

Outcomes Sought

March 2015
March 2015
March 2015
March 2015
March 2015
March 2015
March 2015
March 2015

G
G

Sold at auc on in March 2017.
Sale completed to tenants on 17/11/2017.

Property has been held for income and was let in
May 2017.
Rent review eﬀec ve from July 2015 has been
G
agreed at an increased rental.
Property is being retained for its rental income.
G
G

G
G

Sale completed to tenant on 01/08/2016.
Sale completed in December 2016

In nego a ons with the tenant, following se lement
G of a rent review, to sell by private treaty. Sale
completed to tenants on 24/04/2018.
The exis ng lease expires in 2022. Considered be er
for asset management purposes to wait ll closer to
G
the lease expiry date to receive more of the
poten al development value.

Page 150

Land rear oﬀ 16/18 Stanley Park
Road, Wallington

March 2015

Agenda Item 10

for the investment por olio to
decide whether to retain for
socio-economic reasons:
Warehouse at 234 Ridge Road,
Su on
Land rear oﬀ 105, Staﬀord Road,
Wallington
Building at 7/7 High Street,
Cheam
Building at 9/9a High Street,
Cheam
Building at 11 Lower Road,
Cheam
Land adjacent to Manor
Chambers, Throwley Way, Su on
Land at Bank Mews, Su on Court
Road, Su on
Land at North End Tavern, Cheam
Common Road, Cheam

Delivery Plan for Use of Property for Economic Regeneration
Projects to Deliver the Outcomes

Timetable

1.

Be er u lisa on of Council land
and property in Su on Town
Centre

March 2016

2.

Be er u lisa on of Council land
and property along the Tramlink
route

3.

Facilitate plans for a Life
Sciences Cluster in Belmont

Proposals for development of
Council-owned sites in Su on TC
in line with the new Development
Plan and Masterplan due in
2015/16
Iden fy developable Council land
and property along Tramlink
route and produce development
proposals for the sites
Acquire land at Su on Hospital
as part of the Su on for Life
Partnership for development of a
Life Sciences Cluster

4.

Generate income from private
housing development

Acquire land on behalf, and
contribute as required to the
implementa on of the Council’s
Housing Development company

2017/18

R Progress Update
A
G
The Su on Town Centre masterplan has been
adopted by the Council and is now being delivered
G as one of the council’s major projects.

None set

47 sites were iden ﬁed as opportunity sites in the
STC Masterplan which also deﬁne areas where
G
development could be intensiﬁed.

2016/17

The council has acquired 4.45 hectares of land for
the London Cancer Hub (LCH) and is in the process
of comple ng acquisi on of the last plot required.
G
Plans are being ﬁnalised to start procurement in
November 2018 for a development partner/investor
to build out the ﬁrst phase of the LCH.
Working collabora vely with Su on Living to
redevelop Wallington Public Hall, the Old Rectory,
G
Land at Alexandra Gardens and Quarry Co age.

Page 151

Outcomes Sought

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 153

APPENDIX
Agenda
Item D10

Investment Property Portfolio
Policy for Governance and Portfolio Management
Introduction
1.

The purpose of this policy is to set out how the Investment Property Portfolio will
be managed and covers the following matters:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Objectives and strategic priorities for the Investment Property Portfolio
Risks
Governance and performance reporting arrangements
Portfolio mix
Funding and ﬁnancial performance of the portfolio
Investment evaluation criteria
Performance indicators for monitoring the portfolio
Acquisition procedure

Objectives and strategic priorities for the Investment Property Portfolio
2.

The twin aims of the strategy for the Investment Property Portfolio are to:
a) support the economic viability of the borough; and
b) deliver a secure medium to long-term investment return to help sustain the
delivery of council functions.

3.

In delivering the strategy, the following priorities are to be used to guide the growth
of the Investment Property Portfolio.
a) acquisitions that help attract and sustain economic activity and investment in
the borough
b) arrangements that help manage risks and contribute towards achieving a
balanced portfolio, including acquisitions in or out of the borough.

Possible risks for the Council
4.

Property investment has its own speciﬁc risks, the principal ones being property
risks, ﬁnancial risks and corporate risks. The arrangements set out in this policy are
designed to help minimise these risks.
a) Property Risks – the property market is cyclical and is aﬀected by the wider
economic environment. There are also property risks that are speciﬁc to a
building due to its location, condition and quality of tenants. Mitigation
proposed in this policy for these risks include diversifying the portfolio
(portfolio mix) to include investments that perform diﬀerently over the
economic cycle. The evaluation criteria, diversity of location, due diligence

Page | 1
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Agenda Item 10

Page 154

APPENDIX D

tests, approval processes and accountability for implementation are also
proposed to address property speciﬁc risks.
b) Financial Risks – the primary ﬁnancial risks are borrowing levels, interest rates
movement, ongoing ability to service debts, the general investment market
conditions and its eﬀect on rental income. Proposals include the creation of a
special reserve for the IPP and a funding strategy that allocates debt and all
associated costs to the IPP so that the net revenue beneﬁts to the Council is
transparent and can be benchmarked.
c) Corporate Risks – eﬀective operational delivery requires staﬀ with the requisite
expertise, eﬀective arrangements for asset management and the recognition of
the reputational risks that can come from inappropriate tenants, and from legal
and environmental breaches. The council has adopted a statement on ethical
investments to guide the acquisition of property and management of
relationships with tenants. Operational delivery will be managed through the
accountability oﬀered by an oﬃcer board and the reporting requirements on
the performance of the IPP to the Strategy & Resources Committee.
Governance and performance reporting arrangements
5.

The Strategy and Resources Committee will be responsible for approving the
strategic priorities and the arrangements set out in this policy for the Investment
Property Portfolio. There will also be an annual report to the Committee on the
performance of the portfolio.

6.

Operational management, including acquisitions, is delegated to oﬃcers, acting
within the delegated powers set out below.
a) That the Chief Executive is granted delegated powers to authorise acquisitions
up to £5m
b) That the Urgency Procedure is to used for acquisitions over £5m

7.

An oﬃcer board (chaired by the Strategic Director of Resources) is to be
accountable for the performance of the IPP and is charged with making
recommendations to the Chief Executive for acquisitions. The oﬃcer board is to
also include:
● Assistant Director, Asset Planning, Management and Capital Delivery
● Assistant Director, Housing and Regeneration
● Assistant Director, Customers Commissioning & Governance
● Assistant Director, Economic Development & Programme Director London
Cancer Hub

8.

Disposal of assets in the IPP is to be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s
standing orders for asset disposals. The oﬃcer board will make recommendations
to the appropriate oﬃcer where, due to disposal value, it is within oﬃcer delegated

Page | 2
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Page 155

APPENDIX
Agenda
Item D10

powers, and to the Strategy & Resources Committee where outside oﬃcer
delegated powers.
Portfolio Mix
9.

The current weighting of the classes of property in the IPP, by rental income, is
(October 2018) Industrial 28%, Retail 25%, Oﬃces 42%, and Leisure 4% with
most of the Council’s property located within the borough and a few just across
the borough boundaries with neighbouring authorities and one out of the borough.

10. Over the life of the strategy, a balanced and diversiﬁed portfolio will be achieved
by:
a)

Selling low value assets and reinvesting capital receipts in directly managed
property with good rental growth potential

b) Acquiring properties inside the borough, and also outside the borough where a
case can be made that it is in the best interests of the council to seek lawful
departure from the requirements of the Statutory Guidance on Local Authority
Investments and the CIPFA Prudential Code (where such acquisitions are
funded through borrowing).
c) Achieve a balanced portfolio where no single class of property is larger than
60% and none smaller than 10%.
Funding and ﬁnancial performance of the portfolio
11. Acquisitions are to be funded using cash reserves and long-term borrowing, with
borrowing costs reﬂected in the reporting of returns achieved by the IPP.
12. All new acquisitions are to achieve a minimum of 2% return over the life of the
investment, net of borrowing, minimum revenue provision and others costs
associated with the acquisition.
13. The capital receipt from sale of properties in the IPP is to be reinvested in the
portfolio.
14. The annual report to the Strategy & Resources Committee to contain all the
disclosure and reporting requirements of the Statutory Guidance on Local
Government Investments that apply to commercial property.
Investment Evaluation Criteria
15. The following criteria are to be used to make decisions on acquiring new
investment properties:
a) Fit with the council’s statement of ethical investment in property
b) Acquisition type and ﬁt with portfolio
Page | 3
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Page 156

Agenda Item 10

APPENDIX D

c) Quality of property
d) Covenant strength of tenant and unexpired lease term
e) Valuation showing a yield greater than borrowing and other costs over the life
of the investment plus 2%
f) Fit with prudential borrowing powers
g) Each investment to be justiﬁable on its own merit
h) Legal advice on powers of acquisition
i)

Resource implications

j)

Case for lawful departure from Statutory Guidance and Prudential code, where
required.

k) Strategic context of acquisition – some of the above criteria may be relaxed if
property is of strategic value to the Council
Statement of Ethical Investment in Property
16. The following statement was approved by the Strategy & Resources Committee of
the 28 September 2015 for its investments in commercial property.
“Ethical investment considerations underpin the London Borough of Sutton’s
decisions when making property investments. The Council is mindful that it
should avoid undermining its community leadership role through proﬁting from,
or by providing capital for activities that are inconsistent with its vision of
building a community in which all can take part and all can take pride”
Acquisition Process
17. Acquisition of new investment properties is to follow the following process:
Activity
a)

Property identiﬁed as a potential investment by Asset
Management or by agents

b)

Head of Asset Management to notify the Chief Executive
and members of the oﬃcer board of potentially suitable
property and seek views

Acquisition
Stage and
Timeline
Initial Review

Stage

Page | 4
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Page 157

c)

APPENDIX
Agenda
Item D10

If positive, obtain desktop valuation from suitably qualiﬁed
and experienced valuer

d)

Review the valuation against the cost of borrowing with
Head of Financial Strategy and Planning (HoFSP)

e)

HoFSP to undertake search of tenant to ascertain the
company’s current ﬁnancial status

f)

HoFSP to produce initial ﬁnancial appraisal

g)

Head of Asset Management to determine whether to
proceed to appoint external agent to carry out valuation of
property to include structural, mechanical, electrical and
measured survey and other due diligence investigations

h)

Valuation provided

i)

Notify Lead Member for Resources of the property and of
intention to refer to Oﬃcer Board for consideration

j)

Oﬃcer Board Chaired by Strategic Director for Resources
requested to consider proposal to acquire property. Board to
consider recommendations from Head of Asset
Management, HoFSP, and where appropriate Head of
Shared Legal services. Report considered to include
outcome of assessment against the Investment Evaluation
Criteria

k)

Unanimous decision of the Oﬃcer Board is required before
recommendation to acquire is made to the Chief Executive,
if under £5m, and through the Urgency Procedure if over
£5m

l)

Make oﬀer for property, subject , where appropriate to any
of the following:
● Contract
● Approval by Chief Executive or via Urgency
Procedure
● Searches
● Receipt and analysis of all leases to determine any
landlord’s ﬁnancial obligations

2 to 3 Weeks

Under

Oﬀer

3 to 4 weeks

● Disclosure of freehold title and review to ensure clear
of any onerous restrictions

Page | 5
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Page 158

Agenda Item 10

APPENDIX D

● Structural and mechanical and electrical surveys
● Internal inspection
● Energy performance certiﬁcate
● Disability Discrimination Assessment, if appropriate
● Environmental desktop study if search suggests one
is appropriate
● Asbestos survey
● Resolution of any TUPE transfer implications
● VAT
● Insurance requirements
● Tax implications
m)

If appropriate, based on any of the above, propose
adjustment to purchase price to reﬂect the monetary value
of any issues discovered

n)

Instruct legal services to deal with contract documentation
for acquisition

o)

Complete any outstanding surveys/ M & E reports and
resolve any outstanding contractual matter

p)

Following agreement of terms, and before instructing
exchange of contract, prepare Record of Oﬃcer Delegated
Decision and advise Leader of the Opposition and Ward
Councillors, if located in the borough, prior to publication
date.

q)

Exchange contracts, if not simultaneous with completion of
purchase

r)

Arrange for transfer of funds

s)

Complete purchase. Documents and management handed
over to Asset Management. Insurance cover arranged

Exchange
1 to 2 weeks

Completion
I day

Page | 6
OCTOBER 2018 Revision (DRAFT)

Page 159

Agenda Item 11

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Letting of the Charles Cryer Centre, 39 High Street, Carshalton

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Carshalton Central

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council and Chair of S&R
Committee
Councillor Sunita Gordon, Lead Member for Finance
Councillor Steve Penneck, Lead Member for Libraries, Arts and
Heritage

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Christopher Rhodes, Head of Asset Management 020 8770 6148

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●
●

Date:

29 October 2018

Staying Active
Smarter Ways of Working

Appendix A is exempt on the basis of Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A: Parts
1-3 of the Local Government Act 1972

Signed:

Date:

17 October 2018

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks approval to the letting of the Charles Cryer Centre, Carshalton following the
marketing campaign.

2.

Recommendations

The Strategy and Resources Committee is recommended to:
2.1

Agree the grant of a 25 year lease to Cryer Arts for the Charles Cryer Centre as shown edged red
on the plan at Appendix B, at a rent set out in the exempt Appendix A, with terms otherwise as
negotiated by the Assistant Director (Asset Planning, Management and Capital Delivery);

2.2

Agree that in the event of a transaction with Cryer Arts not being achievable within a reasonable
time, to agree the grant of a 25 year lease to the underbidders Nickel Support Limited or
Carshalton Baptist Church, with first consideration given to Nickel Support at a rent as set out in
the exempt Appendix A, with terms otherwise as negotiated by the Assistant Director (Asset
Planning, Management and Capital Delivery);

Agenda Item 11

Page 160

2.3

Agree that in the event of a letting to an underbidder, consent is given to a letting at less than the
best consideration reasonably obtainable, as further described in this report; and

2.4

Agree that the Council’s solicitors be instructed to complete all necessary documentation.

3.

Background

3.1

The Charles Cryer Centre was remarketed from late 2017 and advertised in print and online
media. The marketing campaign resulted in over 50 expressions of interest and 37 parties
viewed the property.

3.2

Part way through the marketing period, in January 2018, the restaurant business that had
occupied most of the ground floor discontinued its tenancy and vacated the premises which
were then able to be offered with full vacant possession of the front building. There remains a
tenant in the rear workshop.

3.3

From the marketing process a list was compiled of 49 parties interested in receiving the
detailed bidding instructions. These were issued on 6 April 2018 with a closing date of 11 May
2018. Bidders were asked for use proposals, financial information, business planning,
references, accounts where available and a completed social value analysis using the
Council’s standard format.

3.4

It was specified that the Council would choose the best deliverable offer based upon the
following criteria which were not expressed as being weighted;
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Amount of rent
Length of lease and any other lease terms
Financial position of proposed tenant
Longer-term sustainability of proposals
Delivery of community and/or cultural benefit, if appropriate
Risk of business or activity failure
Planning considerations and likelihood of gaining any consent needed
Conditions attaching to the bid of any.

3.5

In relation to rent, it was indicated that the Council would choose a proposal based upon the
best outcome for the community once a certain threshold had been met. This threshold was
based on the estimated market rent of the complex. Bidders were advised that the Council
would have a preference for proposals taking over the whole complex subject to any lease or
tenancy agreements in place. Bidders were however encouraged to put forward proposals
outside those parameters if necessary. In line with normal practice it was stated that the
Council did not undertake to accept the highest or any offer.

3.6

Thirteen bids were received by the closing date of which six were for the whole complex and
seven were for part only. In line with the tender instructions, and given the interest in the whole
complex, bids for part only were not taken further although bidders were advised that the
possibility might arise in future for them to work with the eventual lessee of the complex.

3.7

Six proposals for the whole complex were reviewed in more detail. One fell considerably
below the financial threshold which had been set and was ruled out at that stage. The
remaining five were taken forward as a longlist. Analysis was carried out by colleagues of
financial information and the social value analysis which had been completed by some of the
bidders.

Page 161

Agenda Item 11

3.8

Three proposals were selected for the longlist with the remaining two being declined for further
consideration taking account of the financial implications and the uses proposed. These were
gym/health with a potential change to elderly care, and religious use. In the latter case it had
proved difficult to establish any further contact with the bidder for information about the
proposal and community-related activity.

3.9

The three shortlisted proposals considered the best against the financial and non-financial
criteria overall were;
●
●
●

Carshalton Baptist Church
Cryer Arts Limited
Nickel Support CIC

3.10 Stakeholders were invited to comment on proposals at two events held in September 2018.
Shortlisted bidders were invited to give presentations on their proposals concentrating on
planned uses and implications for the community and locality. The first panel comprised
volunteers from Sutton’s Citizens and Young Commissioners. The second panel consisted of
community representatives on the Carshalton and Clockhouse local committee and Ward
Councillors on the committee, representatives from Arts Network Sutton and the Opposition
Spokesperson for Arts and Culture.
3.11 Social value analysis was carried out by the council and the results factored into the
shortlisting process. This is further referred to in Appendix C.
3.12 The plan shows the site previously identified in leases. Parts of the site are subject to access
rights.
4.

Proposal Summaries

4.1

Carshalton Baptist Church use proposals are to relocate from the nearby Strawberry Lodge for
which they have identified a tenant. They would continue their current activities from the Cryer
with a community cafe and use of the Theatre for local hire/access, music and performance
events including theatre. They would use the Cryer to carry out and promote their support and
charitable work.

4.2

Cryer Arts Limited would use the premises as a bar and restaurant which would additionally
have performance and gallery space with the theatre area used for performance, music, film
and comedy. They would continue to work with Crunch Studios, look to reopen the scenery
workshop and consider how to better use external areas. They have potential interest in a
radio station based at the centre.

4.3

Nickel Support propose a child/family focussed cafe together with a programme of theatre,
music and film use of the theatre which would also be made available for hire. Other activities
would include baby/toddler sensory classes, a small retail outlet to the rear connected to their
plan for the workshop and a furniture recycling/upcycling business for trainees with learning
disabilities.

4.4

Appendix C sets out a summary of each of the shortlisted proposals in relation to the criteria
which were given to all bidders. This forms the basis of the recommended selection.

4.5

Rent proposals have been averaged over the first five years of a lease given that normal
commercial practice over a 25 year term would be five yearly reviews. Averaging over this
period also reflects the variance of requested structures with stepped rent or rent free periods.
These details are reported on an exempt appendix for reasons of commercial confidentiality.

Agenda Item 11

Page 162

4.6

Length of lease is consistent at 25 years for all the shortlisted parties. No terms have been
specified at this stage which appear problematic. Detailed lease terms would usually be
negotiated at a later stage.

4.7

Financial position of the proposed tenant has been judged with regard to the information
supplied by them and considered by colleagues. This has included accounts where applicable
and proposals of capital funding.

4.8

Longer-term sustainability has been considered with regard to use proposals and perceived
demand in the locality, with consideration of whether this would encourage a “destination” and
bring greater activity and vitality to Carshalton.

4.9

Delivery of community and cultural benefit has been commented on by our stakeholder panels
and the results included here as Appendix B. Additionally the social benefit analysis of each
scheme has been carried out on the Council’s adopted basis from a template supplied initially
to all bidders.

4.10 Risk of business or activity failure has also been considered from the point of view of demand
for proposed uses and financial projections. This is of particular interest given the risk of
another occupier suffering business failure after a short period. Specialist advice was sought
on the restaurant/bar aspect of the recommended bid and this is summarised in Appendix A.
4.11 Planning considerations and likelihood of obtaining consent are relevant to the Cryer Arts
proposal which may require change of use consent from food and drink to a drinking
establishment depending on the balance of uses. Otherwise the proposals seem broadly in
line with the current use of the site. The underbidders would be likely to require planning
consent for change of use in parts of the complex.
5.

Issues

Financial offer for the property
5.1

Bidders were advised of a minimum rent threshold of £70,000 per annum exclusive for the whole
complex which was the Council’s estimate of market value before bids were received. Bidders
were asked to specify whether any rent free period or other incentive would be sought.

5.2

The recommended bid proposes a rent in excess of the £70,000 threshold with a modest stepped
rent period which is considered to be well within normal market parameters. It is the highest rent
proposed by the shortlisted bidders. It is confirmed that this bid constitutes the best consideration
reasonably obtainable for the purposes of the local Government Act 1972 s123.

5.3

Bids longlisted for the property did include a proposal at a slightly higher rent but with risks
around delivery and sustainability which were felt to bring it outside the scope of “reasonably
obtainable”.

5.4

Runner-up bids recommended here may fall below the level of best consideration. Committee
approval is requested to a letting at an undervalue should it be necessary. This is in line with
discretionary powers granted to local authorities by the General Disposal Consent 2003 allowing
disposals at an undervalue up to £2m by specific approval and without the consent of the
Secretary of State which had previously been required.

5.5

The undervalue, if any, would be the difference between the recommended bid and the underbid.
The reasoning would be the optimum use of the building and site for delivery of community, arts
and performance-related activity. However this should only be needed in the event that the
recommended bid does not proceed for whatever reason.

Page 163

Agenda Item 11

Sustainability of proposals
5.6

The Cryer Arts proposal relies to a large extent on projected income from the bar/restaurant.
Further income would be derived from letting of performance spaces and the rear workshop area.
Advice from specialist consultants on the takings and growth projected is noted in Appendix A.

5.7

The anticipated financial sustainability of the Cryer Arts proposal is covered in Appendix A. Some
risk always attaches to a new business venture but mitigating against this is the track record of
the individuals responsible for Cryer Arts in relevant areas including licensed trade, performance
and related activities.

5.8

The underbidders were both considered to have a reasonable chance of long-term success
should it prove impractical to proceed with Cryer Arts. This is considered further in Appendix C,
and where confidential information is reviewed, in exempt Appendix A .

Community related benefits
5.9

The Cryer Arts proposal centred upon the bar and restaurant with a programme of activities for
the Theatre starting with music and comedy and expanding in the future to include drama. There
would be scope for lettings to amateur associations. This was felt by both stakeholder panels to
be the preferred option overall of the three shortlisted bids.

5.10 The underbidders’ proposals also deliver significant benefits for the community albeit the
stakeholder panels felt the Cryer Arts proposal was the most attractive overall. The comparison
is set out in more detail in Appendices C and D.
5.11 The Cryer Arts proposal did not include a fully completed social benefit model on the lines offered
by the underbidders. This was discussed with Cryer Arts who felt that they had offered a rent in
excess of the market value estimate and a commercial transaction should be expected, however
at the stakeholder panels the community value of this proposal was fully explored.
Summary of analysis and reason for recommendation
5.12 The recommendation is made against the criteria originally set out. Weighting has not been
applied at this stage as none was specified in the invitation to tender.
5.13 On the amount of rent, Cryer Arts’ offer is ahead of the next highest shortlisted bidder by a
significant sum over the initial five year period. The underbidders’ order of preference also
reflects the total rent over five years taking account of requested stepping or rent-free provisions.
Coincidentally this order is the same as the order of preference expressed by our stakeholder
panels for each of the proposals.
5.14 Length of requested lease is consistent at 25 years for all the bidders and in line with normal
commercial practice will include rent review provisions. It may also be prudent to incorporate
break clauses.
5.15 The financial position of each bidder has been considered and a summary is contained in the
exempt appendix. The longer-term sustainability of proposals is felt to be acceptable in all cases
subject to the financial viability question.

Agenda Item 11

Page 164

5.16 Community and cultural benefit has been considered through both the Council’s own social
benefit analysis, which was used in prior stages, and the stakeholder panels as outlined above for
the final part of the competitive process. The clear result of the stakeholder panels was the order
of preference of Cryer Arts, Nickel Support and Carshalton Baptists, with both panels
independently reaching the same conclusion.
5.17 Risk of business and activity failure was considered alongside the financial stability of the
proposals. It was felt that some risk would always attach to a new business venture and this
must be borne in mind, however the individuals in each case have significant experience and
credibility. The Carshalton Baptist proposal would mean relocation of an existing and established
use.
5.18 It is not thought that the bar/restaurant proposal needs planning consent although this would be
required for change of use to a purely drinking establishment. Underbidders may require change
of use consent for some of their proposed activities.
5.19 The recommended order of selecting underbidders should it not be possible to proceed with
Cryer Arts reflects the result of the stakeholder panels whose preference in each case was for
Nickel Support ahead of Carshalton Baptists in terms of community impact and arts/cultural offer.
5.20 Overall the mix of uses proposed by Cryer Arts is felt to be the most desirable and also provides
the best financial offer. While some risk exists with any new business venture it is recommended
that Cryer Arts be given the opportunity to bring the Cryer back into use.
6

Options Considered

6.1

Disposal by freehold or long leasehold sale would not allow retention of control over the use of
the property and the enhancement, where possible, of the community, arts and performance
facilities this property is capable of offering.

6.2

Granting a lease to the underbidders at this stage would not secure the most highly preferred use
of the property or the best financial offer.

7.

Impacts and Implications

7.1

Financial

7.1.1 No capital receipt will be received for the disposal of this property as it is felt that it is better to
retain control over its use, which a provider could deliver on. It would also retain the asset within
the Council. Instead an annual rent would be received as a revenue resource.
7.1.2 Revenue implications are considered in exempt appendix A.
7.2

Legal

7.2.2 The Council has power to lease and sell land which is surplus to requirements in any way it so
chooses provided that section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 is taken into consideration.
Section 123 places a statutory duty on local authorities to achieve best value in the context of
land disposals and states that the disposal must not be for a consideration “less than the best that
can reasonably be obtained”. It should be noted that the Council’s obligation to comply with its

Page 165

Agenda Item 11

fiduciary duty to obtain best value does not necessarily mean selecting the highest offer in pure
cash terms. Consideration should also be given to ongoing liabilities, and social and economic
advantages when considering ‘best consideration’
7.2.3. The Council has the power under Circular 06/03: Local Government Act 1972 General Disposal
(England) Consent 2003 to dispose of land for less than best consideration without having to
obtain specific consent from the Secretary of State provided that:
(1) the under value does not exceed £2m; and
(2) the Council considers that such a disposal will help it to secure the promotion or improvement
of the economic, social or environmental well-being of the area.
7.3

Equalities

7.3.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment was carried out on the proposed letting and the choice of
tenant. This noted that the reopening of the Cryer would bring back availability of the building,
cultural and performance facilities to all sectors of the community including protected groups.
7.3.2 It was also noted that the new tenant should be encouraged to facilitate availability of, and use
by protected groups of the building to encourage the fullest possible participation.
7.3.3 The capacity of the building to offer unrestricted access to all groups would need to be reviewed
to consider whether any improvements could be made.
7.3.4 The improved availability of performance, musical and other cultural activity would support and
enhance the mental health of residents.
8.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A (Exempt)

Outline terms for lease and related financial matters

B

Plan

C

Comparison of proposals

D

Summary of consultation feedback

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version
Consultation with other officers

Final

Date: 12/10/2018

Agenda Item 11

Page 166

Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke
Christine Little

Legal

Yes

Rowenna Warburton

Social value

Yes

Tom Alexander

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Chris Rhodes

Page 167

Agenda Item 11

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX C
Charles Cryer Centre
Analysis of bid returns for shortlisting

Page 169

Criteria set out in bidding instructions;
● Amount of rent
● Length of lease/any other terms
● Financial position of proposed tenant
● Longer-term sustainability of proposals
● Delivery of community and/or cultural benefit if appropriate
● Risk of business or activity failure
● Planning considerations and likelihood of gaining any consent needed
● Conditions attaching to the bid if any.
Weighting was not specified.
The first three of the above criteria are considered in an Exempt appendix, the remainder are considered below.
Bidder

Carshalton Baptists

Cryer Arts

Nickel Support

Longer-term sustainability of
proposals

Considered good

Considered good subject to new
business/financial risk

Considered good

Comments

Lease for Strawberry Lodge now
in place and rent supports this
proposal.

Heavily reliant on income from
bar and restaurant. Projections
considered to be ambitious

Relies on sustainability of
business post capital injection
from James Trust. Relies on

Criteria:

Agenda Item 11

Delivery of community and/or
cultural benefit if appropriate scored based on standard
Council social value analysis

Score 25 out of possible 30

Poor - scored 4 out of possible
30

Scored 23/30

Comments

Good on basis of standard form.

Were asked to resubmit standard
form but declined to do so as
consider they are offering market
rent.

Good on basis of standard form.

Stakeholder panels appreciated
enthusiasm of the Collective and
felt bid had many good qualities.
Stakeholder panels both
However there was a strong
considered this the favourite
emphasis in use for
proposal by a clear margin.
families/children - possibly at the
Entertainment and food/beverage expense of evening uses and
based with good ancillaries.
fuller inclusivity.

Risk of business or activity failure

Risk felt to be low in all the
circumstances.

Need to reflect element of risk for
new business although operators
are well established and
experienced.

Risk considered low overall in
early stages with James trust
support.

Comments

Relocation of existing local
church already with good local
support. Transfers much of
existing operation which has
been running from Strawberry
Lodge. Income from rents,
donations and other activities.

Based heavily on bar and
restaurant. Excellent experience
on the field demonstrated
however always possibility of
wider economic factors or lower
than expected take up.

Part established business, part
new. Projections supporting a
sustainable future after that stage
depend on continued profitability
and are not excessively
ambitious however there is much
competition locally for fitness,
parent/child business.

Page 170

Stakeholder panels felt many
positive aspects however
faith-based identity might be less
encouraging of a fully inclusive
use.

Agenda Item 11

continued existence of collective

Planning considerations and
likelihood of gaining any consent
needed
Comments

Change of use required but being Not needed unless bar/restaurant Little change from existing but
displaced from Strawberry Lodge requires change from restaurant
may require change for
rather than new additional activity
workshop/retail proposals

Conditions attaching to the bid if
any
Building inspections/surveys
including services

N/A

Comments

An established local church with
associated community activities
and an excellent response to our
community benefit analysis.
Financial strength and likelihood
of long-term use of property
considered good overall. Panels
felt faith-based use might restrict
inclusivity. Would effectively
move existing operation from
Strawberry Lodge to the High
Street rather than establish a
new additional venue.

Excellent local business
background in this proposal, also
plausible ideas. Some risk
attaching to new venture and
tight budgets for expenditure.
Poor response to community
benefit analysis however strong
favourite of stakeholder panel.
Felt the most likely to create a
“destination venue” and
increased vitality. Also the best
financial offer.

Good use proposals and
community benefit. Financially
strong through support of James
Trust. Second favourite of
stakeholder panels. Over five
years second highest financial
offer. Panels felt proposal was
very strong for families/children
but less so for other potential
users and would compete with
existing availability in Carshalton.

Agenda Item 11

Planning Permission required
CIO company structure however
on basis of above factors risk of
failure not considered high

Page 171

Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 173

Agenda Item 11

APPENDIX D
Charles Cryer Centre
Presentation evenings September 2018
These notes summarise the two presentation evenings held in September 2018. Reported
below are the questions and comments from the panels to each bidder, following the
presentation, and their responses. After that table is the summary of positive and negative
points raised in discussion and further questions to be put to the bidders following the private
discussion among the panel. The written responses by bidders to those questions are then
summarised.

Session One: 3/9/18 - Citizens and Young Commissioners
Carshalton Baptist Church
Q&A session
Questions/comments from panel

Response

Specify links with drug/alcohol rehab?

Quoted sources and links with groups - also
Christians against Poverty

Detail in retention of theatre

Yes, plus retention/expansion of upper
level, but without fixed seating

Sales of alcohol permitted?

Not spirits but wine could be brought in.
Abuse of alcohol not permitted. No
licensed bar.

Security issue with alcohol?

Ensure hirers aware of regulations.

Will hire charges be payable

Yes

How many music/theatre productions

Monthly open mic, annual event for
schools, Churches Together multi-faith
group

Evening opening

Yes - listen to all age groups

Diverse music scene e.g. metal - would this
be allowed

As long as not contentious. Try to appeal to
maximum number of local people.

How to encourage people to use the space

Meet, talk, accommodate. Promotion. Not
necessarily Christian groups.

How will they promote the centre

Using good connections, diverse
congregation including lots of foster

Agenda Item 11

Page 174

parents.
How will they deal with competition with
Wallington Baptists

Church has a different identity. The DNA of
the pastor is important.

Post Presentation comments
Good
Range of uses
Arts and music
Community issues
Not staid or too “Church”
Flexible
Good for younger people
- Nothing else around!
Youth club +ve
Better location would help with promotion
Bad
How to signal presence to neighbours
Ability to promote
Not well-known
More space at Cryer - how to fill it
Taking on too much?
Too wide an offer/not enough demand?
Still exclusive in a sense because faith-based
Question
How would they ensure delivery and make all the ideas happen?
Response (summarised)
Project management, employment of business manager, careful scheduling, promotion and
advertising.

Cryer Arts
Q&A Session
Questions/comments from panel

Response

How do they think the last occupier failed

Too avant-garde, wrong demographic, not
enough activity at the Cryer, marketing
strategy, cancellations

How would it be promoted

Appoint theatre manager, listen to what

Page 175

Agenda Item 11

people want, create 10-12 jobs for local
people, engage volunteer groups and
possibly apprentices
How would they reach out to people

Connections with schools, music/stagecraft,
demand, school liaison

How would they accommodate older people

Activities such as film nights, Northern Soul,
dancing. Inclusivity is important.

Would it be open during the day

Yes. Intention to open bar from noon 2300 7 days a week and auditorium/lobby
from 0900.
Carried out marketing outside the building
to establish what people want.

Would they charge for rehearsal space

Yes, depending on timing e.g. Monday
would be cheaper than weekend

How about drama for theatre area not
comedy/music

In touch with local theatre groups and very
keen to accommodate e.g. Panto season.
Will have online booking system with no
booking fee.

How to use arts to attract special needs
schools

Will engage with them in due course as
know there is demand.

Are they confident about finances

Yes - in the project and each other. Will run
a 106 week advance diary. Community
benefits. Also free life saving instruction
and defibrillator station.

Post Presentation comments
Good
Competent
Experienced
- Have to adapt
Focus on other spaces
Knowledge of building
Scope for another pub
Realistic about potential
Knowledge of area
Good learning resource
Very strong bid
Learned from failure of STT
Contacts
Understand the market/reflect the area

Agenda Item 11

Page 176

Bad
Parking impact?
Is it really inclusive e.g. mental health, complex needs, disabilities
Need to reach out to more of the community
Questions
1. How to achieve a fully inclusive approach?
2. How could all elements be fully open to all community, eg. radio station?
3. Will they offer training courses, apprenticeships etc?
Responses (summarised)
1. The restaurant would offer good value and cover many dietary requirements. As
wide a spectrum as possible of arts and entertainment would be offered. A team of
volunteers is being assembled from many sectors of the community.
2. They anticipate a fully inclusive programme open to all and the radio station would be
as diverse as possible with community groups and charities especially encouraged.
3. They hope to offer catering apprenticeships plus less formal training in theatre
operations. They would hold monthly training on the public access defibrillator.

Nickel Support
Q&A
Questions/comments from panel

Response

Are they open-minded about small theatre
companies and group hiring ,such as
teenagers - what would be the approach to
cost

Yes and would run workshops through other
organisations, take % of ticket sales

Adults bar in the evenings?

Yes, interval drinks at small bar, possibility
of cafe opening if demand sufficient

Vision for type of performances?

Family friendly, comedy, drama, live music,
open mic, be many things for the
community

Will available money cover the refurb

They believe it will and have obtained
quotes. Including for cinema system and
theatre refit.

Will whole restaurant area be a cafe

Yes - they believe there is demand

Basis of use projections?

They believe these are realistic

How to get people to come back to the
Cryer e.g. not traditional groups

Lots of contact with artists and performance
groups, festival, live gigs

Page 177

Classes/internships offered?

Agenda Item 11

Yes, through CIC means money will go
back to the Centre

Post Presentation comments
Good
Child-centred - exclusive?
- Possibly too much so?
Community based - not seeking to be “Cool”
Workshop proposals good
Inclusivity
Environmental implications
Community orientated
Refit of theatre
Internships/people development
Bad
Theatre would take second fiddle?
Imprint own ideas rather than what the community wants
Heavy focus on children uses
Less so for evenings
Appeal to theatre users other than their own?
Structure of CIC with related profit making companies?
Questions
1. How to keep arts scene growing with regard to extent of children-related uses?
2. How do separate components of business feed into CIC?
Responses (summarised)
1. Theatre company has customer base already and the theatre space will also provide
music, comedy, Shakespeare, new writing/modern plays and musical theatre. It
would be available to community and amateur groups and workshops/classes.
2. There will be a specific company to operate the complex which will sub-let areas to
other operating companies such as the theatre/studio and cafe. These will contribute
to maintenance of the complex.

Session Two: 4/9/18 - Community Representatives, Arts Network Sutton, Local
Councillors and Opposition Spokesman for the Arts
Carshalton Baptist Church
Q&A Session
Questions/comments from panel

Response

Agenda Item 11

Page 178

What happens to Strawberry Lodge?

It's been let for 25 years to Eagle House
School. The church can use it for worship
on Sundays and is looking for space for its
other activities.

Would they accommodate people or groups
from outside the church

Yes

Would there be any restrictions e.g. against
non-religious groups?

All would be welcome as long as
harmonious with the principal congregation

How would they deal with outdoor events

Pay to use the park

How to preserve theatre/cultural uses

Would work with a local theatre, also scope
for drama uses via church

Who would run the above

It is not happening at present due to
parking restrictions at Strawberry Lodge

How would they deal with parking

Space to rear and P&D nearby

How would the theatre space be retained

Keep seating and flexible layout, use for
different activities

Would they retain the existing flooring

They hope to do so

How to deal with sound/lighting issues

Employ professional help

What would be the bar offer, e.g. interval
drinks

Community cafe to be developed, would
allow wine on premises for certain events

Reopen a restaurant?

In future perhaps

Can they provide any firm undertaking to
reopen a theatre

Will work with theatre groups, schools,
provide music evenings e.g. jazz, don’t
want Carshalton to lose the theatre

How to contributed to a vibrant local scene
e.g. by working with local groups

Will allow local groups to use space for
meetings, e.g. Wandle Trust have worked
with them before, want the community to
know space is available

How to make more visible and deal with
religious use in context of community use

Feel not excessively obvious that
Strawberry Lodge is a church - maintain
balance

Is their deal on Strawberry Lodge
contingent on their getting Charles Cryer

No - still have access on Sundays for
services and this will continue during the
lease they have granted for the school.

Post Presentation comments

Page 179

Agenda Item 11

Good
Positive nature of proposals
Bad
Reproduce Strawberry Lodge operation
Difficult to envisage effectively working as both church and community/arts venue
Religious connotations may be off-putting to non-religious users or other faith groups
Moving their operation doesn’t make it much more accessible
Ability to run as a commercial asset
Not enough reference to theatre potential
Not predominantly an arts use
How far does it address inclusivity, ethnic diversity, the wider community
Questions
1. How would proposals allow e.g. use by pantomime company for two weeks?
2. Does the High Street need another coffee shop - evidence of demand?
3. How inclusive would their use be of the whole community?
4. For how much time would the theatre stand empty?
5. Would they reopen a restaurant?
6. How would they balance the arts/community and spiritual uses, e.g. commit to a
number of performances?
7. Can they confirm no structural changes in the building?
Responses (summarised)
1. They would agree requirements with parties including letting between 0900-2300
Monday to Saturday. May be able to move other activities.
2. The Centre would also be established as a conference/training venue and used as
gateway to access other services and support
3. Would continue fully inclusive policy maintained for 20 years at Strawberry Lodge,
accessible to all and not based on faith or beliefs. Would not accept those seen to be
encouraging division or conflict.
4. They would seek to move in four to six months after acceptance of the bid and make
the theatre available in the following three months.
5. In the longer term a restaurant would be opened or the cafe used in the evenings
once the scheme is established and settled.
6. Apart from restrictions on use and access during church services, activities would be
booked on a first-come, first-served basis.
7. They would propose to install a mezzanine on the upper level of the theatre space in
due course to expand capacity.

Cryer Arts
Q&A

Agenda Item 11

Page 180

Questions/comments from panel

Response

Proposals will bring lots of people - how
about parking

Use large P&D adjacent and other transport
modes of bus and train will be encouraged

Would users use Westcroft car park

They think not - High Street is more
convenient and movement of people will
help support other traders

Will bar subsidise other parts of the
operation

Bar/restaurant should cover the whole costs
of the building. However other uses such
as hires won’t be free. Will encourage
drama groups such as those priced out by
the previous tenant. Hires will create
spin-off trade.

Emphasis for performance seems to be on
comedy, music, dance not drama?

There is scope for drama but the other uses
will start up quicker - drama will follow.
These hires also are more sustained e.g.
panto or theatre runs for several weeks so
better news for income. Budget includes
new rear projection system for scenery.

How to promote/get people out

Ensure enough exposure, use music and
drama networks, social media e.g. 1100
people following their bid, online booking
system with no fees, possibly touch display
at front of building, also run monthly life
saving sessions

How to promote access for community
groups, promote diversity

Help groups as much as possible,
recognise importance of community access
e.g. meetings in offices at rear of ground
floor. Would work with unsuccessful
bidders. Will put 10% of net profits in a
fund to subsidise rentals for local groups.
Encourage diversity through employment.
Consider restarting Rockstock festival.
Diverse background of clients.

How would they take community projects
further afield

Have not discussed this but it could be
considered

Would they help smaller groups e.g.
pantomime company, Wallington Operatic

Yes - e.g. Wallington Operatic want to
produce Oh What A Lovely War. Believe
that Cryer was under-utilised by the last
tenant.

Would they be interested in helping children
at Royal Marsden Hospital, engage with
older people to combat loneliness

Yes - for instance could engage with Age
Concern

Page 181

What would be the restaurant offer

Agenda Item 11

Currently considering “small plates”
principle i.e. like tapas but not limited to
Spanish. Established/experienced local
restaurant adviser appointed.

Post Presentation comments
Good
Comprehensive
Community focussed
Covers all areas needed
Helpful to community
Knowledge of building demonstrated
Local and wider connections
Good ideas for use
Making own financial commitment
Use of external space proposals
Link demonstrated to architect for 1990s conversion
Bad
Make sure not too music-focussed
Diversity?
Centres around bar/restaurant - check sustainability
Impact on other cafes/restaurants
Questions
1. Model is reactive - how to develop artistic identity/overview and target
underrepresented groups?
2. How to reach out and ensure diversity of programme?
3. How to ensure continued focus on the preferred uses?
Response (summarised)
1. According to their research the two most popular types are theatres/plays/shows and
live music, together representing 77% of preferences. Other entertainments would
also be provided. Artistic identity will reflect users of the Cryer.
2. This would be ensured through an “open to all” policy driving involvement by all
sections of local and wider communities.
3. It would be necessary for the whole complex to operate together and they believe
they have the experience and the flexibility to build a sustainable arts and
entertainment complex.

Nickel Support/Cryer Collective

Agenda Item 11

Page 182

Questions/comments from panel

Response

What is role of James Trust

Grant funding and supporting

Will JT’s other partners be using space in
the scheme

Not automatically

What happens when JT capital injection
comes to an end

Business should be established and
sustainable after that stage
Rent being paid at existing premises can
transfer

Would proceeds of furniture operation go
back into the building

No - will go to employees - will be a
separate company. Will contribute towards
maintenance - CIC for the studio will help to
fund rent - baby & toddler group will pay.

How to encourage diversity with reference
to the parent and child demographic

New writing, drama, cinema to come - build
on the basics. Cafe could open as a
pop-up restaurant in the evening. See also
Spontaneous Productions, Sydenham.

How well will the different parts of the
collective gel together and sustain
maximum use of the complex, e.g. evening
use of the children’s cafe

Will use bar kiosk area for evening drinks.
Possibly also downstairs area in the future.

Is it possible they're trying to be to many
things at once

Proud of spread of experience. Nickel
Support will take the lead and be the lessee
for 25 years.

What if the companies were to fall out

Contingencies are built in, operator of cafe
or classes could change

How to maximise evening use of restaurant
- schedule suggests 70 closed days

Happy to open restaurant if demand
sustains that. Not expecting it to open
every night.

Post Presentation comments
Good
Need for children’s facilities
Evidence of support for theatre use
Community spirit and “feel” to the proposal
Arts contribution
The most diverse offer
Enthusiasm
Bad
Relocation rather than new business

Page 183

Agenda Item 11

Not enough detail on theatre operation
Looseness of “collective”
Too child-orientated - evidence of demand?
Not a destination venue proposal
Pop up restaurant not ideal
Some of this offer already available in Carshalton
Difficult to visualise
Focus on daytime activities over evening
Proximity to Westcroft with fitness classes, activities for children
Question
What is the nature of funding and sources in relative terms
Response (summarised)
Due to the nature of this question it is covered in the Exempt appendix but in broad terms
the project has significant support from the James Trust and will in due course become
self-sustaining.

This page is intentionally left blank

